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Pursuant to Article 50 of the Law on Capital Market (RS Official Gazette No. 31/2011) and the provision of the
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activity code: 06419- other monetary mediation publishes the following:
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REGISTRATION NUMBER: 11009778
ADOPTED (YES OR NO) (consolidated report will be adopted by the end of May
this year)
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1. PUBLIC COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENT WITH AN AUDITOR’S REPORT

1.1. Balance -sheet as at december 31, 2013

SIN

Al

All

Alll

AlV

AV

AVl

AVl

AV

AlX

AX

AXI

AXIl

A X

ITEM
2

Cash and cash equivalents
Callable deposits and loans
Interest and fees receivables
Loans and deposits to customers
Securities (other than own)
Shareholdings (stakes)

Other investments

Intangible investment

Fixed assets and investment property

Fixed assets intended for sale and funds
from discontinued operations

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Loss above capital

TOTAL ASSETS (from Al to A Xill)

001

002

003

004

005

006

007

008

009

010

011

012

013

014

(Thousands of RSD)
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
5 6
41.137.794 40.514.180
53.395.120 43.053.502
2.788.176 1.547.342
184.004.121 177.106.865
57.001.465 41.347.719
6.054.110 5.917.033
2.929.218 3.227.896
537.445 600.438
8.386.224 7.416.846
71.630 78.763
71.630 4.896
7.349.064 3.372.293
363.717.022 324.187.773



SIN ITEM
1 2
Pl Transaction deposits
P Other deposits
P Borrowings
PV Liabilities from securities
PV Liabilities from interest, fees and change in
the value of derivatives
PVI | Provisions
PVII' | Tax liabiliies
PVII || jabilities from profit
PIX Liabilities for assets intended for sale and
assets from discontinued operations
PX Deferred tax liabilities
PXI" | Other liabilties
TOTAL LIABILITIES (from P I to P XI)
Capital
1. Shared capital and issue premium
2. Reserves from profit
3. Revaluation reserves
4. Unrealized losses on securities available
for sale
S. Profit
6. Loss up to the amount of capital
P XII

TOTAL CAPITAL (1+2+3-4+5-6)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (from P 1to P XII)
OFF-BALANCE SHEET POSITIONS
Managed funds

Commitments

Received guarantees for liabilities
Derivatives

Other off-balance sheet items

Beograd, February 26, 2014

Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:

SneZana Pejci¢

Head of Accounting

101
102
103
104

105

106
107
108

109

110
1M
112

113

114
115

116

17
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

(Thousands of RSD)

31.12.2013.

4 5
53.217.378

202.380.166
1.619.990

255.888

765.132
21.616
150.124

57.759
40.271.698
298.739.751

40.034.550

16.635.440
1.894.209

187.011

6.600.083
64.977.271
363.717.022
223.424.851
5.402.256
30.829.366

188.717.404

Ivica Smoli¢

President of the Executive Board

31.12.2012.

6
40.336.776

195.183.968
637.264

188.910

2.331.760
21.799
85.114

25.535.622
264.321.213

40.034.550

14.785.440
867.774

7.016

4.185.812

59.866.560
324.187.773
204.642.280

5.013.721

42.452.658

157.175.901



1.2. Income Statement for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2013

Vi

Vil

Vil

X

bl

X

XV

XV

XVl

XVII

XVIII

XIX

XX

ITEM

Interest income

Interest expense

Interest gains

Interest loss

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Fee and commission gains
Fee and commission loss

Net profit from sale of securities at fair value
through income statement

Net loss on sale of securities at fair value
through income statement

Net profit from sale of securities available for
sale

Net loss from sale of securities available for sale
Net profit from sale of securities held to maturity
Net loss from sale of securities held to maturity
Net profit from sale of equity stakes

Net loss from sale of equity stakes

Net profit from sale of other loans and advances
Net loss from sale of other loans and advances
Net income from exchange rate differentials

Net expenses from exchange rate differentials
Income from dividends and shares

Other operating income

Net income from indirect loan write-off and
provisions

Net expenses for indirect loan write-off and
provisions

Expenses for salaries, allowances and other
personnel expenses

Depreciation expenses

201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

(Thousands of RSD)
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
4 5
22.034.807 20.130.880
9.094.536 9.220.564
12.940.271 10.910.316
5.493.211 5.334.914
928.063 780.448
4.565.148 4.554.466
16.340 776
1.738 83.947
957.618 8.041.381
391.724 2.251
337.919 241.022
2.866.578 1.444.299
4.258.109 4.186.346
792.648 752.356



XXII

XXIII

XXIV

XXV

XXVI

XXVII

XXVIII

XXIX

XXX

XXXI

XXXII

XXXII

XXXIV

XXXV

Operating and other expense

Income from changes in value of assets and
liabilities

Expenses from changes in value of assets and
liabilities

OPERATING PROFIT

OPERATING LOSS

Net profit from discontinued operations

Net loss from discontinued operations
RESULT FOR THE PERIOD - PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

RESULT FOR THE PERIOD - LOSS BEFORE
TAX

Profit tax

Profit from created deferred tax assets and
reduction of deferred tax liabilities

Loss from created deferred tax assets and
reduction of deferred tax liabilities

PROFIT

LOSS

Earnings per share (in RSD, rounded)
Basic earnings per share (in RSD, rounded)
Diluted earnings per share (in RSD, rounded)

Beograd, February 26, 2014
Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:

SneZana Pejci¢

Head of Accounting

227

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

241
242
243

Ivica Smoli¢

President of the Executive Board

5.519.630

6.945.903

6.216.023

4.588.437

4.588.437

87.950

4.676.325

468
242

4.933.005

17.989.493

9.852.222

4.572.662

4.572.662

472.448

32.885

10.953

4.122.146

469
290



1.3. Cash flow Statement for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2013

SIN

10.
1.

12.
Vi

13.
14.

15.
VIL.

VIl

16.
17.
XIX.

ITEM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows from operating activities (from 1 to 4)
Inflow from interest

Inflow from fees

Inflow from other operating income

Inflow from dividends and participating interests

Cash outflows from operating activities (from 5 to 9)
Outflow for interest

Outflow for fees

Outflow for gross salaries, allowances and other personnel

expenses

Outflow for taxes, contributions and other duties charged to
income

Outflow for other operating expenses
Net cash inflow from operating activities before
increase/decrease in loans and deposits (I minus Il)

Net cash outflow from operating activities before
increase/decrease in loans and deposits (Il minus I)

Decrease in loans and increase in received deposits
(from 10 to 12)

Decrease in loans and advances to banks and customers
Decrease in fair value of securities through income

statement, other trading loans and advances and short-
term securities held to maturity

Increase in deposits from banks and customers

Increase in loans and decrease in received deposits
(from 13 to 15)

Increase in loans and deposits to banks and customers
Increase in fair value of securities through income

statement, trading loans and advances and short-term
securities held to maturity

Decrease in deposits taken from banks and customers

Net cash inflow from operating activities before profit
tax (Alll minus AIV plus AV minus AVI)

Net cash outflow from operating activities before profit
tax (AIV plus AVI minus Alll minus AV )

Paid profit tax
Paid dividends

Net cash inflow from operating activities
(AVII minus AVIII minus 16 minus 17)

Net cash outflow from operating activities
(AVIIl minus AVII plus 16 plus 17 )

301
302
332
304
305
306
307
308

309

310
311
312

313

314
315

316

317
318
319

320

321
322

323

324
325

326

327

(Thousands of RSD)
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
26.515.177 23.921.322
20.440.320 18.412.248
5.493.457 5.308.328
225.323 198.495

356.077 2.251
19.690.614 18.947.991
8.948.540 8.985.130

929.932 775.246
4.318.918 4.115.419

927.771 887.648
4.565.453 4.184.548
6.824.563 4.973.331
24.157.321 27.169.182
1.849.275 554.116
22.308.046 26.615.066
23.859.645 900.488
23.859.645 900.488
7.122.239 31.242.025
699.916 642.361
269.195 278.218
6.153.128 30.321.446



B. = CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

l Cash inflow from investment activities (from 1 to 3) 328 14.283.200 1.201.610
1. Inflow from long-term investment in securities 329 14.271.064 1.149.802
2. Inflow from sold equity stakes 330 - -
3. Inflow from sold intangible investment and fixed assets 331 12.136 51.808
4, Inflow from sold investment property 332 -
5. | Otherinflow from investment activities 333 -
Il Cash outflows from investment activities ( from 4 to 6) 334 32.386.044 16.811.890
6. Outflows for investment in long-term securities 335 31.633.864 16.102.276
7. Outflow for purchase of equity stakes 336 976 751
8. Outflow for purchase of intangible investment and fixed assets | 337 751.204 708.863
0. Outflow for purchase of investment property 338 -
10. | Other outflow for investment activities 339 -
lll. | Net cash inflow from investment activities (I minus Il) 340 -
IV. | Net cash outflow from investment activities (Il minus I) 341 18.102.844 15.610.280
V. | CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
L Cash inflow from financing activities (from 1 to 4 ) 342 13.530.948 16.615.425
1 Inflow from increase in capital 343 - 11.571.997
2 Net inflow from subordinated liabilities 344 46.190 453.870
3. Net inflow from received loans 345 13.484.758 4.589.558
4, Net inflow from securities 346 -
5 Inflow from the sale of own shares 347 -
6 Other inflow from financing activities 348 -
1. Cash outflow from financing activities ( from 5to 8) 349 - -
7. Outflow for repurchase of own shares 350 -

Net outflow for subordinated liabilities 351 -

Net outflow for borrowings 352 -
10. | Net outflow for securities 353 -
11. | Other outflows for financing activities 354 -
Ml Net cash inflow from financing activities (I minus Il) 355 13.530.948 16.615.425
IV. | Net cash outflow from financing activities (Il minus I) 356 -
G TOTAL NET CASH INFLOW (A I plus AV plus B | plus V1) 357 78.486.646 68.907.539
D. = TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOW 358 76.905.414 37.580.948
b NET CASH INCREASE (G minus D) 359 1.581.232 31.326.591
E NET CASH DECREASE (D minus G) 360 -
Z.  CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 361 40.514.180 17.228.970
V4 EXCHANGE RATE GAINS 362 1.440.279 5.682.006
I EXCHANGE RATE LOSS 363 2.397.897 13.723.387
I CASH AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 364 41.137.794 40.514.180

Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:
Snezana Pejci¢ Ivica Smoli¢

Head of Accounting President of the Executive Board



1.4. Statement of changes in equity for the period 01.01. to 31.12.2013

POSITION

Balance at January 1, 2012

Correction of materially significant
errors and changes in accounting
policies in the previous year —
increase

Correction of materially significant
errors and changes in accounting
policies in the previous year —
decrease

Adjusted opening balance as of
01.01, previous year, 2012

Total increase in the previous
year

Total decrease in the previous
year

Balance at December 31 st. 2012
Correction of materially significant
errors and changes in accounting

policies in the current year —
increase

Correction of materially significant
errors and changes in accounting
policies in the current year —
decrease

Adjusted opening balance as of
01.01, current year, 2013

Total increase in the current year
Total decrease in the current year
Balance at December 31, 2013

= 5 g
= = n 2w
o 1< L= o
S e £ oS
® o 22
(7] 7] '
13.881.010 14.581.543 11.635.440
13.881.010 14.581.543 11.635.440
3.310.456 8.261.541 3.150.000
17.191.466 22.843.084 14.785.440
17.191.466 22.843.084 14.785.440
1.850.000
17.191.466 22.843.084 16.635.440

Signed on behalf of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd by:

SneZana Pejci¢

Head of Accounting

Revaluation
Reserves

D
[e]
©
(o2}
N
o

689.620

188.821

10.667
867.774

867.774

1.432.418
508.924

1.791.268

Ivica Smoli¢

(Thousands of RSD)

8% | £688 _

£ £ = o= 3

S E 283 °

O © =08

o w ) K=

3.551.893 63.940 44275566
3.551.893 63.940 44.275 566
4.604.631 29.241 19.486.208
3.970.712 86.165 3.895.214
4.185.812 7.016 59.866.560
4.185.812 7.016 59.866.560
4.686.363 406.379 7.562.402
2.184.204 226.384 2.466.744
6.687.971 187.011 64.962.218

President of the Executive Board

1.5. Auditor’s opinion and notes to financial statements

11
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Transiation of the Independent Auditors' Report Issued in the Serbian language

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Komercijalna banka a.d., Beograd

We have audited the accompanying financial statemenrts of Komercyaina banka a.d., Beograd (hereinafier the
'M';.mmmm:m:-mmm.mnwmmmnm,
statement of changes in equity and statemnent of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory noles.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1= responsible for the preparation and far presentation of these financial statements n accordance
with the Law on Accounting of the Republic of Serba and regulations of the National Bank of Serbia governing
wmﬁ%mﬂuhmmeWMMMmh
enable the preparation of financial stalements that are free from materal misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or
error

Aucitors” Responsibaiity

Our responsibility is 1o expiess an opimon on these firancal statements based on owr audt. We conducled our
audil n accordance with intermational Stangards on Auditing and the Law on Audit of the Repubic of Sertsa
Those slandards require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audt 'o obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statemants are free from matenal missiatement

An audit invoives performing procecures 10 obtan audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures i the
WW.MMMWMMMW:W.MMMMHH
nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or emror In making those nsk
assessments, the auditor considers inlernal conlrol relevant 1o the Sank's preparation and far presentation of the
financial statements in order 1o design audit proceduies thal are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for he
purpose of expressing an opinion pn the effectiveness of the Bank's intemal control, An audit also includes
evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
miade by management, as well as evalaating the overall presenlation of the financial stalements

We believe that the audil ewidence we have oblained is sullicent and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audit
QpINIon

Cypirvon

In our opion, the financial staterments of the Bank present tairly, in all matenal respects, the financial posilion of
the Bank as at December 31, 2013, and ds financial perfermance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance wilth the accounting regulations of the Republic ol Sertsa and regulabions of the Natonal Bank of
Serina governmng financal reporting of banks.

Belgrade February 26. 2014

Eamicntle refes b0 one of more af Delomte Tousne Tohmaisu Lirited, 8 JK prvate corpany imited by guaranies, amnd it natwars o e
firms, sact: ol which & 3 legally separste ard noepsndan) aniity, Plsase see PED S doloite comirsiasbout for a detailed descrgton of (he
lganl siracture of Dewdte Touche Tohmatsu Limited mne s miemited irms, 14

Sarmibser of Dhedoitte Touche Tohmatsy Lenited



HOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

INCOME STATEMENT
¥aar Enthad December 31, 2012
(Thampsands of RSD)
Note 2013 2012

Interest income Sa) 22034 807 20,130,880
Interest expanses =R (9,084 5385) {8,220 5643
el interest Income 12 840,271 10,910,316
Fee and commissen income g a) 5433211 5334914
Fee and commission expansas &b (928,063) {780 448)
Net fae and commission incomea 4 565 148 4,554 466
Met gaing on the sale of secunties carried at fair

value through profit and loss 7 16,340 775
Met gains on the sale of sacurties available for sals 8 1,738 83,947
Met foreign exchange losses a (957.618) {8,041 381)
Dividend and other income from equity inveatments 10 381,724 2251
Cthesr operating income 1 3arg1e 241022
Net impairment losses and pravisions 12 (2,866,578) {1,444 298}
Staff costs 13 {4 258,109 (4,186.345)
Depreciation and amortizalion charge 14 (792,648) {T52,350)
Operating and cliiwer expenses 15 {5.518.630) (4.933.005)
Mzt gainsflosses) on the valuation of assets and liabilities 18, 17 729,818 8.137.271
PROFAT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 4,588 3715 4,572 662
Income taxes 18 - [472.4458)
Gainsg from creation of defemed tax assets and

decrease in defemed tax halities 19 87,550 32885
Losses on decrease in defomad o asaets and creaton

of defermed tax liabihtes 20 - {10,963}
MET PROFIT 4,675 325 4 122,145
Eamings per share {in RSD. rounded) az
Basic eamings per share {in RS0, roundad) 42 458 459
Diluted samings per share (in RS0, rounded) 42 242 290

Notes on the fllowang pages

form an integral part of these financial statements.

Theses financial statemants wara approved by tha Execulive Board of Komercijalna banka a.d.. Beogped as at

February 26, 2014,

Signed on behalf of Kemercijalna banka a.d., Becgrad by,

Snefana Pejfic
Head of Accounting

Ivica Smolic
FPresldent of ihe Executive Board

Transistion of the Auditord” FRasoeT iioed 1n the Sarblan languege

5



KOMERCLIALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2013
(Thousands of R5D)
Mote 2013 HH2
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 21 41137794 40514180
Revocabia deposits and loans 22 83,285,120 43,053,502
Receivables ansing from interast, fee and commissmon,
trade, fair value adjustments of denvatives and other
receivables 23 2,788,178 1,547,342
Loans and advances 1o customers 24 184,004 121 177,106,865
Securities {excluding treasury shares) 25 57001 485 41 347719
Equity investments {infereats) 28 8,084 110 5817.033
Othar investments 27 2.529.218 3227 896
Inlangible assets 28 537 445 600,438
Property, equipment and investment proparty 29 8,386 224 ¥ 416 846
Non-current assets held for sale and asssts of
discontioued operations 30 71,630 TBTE3
Defered tax assets 31 - 4,856
Cither assets 32 7,340 063 3,372253
Total assets AG3 654 366 324,187,773
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Transacton deposits 33 53217 378 40,336 776
Ciher deposis 34 202 380, 166 135,183 968
Bormowangs 35 1.619.880 637 264
Interesl, fee ard commission payables and
change in the value of derivatives 36 255888 188,910
Pronisions 37 755,132 2.331.760
Taxes payable 35 21616 21,799
Tax ang dradend payablies 39 150,124 85,114
Desfermed bax iabilties 40 10,156 -
Ciiher liabilities 41 40,271 538 25535 622
Tetal liablltles 258 692 148 264 321,213
EQUITY
Share capital 42 40 034 550 40,034 550
Reserves retained from samings 43 15,635 440 14,785,440
Ravaluation reserves 44 1,791,268 BET 774
Unrealized losses on securifies availae-for-sals a5 (187 011} (7.018)
Retained samings 46 6,687 871 4185812
64962 218 59 566 580
Total lahilities and aquity 363 654 366 324,187 773
OFF-BALANCE-RHEET ITEMS 224,943 (126 204 642 280
Managed funds 47 h 402 256 5,013,721
Commitments 43 30,829,366 42,452 658
Cther off-balance $heet items 43 188,717,404 157 175,901

Notes on the fllewing pages
forrn anointegral pant of thesa financial statements.
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KOMERCIJALMA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

CASH FLOW STATEMEMNT
Year Ended December 31, 2013
(Thousands of RSD)

Cesh inflows from cperating activities
Intarast receipts

Fae and commission receipts

Receipts of olher operating mcome

Recaipls from diidends and profit distribution

Caph outfiows from cparating sctivities
Imterast paid

Feas and commissions paid

Fayments to, and on behalf of employses
Taxes, contributions and other duties paid
Payments of other operating axpansss

Nat cash generated by operating activities prios to
Inzreasss or decreases in loans and deposita

Decrpase in secunities camied at far value through profit and Inss,
trading investments and shori-term secunties held-te-maturty

Increase In deposits due to banks and Gushamearns

Increase nloans and advancas 1o banks and cuslomers

Income taxes paid

Dividends paid

Hat canh ganeratad by operating activities

Mat outllows from long-term invesiments in securilies

Nal outiows from sales of aquity mvssiments

Met outfiows from sales of intangible assets property and squipment
Net cash used in investing activitlas

Inflows arlging from capltal incraase

Met cash inflows from subordineted debt

Mat cash inflows from barrowings

Nat cash generated by financing activities

Met InCreaka in cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and cash squivalentk, beginning of year
Foreign exchange lossas on transalation of cash

Cash and cash squlvalents, end of year

Notes on the following paoes

Decembaer 31, Dercarnbwer 31,
2013 a2
28 515,177 23,821 322
20,440,320 18,412 248
5,483 457 5,308 328
225,323 198 4895
385,077 2.251
(19,690 614) (18,947 281}
(5.548 5400 (8,885 130)
{820,031 (775.2448)
(4.318,818) (4,115.418)
{827 77 1) (887 648)
(4 565 453) (4,184 548
6 824 563 4 897331
1848275 &6d 116
22,308 046 256150686
(23 B E45) {900 488}
{659 516) {842 281)
{268 185} {278 218]
6153128 30 321 4495
{17,362 800} {14,852 474)
{975} (751
[7.30.065} {657 058)
(18,102 B4} (15 610 280}
- 11,571,997
46 180 453 870
13 484 758 4 5Pg 558
13.530.048 16,615 425
1581232 31,326 5681
4 514 180 17,228,970
{957 618) (8.041.381)
41 137,784 40,514 180

form an imegral parl of these finantal statements.

Transiadcn of the Audiicrs’ Refar saived in the Serbian langusge




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEGGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oecember 31, 2013
All amounts expressed i housanads of RS0, umass otherwise Sialed

21

2.2

BANK'S ESTABLISHMENT ANMD ACTIVITY

Komercijaing barka a.d., Beograd (hereinafter the “Bank'}, was sstablished as at December 1, 1970 and
ranskmed inke 3 sharahokling company as of May &, 1892

Al Decembar 31 2013, the Banks mest significant holders controliing shares were the following:

1. Republic of Serbia ang
2. EBRD, London

A more detaled ovarview of the Bank's share capital struciure is provided in Mote 42.
The Bank has three subsidiaries wih the jollowing equity interests:

- 100% - Komercijaina banka a.d. Budva, Montenegro
- 100% - KomBank INVEST ad , Sertva
- G009 0 - Kormarcaing banka a.d. Banja Luka, Bosma and Her#egowina

The accompanying financial statemenis and notes o the financial statements represent the financial
infeamnation of the Bank a3 a separate parem lagad enbty.

The Bank's business actwbes include credil activities. depost and guaraniee achwibes and payment
transfer operations i the counbry and abroad in acoordance with the Law on Banks. The Bank i
obligated 10 operate Dased upon prnaples of liquidiy, solvency and profitability.

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank was compnsed of the Cantral Office in Belgrade at Ihe addrass of
MNo. 14, Svalog Save 5t 24 anches and 222 sub-branches. As of Dacember 31, 2013, tha Bank had
2,966 ampioyees (Decembar 31, 2011, 2 689 empioyees) The Bank's tax dentficabon number s
100001831

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

Financial Stabmnents

These financial stalements Inchude only mcevables, liabdbes, profit from operabons. changes in equity
and cash fiows of the Bank axciuding s subsdeanes. Pursuant 1o the reguiations prevaling n ihe
Rapubic of Sarmua, tha Bank has preparad consolidated financial statements which include tha financial
statements of the followang subsidianas.

Komerojalna banka a.d. Budva, Montenegro. entirgly owned by the Bank,
Investment Fund Managing Company KomBank INVEST ad Beograd, entrely owned by the Bank;
ang

+ Komarcyalnag banka ad Banja Luka, Bosnia and Herzegowna, where the Bank holds a 95.98%
aquity ntenest.

Basis of Preparation and Presentsion of Finandclal Statements

Tha Bank maintaing accounbng reconds and prepares financial stalements in compliance with the
affactva Lew on Accountng of the Republic of Serbia {Offical Gazette of RS no. §2/2013) (hereinafier
the “Law’], Law on Banks {Ofhcial Gazette of RS no. 107/2005 and 5172010) and othar relevant bylaws of
the National Bank of Serbia and cther affective regulalions of the Republic of Sertia

Legal antties and entrepraneurs incorporated in Sema are required to maintain their books of account,
to recogmze and value assets and liabiihes, income and expenses, and o present. submi and disclose
financial statemenis in conformity the Law. As a large legal entity, the Bank is required 1o apply
Intermational Financal Reporing Standacds (IFRS®), which as per the aforemeantioned law compnse the
following; the Framework for the Preparation and Presantaton of Financial Stalements (e
“Framework™). International Accountng Standacds {7 1AS"), Inlemational Financial Reporing Standards
"IFRS"). as well as the related interpretabons s6ued by the Intemabonal Financal Reporting
Interpretations Commitles {CIFRICT) and additional related interpretations issued by Intemabonal
Accountng Standards Board ("IASE"), the translations of which to the Serbian language were approved
ard 1ssued by the compelent Ministry of Finance and which were in affect as at December 31, 2002,

&9
Tranalation of tre Auditors' Report lasusd in the Serbien Istgusgs




KOMERCLIALMA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Devembar 31, 2013
Al arnicurds expressed n thousends of RSO, unfass ofharwise Stated

23,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONYENTION {Continuwed)

Basis of Preparation and Prasgnmation of Financlal Staternents (Continued)

The amendments 1o |AS, a5 wall as the newly issued IFRS and the relaled interpretations issued by the
lASE and the IFRIC, in e period batwesn December 31, 2002 and January 1, 2008, were officially
adopted pursuant 1o a Decigion enacted by the Mimistry of Finance of the Republic of Serbia (the
*Minisry"y and pubdishead in the Official Gazatte of the Republic of Serbia no. 77 of October 25, 2010,

However, unlil the praparation date of the accompanying financial statements, not all amendments to
IAS/IFRS and IFRIC in effect for ahnuwal perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2008 had been
transiated. In addition, the accompeanying financal statements are presented in the format prescribed
under the “Guidelines on the Prescribad Form and Content of tha Financial Statements of Banks and
Ciher Anangial Organizabons {Offical Gazetle of the Republic of Serbia nos. 74/2008, 32008 and
B2010). Such statements reprasent the complete set of financial statemenls as defined under the law,
which differ from those defingd under the provisions of 1AS 1. "Presentation of Financial Statements ”
and differ in some respects from tha presantation of cerlain items 28 reguired under the aforementioned
standard.

Standards and inlempratations in issue but not yet officially translaled and adopted and standards and
imterpret2ations in issue but ot yet in afect are discoesd in Motes 2 2 and 2.4,

In accordance with the aforedasanbed. and given the potentially material effiects which the departures of
accounting regulations of the Republic of Satwa from AS and IFRS may have on thwe faimess
presentabions mage in the financial slalements, the accompanying financal statements cannot be
treated as a set of inancal steements preparad in accordance with [AS and IFRS.

The inancal slatements were prepared at historical cost pnnciple except for the following items:

firancial instruments carmed at far value through profit and loss, which are measured at fair valse,
financial instruments available ks sale. which are measured at fair value through cther
COMPenensinge incmme;

denvatives, which are measured at far value, and

Duilding properties.

The financial statements were preparad o0 a gong concem assumpton entailing the Bank's continuation
of aperations in the foresesabla Riurg.

The Bank's financial statements aré stated in thousands of dinars (RS0). The dinar is the official
reporting currency in the Rapublic of Sertia

In the preparation of the accompanying financial stalements, the Bank adhered to the accounting
policies described in Mote 3,

Standards and Interprataticns In Issus but not yet Tranalated and Adopiad

As of the financial lalements issuanca dale, the following standards and amendments were issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and Interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commitiee but wara not officlally adopted and franslated in the Republic of
Sertua:

¢« Amendments 1o IFRS 7 "Financial Instrumenta: Disclosures” — Amendments impraving fair value
and liquidity nsk disclosures (rewisad in March 2008, effective Tor annual perigds beginning on or
after January 1, 20005,

+  Amendments to IFRS 1 ‘Firsl-Tima Adoption of IFRS" — Additional Exemptions for Firsl-Time
Adopters, The amendments relate to assets i Qi and gas industy and determining whether an
amangement contains a lease (revisad N July 2009, effective for annual penods beomming on o
after January 1, 2010);

Tratianicat of t AudiMeen” Righint iced i i Serbien bnguege



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D.. BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts expressed in thousands of B30, uniess oftherwise slaled.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION {Continued)

Standards and Interpretations in Issue but not yet Translated and Adopted (Continued)

-

Amendments to various standards and nterpretations resulting from the Annual Quaiity
Improvement Project of IFRS published on April 16, 2009 (IFRS 5, IFRS & I1AS 1. IAS 7, IAS 17,
IAS 36, IAS 33, IFRIC 16) pnimarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarfying wording,
(amendments are to be applied for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2010, while the
amendment to IFRIC is to become effective as of July 1, 2009),

Amendments 1o IAS 38 “Intangible Assets’ (revised in July 2009, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2008)

Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” Amendments resulting from the Annual Quaiity
improvement Project of iIFRS (revisec in Apnl 2008 effecive for annual penods beginming on or
afer July 1 2009) and amencments relating to group cash-seftied share-based payment
transachons (rewised in June 2008, eMectve for annual perods beginming on or after January 1
2010

Amendments IFRIC 9 "Reassessment of Embedded Derwvatives' effective for annual penods
beginning on or after July 1 2008 and IAS 39 ‘Fnancial Instruments Recognition and
W-EMWw{MﬂWWWWmmNmrM.M

IFRIC 1B “Transfers of Assels from Customers’ (effective for annual penods beginning on or after
July 1, 2008,

“Conceptual Framework for Fmangal Reporting 20107 being an amendments 1o ‘Framework for the
Preparabion and Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for rans'er of assets from
Cusiomers received on or after September 2070}

Amendgments o IFRS 1 “Frst-bme Adopbon of intermnational Financial Reporting Standards™ —
Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disciosures for First-tme Adopters (eflective for
arnual penods beginming on or after July 1, 2010

Amenaments to |AS 24 ‘Retated Party Disclosures” - Simplifying the disclosure requirements for
government-related entiies and clanfying the defimition of a related party (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011},

Amenaments to IAS 32 “Financal Instruments. Presentaton’ — Accounting for Rights lssues
{effective for annual penods beginning on or after February 1 2010)

Amendments fo vanous standargs and intérpretations “improvements to IFRSs (2010) resulting
from the Anmual quality improvement project of IFRS published on May & 2010 (IFRS 1, FRS 2
IFRS 7. IAS 1 IAS 27, IAS 34, IFRIC 13) pamaniy with a view to remowing inconsistencies ang
dmhmgr;nﬁﬂmg.mmmﬂnmnmhwbwﬂmﬁu&ﬂrmqmmﬂ
January 1. 2011).

Amendments ta IFRIC 14 “JAS 19 - The Lmit on @ Defined Benefit Assel Minimum Funding
Requirements and Their Interaction” - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirernent (efactive
tor annual pencds begimring on or after January 1, 2011);

IFRIC 18 "Extinguishing Financial Lianiibes with Equty Instruments” (effective for annual penods
beginring on or after July 1, 2010)

Amendments to IFRS 1 “First-Time Adoption of IFRS™ — Severe Hypernfiation and Removal of
Fiwed Dates for First-ume Adopters (effective for annual perods beginning on or after Juiy 1
2011)

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments. Disclosures™ - Transfers of Financal Assels
{eflective for annual penods beginreng on or after January 1, 2011);

21
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KOMERCHALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts exprassaed it ousands of RS0, unless olherwiss stated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION {Contlnued)

Standards and Interpretations in lmawe but not yat Translated and Adoptad (Continuwad)

Amendments to LAS 12 “Income Taxes” - Dalemed Tax Recovery of Underying Assels (effechve
for annual parods beginning on or after January 1, 20123

IFRS 10 “Consolicated Financial Statemanis” (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
January 1. 2043}

IFRS 11 ~Joint Arangements” (effectiva for annual periods beginning on of afier January 1, 2013},

iFRS 12 *Disclosures of involvement with Other Entibes” (sffective for annual pericds baginning
on or after January 1. 2013),

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Meagurement” (affective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013);

185 27 (revised in 2011) “Saparma Flnancial Statements™ {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013,

IAS 28 {revised in 2011) "Investments in Assodiates and Jont Venlures™ (effective for ennual
penicds beginning on o after Januwary 1, 2013);

Amendments 1o IFRS 1 “First-ime Adopbon of Intemabenal Financial Reporhng Sandands”™ ~
Government Loans with a Below-Market Rale of Interest (effective for annual periods beginning on
o after January 1. 2013):

Amendments to {IFRS 7 “Financia! Instruments: Chsclosures” - Offsetling Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities {effeclive for annual penads Beginning on of afiter January 1, 2013},

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 “Consolidated Financia! Stabemeonts, Jont
Amangements ard Disclosures of Involvement with Other Ertities: Transition Guidance” (effactiva
for annual perings beginmng on or atter January 1, 2013},

Amendments to IAS 1 "Pregantalion of Financial Statements” — Presentation of tams of Cther
Comprehensive Ingoma {affactiva for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012),

Amendments 1o (AS 18 "Employese Benefts” — Improvements to the Accounting for Post-
Employment Benefits (effective for annual panods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

Amendments to vanous standards “Improvemsnts (o IFRSs {2008-2011 Cycle)” issued in May
2012, resulting from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, 1AS 1, IAS 16, |AS 32, 1AS
34} pimarily with a view ko removing inconsistanoes and darfying wording (amendments are to
be applied for annual penicds baginning on or afier January 1, 2013).;

IFRIC 20 *Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine” (effective For annual periads
beginning on or after January 1, 2013)

Standands and Interpretations |n lsaue not yet in Effect

Al the date of issuance of these financal stalements the following standards, revisng and
interpretations were in issue but net yet afectiva.

IFRS 9 “Finandial lnstrumenis” and subsagquent amendments {effective dale was not yat
determinedy.

IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounis”’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016},

22
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oecember 31, 2013
Al amounts expressed in thousands of RSD, urnkess olherwise staled.
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25

31,

BASIS OF PREPARATHIN AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING COMVENTION [Continued)

Standards and Interpretations In (ssus not yat In Effect (Continued)

] Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and A8 27 - Exemption from Consolidation of Subsidiaries
under IFRS 10 "Consclidated Financlal Statements' (effective for annual pentds baginning on or
after January 1, 2014},

= Amendments to 1AS 19 - Defnad Banefit Plang Emgloyes Contribarhions Statemeants' {effective for
annyal periods baginning on or after July 1, 2014);

¢« Amardments to IAS 32 ‘Financal Instruments: Presentaion” — Offsefting Finantial Assats and
Financzal Liahiliies {effective for annual penods beqinning on or after January 1. 2014}

" Amendmerts o 1AS 36 “Impament of Assels” - Recoverable Amount Disclosures Tor Mon-
Financial Assets {effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014),

«  Amendments to [AS 32 "Fmancial Instruments™ Recognition and Measuremsnt - Mowvation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedgs Accounting (effective for annual parods Baginning on or
after January 1, 2014},

+  Amendments resulting from Annual Improvernents 2010-2012 Cycle issued in Dacamber 20132
{IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS B, IFRS 13, IAS 18, IAS 24 and IAS 38) with a vlew o removing
inconsistencies and clanifying wording {effeclive for annual pericds beginning on ar after July 1,
2014y

+  Amendiments resuling from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle issued in Decamber 2013
(IFRS 1. IFRS 3, IFRS 13 and lAS 40) with a wigw to remaoving inconsistendas and clanfying
wording {effective for annual peneds beginning on or after July 1, 2014),

= IFRIC 21 “Levies" {effectve for annual periods beginnirng on or after January 1, 2014)
Comparative Information

Comparative information includes the Bank's financs statements as of and B e year arcded
Drecember 31, 2012,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES
Intereat Income ancd Expenses

Interesl income and expanses, incugding penalty interest and other income and clvwer expenses ansing
froam irberast-baanng assets and imeal-bearing liabilities arg recognized in the incoms statement on an
acchual basis and pursuam 1o the contractual terms agreed upon by and betwaeen the Bank and it
dients.

Inome from koan oigination feas and commissions is deferred and recognized as nterast iIncome within
thir MComa statement by applying tha affecine inderest method, 12, as the adjustment of affectna matum
Qn pans issimed.

Interest income also includes income from hedging Anancial instruments, mostly based on indexing
repayment annuities o the RSD/EUR sxchange rate or ancther cumrency exchange rate, or consumer
price index and is cakculated at sach manth-and over the repayment period and ag at the repayment
annuity matunty date.

28
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

MOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2013
All armounts exprassad in thousands of RED, urnfess cthanwse siatad,

3.3.

3.4

3.8.
3.5.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES {Continuad)
Fee and Commisslon Ingome and Expenees
Fee and commission incoma and expenses arg recognized as per “matching principle.”

Fes and commission income and expenses from banking services are recognized when such services
are invoiced and rendered within the income statemant. Feas and commission charged for gquaranteas,
surebies and letters of credit issusad are deferred and recognized as Income prapartionately over their
maturity periods.

Income and Expenses from Securtion

All rzalized pains and Ipases ansing from movements in the market value arg camied through profit and
loss.

Gains and lossas arising from changes in amorized cost of securities held to maiurity are recognized as
IMCOME ared EXpanses,

Unrealized gaing and 10sses incured upon the change in the market value of investments availabde for
sale are recognized under revaluation regarnes within equity. Ywhen such assets are sold or permanently
impaired, rezpactive portions of the pravwously formed revaluation reserves are stated in the income
stalement as gains or lossee on the sake of securities, i.@. as IMpParMBnt gaing or losses.

Ganglosses based on the contractually agreed cumency clause and changes in exchange rates of
securities available for sale a8 well as interest income from securities availabke for sale are induded in
the income slatements.

COnndend income from invesiments in shares ssued by other legal enbities 18 wcluded i drsded incomes
upon drngend collechon

imparment allowances fof eshmaled nsk effects on all lypes of securities are recognized in the Bank's
income statement.

Forgign Excharge Translation

Trangactions denominated n foren curenoes are fanslated inte dinars al official middle exchange
rates as detemined in the interbank curmency market ared sMective at the data of each transaction.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foréngn currenaas ara ranslated nfo dinars Oy agphang the offical
middla exchange rales as determined in the interbank currency markel and prevailing al the balance
sheel dake.

Net fareign exchangs positive or negativie effects anising upon the translation of transadions, and the
assels and liabilities danominalad in foreign curmanclas arg aadited or chargad to he income statemeant
as foreign exchange gains or logsas.

Commitments and conhngent liabilibes denominated in foreign currencies are transtated into dinars by
applying e official middike sxchangs rates as determined in the mterbank curmency markst and
prevailing at the balance shasl data.

Proparty, Inveatment Proparty, Equipment and Intanglble Asasts
intangible Asnats

The Bank's intangible assets are recognized at cosl or purchase price. Subsequent to the iniial
recogniion, intangible assels are atated at cost less accumulaled amortization and impaimmeant 19sses.

Caloulation of amartlzation of intangible aseets commancas it tha manth followang Llhe one in which a
relevant intangible assats was placed intc use or became available for use.

24
Tranalspon of the Apditors' Report savad in the Sortisr lenguege



KOMERCLIALNA BANKA &.D., BEOGRAD

HOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2013
All arnounls expressed in thousands of RS0, wness otharwise slaled.

3.5,

151

A.5.2.

SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Property, Investment Propenty, Equipment and Intangible Asssats {Continued)
Intanggible Assets (Continued)

Amortization of intangible assets is charged to the base comprised of cast net of realdual valua. If tha
resilual value of an asset is immatenal, it is not taken into consideration, ie. it does not reduce the
amedtizahon Dase.

Inlangble assets are amortized on straghl-ling bass using the annual amortization rales ranging from
14.29 to 23.24%.

Fropaty and Equipment
Racogaition and Measurement

Property and equipment are mitizlly measured at cost or purchase prica. Fixed assatas gther than
proparty arg measured at cost less accumulaled depreciation and impairment losees. As from January
2005, the Bank had adepted revaluation method for properties in s ewmarship, In 2013, basad on the
market value appraisal of the Benk's properies performed by a certified appralgar, fair value of
properties was adjusied and effects of the valuation were recognized. The positive valuatlon effect was
recognized within equity, wheress the negative valuation effect was recognized as decrease in
prenvicualy formed revaluation resenves andior expenses of the pernicd.

Cast includes all acquisition-related expenses. Purchased software necessary for the funclioning of
equipment is capitalzed as part of such equipment

In mgtances that pars of a single asset have different useful Jife durations, they are camed as separate
tems (mayor components) of eguipment.

Follewang initial recogniion, the Bank apphes cost modal for subsequertd measurement of equipment
Foliowing initial recognition, the Bank apples revaluation model for subsequenl measurement of
propely.

Subsequent Expandhiture

Cost of spare parl replacement is recognized al carrying value if it is probabie that the fulure sconomic
benefits associated with the respactive spare panl will flaw to the Bank and if the sparg part purchase
price can be measured reliably. Spare parte and servicing equipment are recordad wilhin the income
slatament when used up.

Depreciation

Deprecation is calculated on a straght-ine basis to the cost or revalued amount of property and
aquipment by applying the followang anual rates in onger o wite the cost or revalued amount less
rasiiual value of those assets down in equal annual amounks over Helr usaful lives.

Annual deprecation rates applied am as follows

Buildings 2 5%
Compuer epupment 25%
Furnlture and motor vehicles i0%-15.5%
Leasehaold improvernents and other 4 25%-85.2%

Tranzlation of the Auditors' Report iesued in the Serbian Jngesra
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3.6.

3.6.1.

3.6.2.

3.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continuad)

Property, Investment Proparty, Equipment and Intangible Assats (Continued)
Investment Property

Tha Bank's Investment property is property held to eam rental income andfor for capital appreciation or
tach

An ilem of investment property is initially measured at cost or purchase pnee. Transaction costs are nol
included in the inftial Measurement.

The Bank appies cost method for subsequent measurament of investment property.

Dapraciation of investment property is prowded on a straight-line basis 1o the cosl of investimend property
by appdying the annual depreciation rate of 2. 5%

Invemtories
Inventories

Inwentorlas are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The Benk includes in inventories
assets acquired in liew of or to secure colkection of matured receivables ansing from lcans.

Mo -Cureenit Asaats Held for Saks

Mon-current assats held for sale are assets whose camying amounts can primanty be recovered through
sales and not through further utilization.

A non-curreni assat 15 classified as non-cument asset hedd for saie if the followang criteria are met

An assa for a group of asseds) 5 availabee for Immediate sale in the condion as 19,

Thare is an adopted pian for sakes of non-cument assets and sdivities have already commenced o
achievea the sales plan;

There 15 an aclive market for such assels and the relevant asset is actively pregsant on the markst;
The Hkelihood of prospective sales is high, i.8. it is expected that the sales will be realized within &
year from the date of classification of the relevant item 24 2 non-gurrent asset hedd for sale.

Mon-current assets teld for saks are nklally measured at the lower of the net book value (carrying
amount) and tha market value {fair value) nel of cosis to sell. From the initial clasaification of such assets
as non-current assels held for sake, the Bank ceasas 1o depresciate those assots.

In case of changes to the sales plan. a non-curment assed ceases o be classfied as a non-cument assed
held for sake and is messured 2t the Keer of the following two amounts;

+ Carrying amount of the relevant assat pnor 1o its dasaficalion as a non-current asset hesd for sale
allowing for the accumulated deprecation and impairment that would be recognized had the
rebevanl asset ot been classifisd a8 a nor-currant assel held for sake; and

+« Recoverable amount as al the date of subsequent decision not to sall the relevant asset.

Financlal Indtruments

Classification

The Bank classibes ils financal assets inlo the follwang categones: financial assets camied at fair value
throughn profl and loss, loans and receivabias, financial assets avalable for sale and financial assets

held to matunty. Classification dependgs on the intended purpose for which Lhe finanasl assets were
acguired. The Bank's management dasahes financal investments upon initial recogniton.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUINTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financlal Instruments {Continwed)
Recognition

All regular way purchases or sales of financlal 2asats ara recognized and derecognized on a trade date
bals,

Measuraman!

Financal instruments are initially measurad at fair valua, which includes ransachon costs in all financial
assalts or habilites except for those camed at farr vaiue through profit and boss. Financial assets camed
at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognized at fair value whereas the transachon costs are
chargid 10 the operatng sxpenses within the income statament.

Avalable-for-sale financial and assats camed at far value through profit and Ioss are subsaquently
stated at fair value. Loans and receivables as wali as financial asseis held to matunty are measwred at
amgrtzad cost by applying the effecive interest method.

Subsaquant to mikial recognition, financial liabilites are stated at amortized cost using the efective
intarast methad, except for financial liabllilies carried at fair vaiue through profit and loss,

Darscognilion
Financial assats oease o be recognized when the rights of use of such instrumants have bean realizeg,

expirad, abandoned, andfor cedad. Any night t0 ceded financial assets, created or retained by the Bank
i% recognized as a separate financial as561 or hability

Financsal habilibes cease ta be recogrized when the Bank fuifills the oblgations, or whan the conirachual
repayment obligabon has erther D canceiled, ceded or has expined.

Amertized Cost Measurement

Amorhzed cost of 2 financial agset or 2 liability Is tha amaunt at which an sasat or a liability is initialy
méasured decreased by prncipal repayments made and increased o decreaged by accumulated
amartization by applying the eNective interast method on the difference batwaen the Initial value and the
nominal velus at the insbrument's maturlty date, less any impairment.

Fair Vaiva Measurement

Far valua of inandal instruments 13 an amount for which an asset can be axchanged or a liability settles
batwaen knowhedgeabie and willing parties i an amm’s length transaction

Farr value s delermined by applying tha market nfemalion available at the reporting date and other
valuation rmodels used by the Bank

Far values al cerzin fnancal instruments stated at nominal values approwimate thenr respective
camying values. Such instruments include cash and receivables and liabiditias withowt contractually
defined maturities or fixed inlerest rates. Other recaivables and liabilities are reduced to tha naet present
value by discounting the expected future cash Rows by using current interest rates, In the opinion of the
managemant, due to the nature of the Bank's operations and its generally adopted policies, there are no
signihcant differences between the carrying velue and fair value of the financial agsets and liabilities.,

Faur values of irrevocable Inans and off-balance shest tems are equal to their carrying amaounts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Flnancial Instruments {Continued}
frpairriernt

As at the balance sheet date the Bank reviews financial assels in order o determine whelher there s
irdication of impairment. I here 13 objedtiive evidence of impaiment, the recoverable amount of the
investment is determined. For the purpose of adequate and efficient credit sk management, the Bank
has adopted intemnal bylaws prascribing special policies and peocssdures for ideniihang and managing
bad assets.

The Bank's management assesses recoverability of receivables, ie. alowance for impairmant of
investments based on individual assassment of risk-weighted receivables. Risk-weighted receivables are
all past-due receivabies. The Bank aspessas the colleclible amount of receivables and investments
taking into consideration regulanty in repayment, Rnancial sibuation of the debtors and qualty of
collaterals securinzing the repayment ss well as the contraciually dafined cash flows and histoncal cradit
losses.

The Bank charges allowanca for the assessed impaitment to the expenses of the period in which the
impaiment occured. If in a subsaquent pancd, tha management determines that condilions have
changed and the impaimment no longer exisls or decreases, the previously formed allowance far
impainment is reversed o ncome in profit and loss. Reversal of impaiment allowance cannot result in
the carmying amount of the relevan] asset in excess of what the carrying amount of the asset woukd have
been had the impairment not been recognized,

Loans

Loans onginated by the Bank are stated within the balance sheet at the amaurt of pancipal outstanding,
kess allowance for impaimmer. which 15 based on the assessment of specificaliy-identiied exposuras and
losses that are inherent in the Bank's Woan porfidio The Bank's management applies the imemaly
adopted methodology in the evalualion thenso! based on the fully adopted and implemented LAS 39, as
discosed in Note 4.

Loans that are disbursed in dinars and index-linkad to the dinar-EUR exchange rates, ather cumency
exchange rates or 10 the consumer pricg index are revalued in accordance with the specific individual
loan agreemernits in question. The difference batween the nominal value of the principal autstanding and
e revalued amount i stated within receivables from gans and sdvances to customers, The effects of
such revaluation arg induded under gans and losses on the valustion of aszels and habilities.

Financial Assets
Flnancial Assets Carded A&t Fair Value thwough Proflt and Loas

Financial asssts camed ab far value through profit and loss are financial assets held for trading, A
financial assel is cleesifled into thls category if acquired primarily for sale in the near lerm. Derivatives
are also classified as assats hald for tradng except for those derivatives designated as risk hadging
instrurmnents against Neke. Assets wathin this calegory are classified as current assets. Financial assats
caried at fair value through profit and logs include old foreign curmency savings bonds issued by tha
Repubbc of Serbia ang bank and corporate shares soquired for trading.

Financial Assets Held to Maturity

Heldo-maturity investments are non-derivativa inancial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Bank has the positee intention and abiity to hold to matwity, This categaory of
securbies includes commencial papers issued by logal entilies.

If the Bank decides to sell 3 substanbal portion of the Ainancial assets held b maturity, the enbire
categedy s reclascified 1o assats available for Salk Financial assels held to maturty ane classified as
non=cument asseks unless thair matunbes are due in less than 12 months after the balance shest date, in
which case such assels are classified A% cureni assets.
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3.12.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financlal Assets
Financlal Assets Held to Maturity (Continued)

Financial assets held o maturity are initially recognized at cost. As at the balance sheel date, such
ingtruments zre stated at amortized cost, i 8. Lhe preaent value of tha future cash fliows determined by
applying tha affsctive interest rate inharent in the instrumeant.

Equity Investmants and Other Financlal Agsata Avallable for Sale

Financial assels available for sale are non-derivativa financial assets that are designated as available for
sale or not dassified as lpans and receivables, financial assets held 1o matunty ang financial assets
camed at far value through profl and loss. Available-for-sale financial assets represent financial
instruments miended o be held over an indefinile ime period which may be sold fr hquidity purposes,
due (o he movements in intenest rates, exchangea rates or prices of capital Securbes avalable-for-sale
with fxed matwities for which an actva markat and quoted prices do nol exist are measwed at
amortized cost using the effectve interest method. Financial assets avalable for sale comprise
commargial noles and bonds 1Issued by the Republic of Serbia, shares of glher banks and shares of and
aquity investments in other legal enbties.

Available-for-sale assets are initially measured cost and stated at market value iF known as the balance
shool date, Unrealized gains and losses incumed upon the change in tha market value are stated as
reservas within equity until this financial assat Iz sold, collected or dispesed of. when revaluabon reserves
are tranafamsd 1 Noome o expenses,

In inetances of decreasa in value of inancial agsets availlabke for sale due to objective ewdenca of
impaiment {fong-term and continuous decreasa in fair value over a period longer than 12 months, or
decreasa in valoe of more than 30% of the assals’ cost), accumulated loss recognized within equity is
derecognized from equity and recognized as impairment loss within expengas. although such finencial
assets do not casss 1o be recognized (LAS 39,52 |1AS 3967 and LAS 39.88).

For equity investments the Bank has inlentlen to hold such assels over an ndehnite time. Equity
invesimanis may be sold for liquidity purposes of dug o the movements in market prices. Equity
invesimarts for which there is no active market are maasurad at cost.

Cash and cash Egulvalents

For the purpose of cash fiow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances on
the actounts held with other banks and cheques in the process of ¢ollection.

Managed Funds

The Bank manages lunds on behalf of, and for the account of third parties, and charges fees for these
serices. These items are nat included in the Bank's balance sheel but presenied within off-balance
sheal items.

Taxes and Contributions
Income Taxss

Income 1ax represents an amount arrived at by applying the legally prescribed tax rate to the amount of
profit before taxation stated in accordance with |ASAFRS as adjusted for effects of pemmanent
differances that reduce the preschibed tax rate to the effective tax rate

Currenl income tax is payable at the legally prascnbed rate of 15% on the tax base determined within the
tax balance and reported in the annual corporate Ncome 2 etum. The laxable base stated in the
incomea tax rabum includes the profil shown in the slatulory slatement of income. as adjusted for
differences that are specifically defined under statitory tax rules of the reputlic of Serbia. less any
pragcnbad tax credits.

FiS]
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SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
Taxes and Contrlbutlons (Continwed)
lncoma Taxas {Contlnued)

The tax ragulations in the Republic of Sertia do not envisaga that any tax losees of the cument period be
used ko recover taxes paid within a spacihc camyback peniod, However, current pericd tax losses stated
in tax returm may be used to reduce or alimirate taxas (¢ ba paid in fulure periods bt only for duration of
no onger than fve ensung years. Tax losses incurred prior to January 1, 2010 are available for
carryforward for durauon of ban ensuwing years,

Indirect Taxes and Contributions

Indirect taxes and contricutions include property taxes, value added tax, payrall taxes and contnbutions
charmged 1 amployer and varicus other taxes and contributions paid pursuant to effeclive republic and
local tax requiations. Thasa taxes and contributions ana ingwlad within cther operating expenses,

Deponita

Ceposis are stated 2t the amourts of placed funds which may be increased by the interest accreed,
depanding on the contractual terms agread batwsen the depositors and the Bank The Bank agrees on
interest rates depending on the amount of funds deposited.

Forewgn curency deposis are stated in RSD at the cfical middle exchange rates prevailing as at the
Bralanoe sheel dabe.

Deposits are presented as transaction and cther deposits within the Bank's balance sheat

Equity

The Bank's equity ;5 compnsed of the Tounthng capdal. subsequenty ssued shares, rasenes relained
from eamings, revalualion resenves, retangd earmngafaccumulaled losses and the profit for the year
tess unrealized losses on the secunbes avalable for sale

The Bank's core capital was formed fiom the monatary connbutions of the Bank's founckrs. A founer
carnot withdraw assals contibuted 10 tha Bank's tore capdal.

Employsa Benafits

In sicordance with regulalary reurements i the Repubdc of Sarbwa, e Bank s obligated e pay
contibutions to tax authonties and to vanous slale socal security funds thal guarantee social security
insurance banafits to employeas. These obligatons invaive the payment of taxes and contributions on
behalf of the employes, by the employer, in the amounts computed by applving fhe specific, legally
prescribed rates. The Bank o also legally obligated 10 withnokd conftibutions from gross salaries to
smplovess, and on behal! of il employess, 10 transfer the withheld portions directly to the applicable
gavernmeanl funds. Thase Laxes and confribubons payable on bahall of the employee and employer are
charged to expenses in tha panad in which Ihay arise.

Tre Bank has agreed on voluntary heslth insurance for all members of the Bank's Execubve Board.
Pursuant o the sffective maulations of the Regubhs of Sevbea, such Darfits am raated as salaries.

In 2013, the Bank made prowsions for long-termn liabilities for employee retirement bensfits in
accordance with 1AS 19, The Benk hired a cerbfied acluary to perform evaluation and caleulation of
provisions for the aforesaid purpose.

The Bank doas net have own dafined benofi plans or share-basad remunaration options and there were
no idantified liabililiss thareof 28 of Decembar 31, 2012,

Segment Informadon

The Bank monitors and disciosas information on its opereting sagments — lines of business {Notg 55).
The major portion of the Bank's buslness operations is conducted in the territory of the Republic of
Sarkia and, therefors, the infomation on geographlcal segmants 1s not disclosed. Subsidiaries are not
matenal for e Bank's stand-alond financlal statements. Business operations of subsidiaries are
presentad in the consolidated financial statemanis,
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
¥ay Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Tre management makes esbmates and assumplons that influence the amounts of assets and labibes
of tha Iwthcoming nancial year. The eshmaisd values often ffier from he actually achmived resuits.
The kay assumphons i respect of the future everds and other scurces of estmabons, uncertaintes as of
the: balance shaet date which mprosant nisk from matanal agdustmants to the amounis of balance sheal
fems n tha followang fiscal year ara preserad in the following passages.

Impainment Aliowance

Tha Bank rewews receivabias and other invashmands in oider 10 Galarmung imparrment allowance and
provisions on a3 monthly basis 0 determiery] whether the (mpament losses on recedvables and
invesiments shouk! be recognized n the income statement, the Bank assesses whather there s
informatonfewndence indicative of the existence of a measurable decreasa in the eshmated future cash
flcwe on 8 porfole leved before such lossas can be Wenbfad al an ndradual keved. Informabon indicating
imparment Kssas nclude: regulanty and dafault in laity setiement, IDCal Maked and axnomig
comdions which cause delays in paymenl aic. Management's ashmates of imparment of receivables
and other investments using the estimaled fulure cash fliows are based on adual histoncal losses
incurred on financial assels with similar risk exposure and srmilar impaimment cavses, The methodoky
and assumpbons underlying the process of defineyg the amounts and penods of cash inflows fivm
INYESIMENS ang Mvidred ON AN CRGOIKY DAgHs i Ceoer 10 minemza i diterenda Detwaan tha esbhmated
and actual lossas.

Impairmenl assessment s performed on an indeadual level for each matenally significant loan and on a
portiolo level v malenally kess sigriiicant eans, Tha amounl of imparmernd i indivedually asseased a3
tha differance between tha camyng amount and e prasent value of tha expected futwe cash flows
determingd by dscounbng tha ralevant loan at tha affectree inlanesl rate theneol.

Imparrmeni of matenally less signrficant lcans 15 assessed on a portfolo bamis for each credd ratng
group separatety, given their similar charactensiics in resped of credit nsk in the percentage of migrabon
of the mdavart Craddit ratng growg o 1he W cradit rateg group as adusted Ky the percentage of
collecied loans prevaoysly classified inly V creddt raling group. IF individual impairment assesament of a
matenalty signiicant loan reveals no oiyective evidenca of loan imparment. e impammant thereol s
calculaled as the peicentage of mpament of the whole credd raling group the loan belongs to The
amounts of inflows expecied from a loan are assessad based on ewdence of the deblor's planned
saminge. In case these are determined as insufficent, the Bank essesses the cash fow from collateral
forackosura. The number of days in defaull agams cartan recenaiiss from dedins 15 determingd Dy
consdanng ali redavant ewidence about the bmeling of debhors’ planned aarmungs nflow as wall as
hustoncal defaul of thosa debiors.

Far Value

The tar value of fnancal instrumants for which an actne marke! does nol exusl 1S datermined by
apphving different valuaton methods and techruques For Anandcal instruments with less rading volume,
whose markel pnces are lherefore less Tansparen], determminabon of far value 15 more subjecive and
requres 8 higher degree of assessment uvlilizalon dependig on the nsbument houiddy, rigk
concertrabon, marked vodablty, assumptons about the pnces and other faciors affectng the parcular
financial instrament

Prowigions for Ligabons

The Bark assasses the probatsity of stverga outcoma of the ongomy Inkatons a8 well a5 tha ampunts
probabie o reasonabia 1085 estimates Reasonable ashmalas encompass manggement's judament after
considenng information wnciuding nolificatons, seddement, legal department eshmates, avalable facts,
poientally responsible party identihcation and then possibie contribution (o the resolubon of sukts as well
as histoncal expenence Provision for Ihgation 18 formedirecogned when the Bank has 3 presen
cbigation # will be required 1o setlke ard when & relable estmate can Da mats of the amdud of tha
obigabon though thomush analysis. The requingd amounl of prowsion can change = tha future due o
now avenls of new informaton cbianed.

Matlers thal efhed represent Conlingant hatulitas o f2ul o meet 1he fnlana i prowsonng are disclosed
axcepl 10 ngtances of ramate probatity that econcmic banafits will fow out of the Bank,
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INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSES

a) Intereat Income

interest incame h RSD

From pans

- hinanca and inswance sector
- pubiic erterprses

- coiporate customers

- Ghirepreaneurs

- pubhg gector

- retail customers

= ¢ther customers

From deposits

- finance and insurance secior
Froom saturtios

- inance and insurance sactor
- corperate customers

- public sector

Fromn oiher investmants

- COfpOrate customears

- enMregransurs

- retail customens

interast incame in foreign currencies
From foveign cumency fogns

- Corporate customers

- entrepreneurs

= rr-residents

From forgign currency deposis - non-reswonts

From foreign curmency securities

- public gector

- non-residents

From other investments i foreign cLmencias
- finance and fnsurance sector

- on-residents

KOMERCILIALNA BAMNIKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Yaar Ended Decembar 31,
2013 X132
1,246,701 396,740
381 365 -
8372768 8647012
255 703 223 550
482 2759 487 090G
5,030,139 4,686 282
81 1674
710674 476,332
248 160 116, 704
¥,a55 12,214
1,868 442 2000824
156,303 108,804

2 29
1.079867 B23.684
15,848 534 18,080,845
718,847 745177
083 1213

BT R17 426 668
5628 13,715
1,361,789 851,334
&7 -

11.017 11,528

20 E00

2,186 268 2,050,235
22 034 BO7T 20,130 860

Within RS0 interest income, deferred inlarest income on loans totsled RS0 405,377 thousand, whereas
deferred interest income in foreign cumencaes amounted to RSD 26,438 thousand. Loan orignation fee
income represents 2.37% of the total recognized interest ncome.

Fees that are collected v advance comprising deferred income totaling RS0 808,666 thousand are
presanted within other liablliies within the Bank's balance sheel (Note 41).

The eslimated effect of interest that was not accrued and stated within the Bank's income statement for
the year 2013 amounled to RSD 228,673 thousand and is assocated with suspended interest on loans

and invesimenis subject bo litigation.
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KOMERCLIALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD
MNOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31, 2013
All arnaunis expressed in thousanas of RSO, unless otherwise stated
5. INTEREST INCCHME AND EXPENSES {Continuad)

b} Interest Expensas
Y¥ear Ended Dacembar 31,

213 2012
interes! axpenses in R5D
For borrowngs
- finance and insurance sector 522 69643
For deposits
- fingnce and ingurance sector 814 6838 6556 845
- pudille enterprises 124,111 173,423
- rpirabe customers 1,281,808 497 &2
- Bntrapronsurs 15,010 12,885
- public sector 405,747 B¥1.631
- retail customers 149,352 128,754
- non-=Edents 1,259 1531
Bagzad on other lishifites
- Corporate cusiomers 15 119
- retail cLstomers 5173 2 290
2811636 2,318,024
fnterasl axpenses in foreign currencies
Faor lpang
- fimanca and ingurance sactor 234 352 51,950
- corpocate customenrs 4 583 .
- BNtreprenaUrs 3 -
- public secior - B
- non-resdents Ga7 586 654 288
For daposits
- finance and insurance sectar 157 181 &7.036
- public anterprises 25,838 82,204
- CONPOrate cuslomers 263885 573,140
- plblic sactor 3,743 454
- redail cuslomers 4,540 787 5,458,355
- non-rasidents 2 697 4 574
Basedd on other fiabiklies
- financal and insurance sector 3 178
- NO-rEsIcents 14 10
& 280 900 6.902 540
8,054 536 9,220,554
Kri1]

Transiation of the Audfiors ' Repor? issued it the Serbian lmnguage
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decambar 31, 2013
All amourts expressed in thousands of RSO, unless offenwise statod.

B. FEE AND COMBISSION INCOME AND EXPENSES

4) Fee and Commission Income

¥oar Ended December 31,

2011 2012
Foes and commissions in RSD
- finance and insurance sector 172,404 196 717
- public enterprises 43727 41,840
- corporate customans 1,845,304 2 067 445
- BRlrEpransurs 627043 561,648
- publle sector 145 1.254
- retail customers 2,429 480 2,176,768
- non-residents 126,700 124,984
5347 218 5170657
Foos and commissions In forelgn curmrencies
- finance and INsurance sechor 3,008 1.177
- ¢orporate customers - 12,285
- rétail customens 55,205 51,757
- RicH-rigidents 84 000 £8,058
145 363 164,257
2433 211 5,334,914
b) Fae ard Commiselon Expanses
Yaar Ended Decemnbear 31,
2013 2012
Faag and commissions in RSD
- financial and insurance sector 414 850 324398
- COfpOrate CHStmErs 250,535 245817
- norresidents 14,104 13,229
G739 485 S84 244
Feas and commissions in forelge curmencles
- non-rasidents 248 578 198,204
248 578 156G, 204
8978.081 T80 448
T. NET GAINS / {LOSSES] ON THE SALE OF SECURITIES CARRIED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
¥ear Ended Dacember 31,
2013 2012
Gaing on the sake of sacurites camied at fair vanse
through proft and loss 15,340 2 655
Loszes on the sale of securities camied at far value
throwgh profit and loss - {1,880y
Net gains ort e sale of securities camied &t fair value
through prafit and logs 16,340 776
8. NET GAINS ON THE SALE OF SECURITIES
AVAILABEE FOR SALE
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Met gainz an the sale of 3ecurilies available for sale 1,738 B3 047
24
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9

14

1.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES, NET

Year Ended Decamber 31,

2013 Xz

Foreign exchange gaing 1,440 279 56082 005
Foreign exchange losses (2,357 867 (13,723,287
(257 B18) {A.041 3817

Foreign exchange gains ard losses comprise positive and negative effects of foreign exchanga
ranslation of fransaclions performed in foreign currenciea durlng the year and effects of transiation of
balance sheet items into dinars at oficial exchange rates at each month-gnd.

Calcwiation of foreign exchange gains and losses is conducted and stated at gross pnncipss {foeeign

exchange gains and Kxsses) during the finandal year in actordance with the regulabons of the Natronal
Bank of Serhia.

INCOME FROM DIVIDENDS AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Your Ended December 21,
2013 2012
Incoma fram dividends and equity invesimants 391,724 2251

In 2013 the bank raceved dividend payment fonn its subsidiary bank in Budva, Montenegro in the
amount of RSD 387 587 thousand (EUR 3,400 thousand). For this paymenl, withholding tax was paid at
the rate of 9% in the Republic of Montenegro in the amount of RSD 34,634 |housand (EUR 306
thousand). Net dividend paid amoured to RSD 352 713 thousand, .2, EUR 3.00¢ thousard,

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Yaar Encad Decembear 31,

2013 2012

Other operating incomea 186,815 157217
Collected receivables previously written off 25 506
Gang on the sale of propedty, equpment and Inlangible assats 12138 358481
Winte—ofF of hatuiihes 5,197 3314
Surpluses 1 2.555
Other income 133,744 22,948
337,918 241,022

The most sigrificant amount within other operating income represents rental ncome from lease of
property of RSD 105,544 thousand.

Based on the relsvanl court ruling, within the ilem other income the Bank recognized the amount of RSD

102,201 thousand related to the penalty interest accrued on uncollected leasa racaivables due from
Polltka a.d., Bengrad, This uncollected igase receivable was fully provided for.

Translaiion of b Audiiors” Beport msed in the Serbian language
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2013
ANl amaunts expressed iy thousands of RS0 umless othenwize slated

1%,

IMPAIRMENT {LOSSESY GAING AND PROVISIONS, NET
Year Ended Decambar 31,

2013 2012
a) Losses
IrmpanTment lo5ses par balance sheet assels
- loans and advanges o customerns ¥.037.710 8,336,717
- interest and fee recaivablas 715,148 298,308
- securities hald o matunty 38,144 6,005
- aquily investments and ofher securities availabla for sale - 76,783
- other assets 87345 190,055
Impairment losses per off-balance sheet items 602 322 522 524
Proasions for | for hatalites arising from Lbgatons {Mole 37 a) 13,100 218.528
FProvisions for retiramant benefits (Note 37 b) ¥ 837 45,359
Suspended irerasl 26,603 117 453
8.428,010 7816664
b} Gains
Reversal of impairment of balance aheet aggaty
- lpans and advances to customers 4.503 842 5,458 400
- inberest and feq receivables 204 407 234 856
- securites hedd I matunty 28,648 7073
- edquity investmeants ard cther secuntes avalable for szle - -
- other assets EE 763 &4 537
Reversal of prowisions for losses per off-halance sheet items 576,904 526,510
Reversal of unused provisions for liabiliies anging from
litigations (Note 37 a) 381,870 18,249
Reversal of unused other provisions for employae benefits
(Mote 37 B) 3623 48,920
Collected interest prawiously suspended 15,571 23,411
5,561,432 6,372,365
Losses, net (a-b) (2.866,578) {1,444 200)

Based on the dassification of loans and inveshments in accordance with the requiremants of the National
Bark of Serbia, as of December 31, 2013, |he Bank assessed the special reserve for astimated losses
tased on the Bank's aggregate credit riek exposure.

In accondance with tha NES Deciscn on the Classification of Balance Sheet Assets and Off-Balance
Sheet ems of the Bank, the positive diffevence between provisions aganst patential losses calculated in
hna with the alorementioned Decision and amount of impairment allowances for balance sheel items and
provisions for off-balance sheet itlems calculated in ding with the intemally adopted methodology
represents the amount of required prowsions against patenlial losses and is recorded on & separate
Bccount.

Bagad on the court decision on the firsl partial bankruptcy estate distribution for setkement of the second
payment prichty creditors in the bankruplcy procedure over Jugobarka ad., Beograd. in January 2014,
the Bank collected receivables in the amount of RED 40,435 thousand (Note 27} As at the reporting
date, December 31, 2013 the Bank reversad impaimment alkmance thereof in full amount collected n
accondance with the requirsrnents of IAS 10 "Events After the Reporting Period *

Tranatation of the Auditors’ Raniet isseed in tha Serblan lsnguage
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L 3 IMPAIRMENT (LOSSES) GAINS AND PROVISIONS, NET (Continued)

MOVEMENTS ON THE ACCOUNTS OF IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES AND PROVISONS FOR OFF-

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
s, A
Balance
Intovesl and Sheat
Fee Loans and Equity Other Other Items
—— _Receivables  Deposits Securities Invesiments _investments Assets (Nole37c)  Total
Jma-:gi 2012 1,563,515 11,706,423 467 446,554 XATTA5S 305,242 497632 1T T02.297
Charge for Ihe year 715,145  T432 558 38,144 - ‘805,155  B7345° 602322 B.3BOATO
Decrease (252 407) (43401127  (3B.648) - {563,730) (3BE.7E3) (STE.008) (B.160.568)
Foreign exchange
et 4,355 47 387 444 7328 | ’ 60 258
Write-oifs (10,304} (10,689 - - (736) {2,055 . (23,784}
Cther movemants (15,745} 2808 ‘ - (2 818) 545105 [48.395) 479 943
Halance,
Cecemnber 11, 2012 2,002 560 14 B34 382 4§11 44 G54 3123054 543 G085 AT 647 21438816
_ o s T =
* within) “other aasets” the Bank included negative effects of the cnange in Ine vaiue of assets soguered in ieu of dett
cohection
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Calculation of provisions
a) Special reserve lor estmated losses per
- balance sheet assels 41,008,734 28,535 247
- offt-balance shest tams . B33805 782 289
Total a 41842543 ~ 30317538
b} imparment alowance and provisions calculated n ine
with the internally adopted methodology (1AS 39)
- impairment allowarce for balance sheel assals 20,965.165 17 204 665
- provisions against losses per off-oalance sheet terms AT73 847 497632
Total b 21 438,816 17,702 267
Difference betweer the amounts of calculated impairment
(3] alowance and provsions
- palance sheet assels 20 043 565 12330 582
- off-balance shest tems 360,162 ﬁaﬁ?_
Total ¢ (a - b) 20,403 72 12 615,229
Reserves retaned from earmings for estmated iosses per
‘palance sheet assets and off-balance sheet ners
d) Craated n prior years
- balance shaet assets 15,927 D46 14,077 048
- off-batance sheet items 708,354 08 384
Total d 16,635 440 14.785 440
Total required specia! resenve for estmated losses
e) according to the NBS methodalogy
- balance sheet assels 20, 555,411 13.088.033
- off-balance sheet tems 483108 388 107
Total 21042 518 13.457 140
E _—— =
Maverrents an reserves retained from earmings are disciosed in Note 43
34
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12

13.

14.

185

IMPAIRMENT (LOSSES)/ GAINS AND PROVISIONS, NET {Continued)

Pursuant 1o the reguiations of the Nanonai Bank of Serbia. in adgition to imparment aliowance. the Bank
is oblgatad to form adgitional reserves retained from earmings for eshmated iosses on classifying assets,
which totaled RSD 20556411 thousand In pnor years the Bank created reserves retained from
mmhugnmdmuswmmﬂmmnsu 15927 048 thousand as of
December 31 2013

Pursuant 1o the regulatons of the Natonal Bank of Sertbia the Bank s obligated to form reserves
retained from earmings for estimated losses per classifyng cff-balance sheel tems which totaled RSD
483 108 !housand. In pnor years the Bank Created reserves retained from for estimated losses
per ofi-baiance sheet items totaling RSD 708 384 thousand as of December 31 2013

STAFF COSTS
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Net saanes 2 583 349 2 440 198
Compensations 408,708 471,746
Taxes on salaries and benefits 413 507 454 BES
Contriputions to salaries and benefits T57 473 6583430
Temporary and seasonal employees 54 146 64 628
Ortner staff costs 40.925 62679
4 258 106 4 186 348
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION CHARGE
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Depreciat:cn and amorhzabion charge T2 648 752,356
OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
Cost of materials 460 529 520422
Production serice costs 2.036.080 1.923528
Non-matenal costs (without taxes and contnbutions) 1.615612 1.507 289
Taxes 142 445 87372
Contributions 816687 To4.T48
Other costs 3929 40827
Losses on the sale of property, egupment ang ntangbie assels 42
Losses on disposal of property, eguipment and intangible assels 3149 1672
Shorlages and damages 4 834 7600
Other expenses 400 5868 4% 54T
§519.630 4 933 005

With: item of "other expenses’ (otaling RSD 400 566 thousand, the amount of RSD 339 883 thousanad

refers to the expenses related lo the iost
the hability that was not prowided for (Note 37)

Translation of the Auditors' Report issued in the Serbian language
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15,

16.

17

OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES {Contlnusd)

Within production senvice costs, rental costs for 2013 amounted o RS0 644,915 thousand Rental costs
mostly refer to the operaling lease of business premigas in the amoeunt of RS0 568,131 thowsand.

As of Decermber 31, 2013, commitreents per operaling lease coniracts for business premises for futura
perindls, exciucing value added tax, for 212 business premises with the otal area of 34.565.19 M totaks]
On theasands of RS0

-within a year 455 167
- from one to five years 1,300,045
- over five years 00,511
Total 1 856 324

The Bank recognizes liabilities per operating laase of business premises as reguiar rental ¢oss on a
monthly basis,

GAINS ON VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended Dacamber 31,
2013 212
Gains on e valuation of invastments and recaivables: G 497,855 17,174 843
Gains on the valuation of securties 14,787 41 862
Gains on the valuation of liabilities 479,001 T&7 535
Gains on the valuation of properdy, equipmaent,
investment property and intangible assels 12,260 173
6,945,503 17,986,453
LOSSES ONVALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31,
2013 012
Lossas on the valuation of investments and recaivables: 5573681 7.702 528
Losses on the valuaton of secuntias &, O 14 837
Logses o the valuation of liabilikees 462 464 2,040 489
Galng on the valuation of proparty, agquiprent,
investment property and intangible assets 170,836 4 270
5,216,085 g 4§52 222
Met gains on the valuation of assets and labilities 729,618 A 137 271

Gaingosses on the valuation of assels indude tha cakculated effect of cumency cause hedge againgt
ther foreign cumency nisk.

Gainslosses on the valuabon of secunties indus the effects of educton of secunities to ther markel
walue.

Ganstosses on the valualion of liabiltes include the calcwated effect of curency clauss nedge agamsl
the curmency risk for deposits receved from customers,

Gainsfossas on the valuaton of propary, agqugment, investmenl property and intangible assels are
presented in Mote 20

The Bank calcuates effects of valuation at sach month-gnd during the year and at each transaction date,

Trangiation of the Awiihors” Repcs isaced in the Serbien language
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14, INCOME TAXES

a) Compononts of ircome texas

Year Ended December 31,
2013 Iz
Cument income tax expenseg - (472 448)
Gaing from creation of defemed tax assets
ard reversal of Saferred tax hatiles 87.950 32 BRA
Lossas fram creabon of deferred tax Fabilities
and reversal of gaferred tax assats - (10 853}
B7.950 (450 516}

Bl Numerical reconciiiation batween tax expanse stafed /n the income sialement and tha
product of the accounting resuits muitiplied by the appifcabla tax rate

Yaar Enced Decembar 31,

2013 2012

Profit before tages 4 588,375 4 572 662
Irczorme tax gt the statutory tax rate of 15% 688,256 457 266
Tax effects of tha axpenses not recognized within the tax balance 41,352 42 334
Tax effects of tha net capilal gainsfinsses ] {1,281}
Tax effects of the diference between the tax. purposs and

accounting depreciation and amortizabon of fixed assets 32,010 21,364
Tex oifacts of the transfer prices 1,311 445
Tax affects of income recanclliation (46,245} {1.8200
Tax effects of the interest income from debt secunites issued by

the Republic of Sertva, AP Vogvodina or NBS (5558.255) -
Tax gradit used in te cument year (458 358) {45, BA0)
Tex affect adjustments (used and new ones) (87,250 {21,833
TAX EFFECTS STATED WITHIN THE INCOME STATEMENT 87 950 (450.516)
C. EFFECTIVE TAX RATE 00 2.85

The Bank had no cument income tax liabiliies mostly due to the dedréase in the tax bage for interest
incgma from dabl securities issued by the Republic of Serbia, Aulonomous Provinga of Vojvoding or the
MNatonal Bank of Serbia pursuant Lo Article 25, paragraph 2 of the Corporale income Tax Law.

The Bank made income tax advance payments in the amount of RED 777 491 thowsand in 2013 as
morthly tax liabilities stipulatad by the Intome Tax Law,

19. GAINS FROM CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX

LIABILITFES
¥ear Ended Decembar 31,
2013 2012
Gains from creation of defermad tax assets and decrease in
deterred tax nabilties — change in the statutory tax rate from
108% bo 15% - 14,935
Garns from grealion of deferred tax assets and decreasa in
defemed bax abilities B7.850 17,850
£7.950 32 B8
49
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19.  GAINS FROM CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (Continwed)

The total effect of the change in defermed tax assets Mabiliies amounted to RSD 87 850 thousand and it
includes the elfect of creation of new delemed tax assets in the amount of RSO 32,805 thousand and
decrease in defemad tax liabilities in the amount of RS0 S5, 145 thousand.

Dacambear 31, Docembear 31,

2013 2012
Prowisions for retirement benefits and unused annual leaves 602 13,872
Temporanty urirecognized expenses ansing from impzimmennt
of aszels 32132 19,002
Temporanly unrecogrized expenses ansing om calculated
public duties not pald Fa (11}
Temporary difference batwean the camying amounts and the tax
base of fixed agsats 55,145 -
87,950 32 885

MOVEMENTS ON THE ACCOUNTS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Dgfarrad
Drafervied Tax Mot Tax
Tax Asaain Liablililes Effect
Crpening balances at January 1, 2013 52,655 (S7, 76D 4,896

Creation of tax |iabilnies against revaluahon reserves
based on fair value adjiustment of propanty

Gains from decreasa in deferred 1ax liabilities
(ternporary differences between the camying amounts

{103,002} (103.002)

and the tax base of fined assets | - 55,145 55,145
Gains from creahon of deferred {ax assets (ong-term

provisions par |45 19) a2 - B2
Gaing from craalion of deferred tax assets {Calculated

public duties not pald) 71 - ¥1
Gains from creation of deferred tax asssts (based on

impairment of assats) 2132 - 32132

Balance at Decembar 31, 2013 85,461 (105617} (10, 156}

Bazsd on the far value adiustment of groparty and recogndion of ingrease in the value themaaf within
equity, a deferred tax hability was created agansl revaluation reserves in the amount of RSD 103,002
thousand. For this reason {increase in the carrying amount of property and equipment based on the
appraisal thereol) deferred 1ax liabilities decreased and the decreass was credited o the nal profit for the
year in the amount of RSD 55 145 thousand,

i}y Deferred tax assets — based on long-term provislons for smployes retirement benefits and
upnused annual leaves, temporarily uvnrecognized expansas arising from impaiment of assals
a2nd temporarily unrecognized expenses arising from calculated public dutiex nat palkd

2013 2012
Deartiyrrged Dedarrad

Tax Assets Tan Asaets Galns on

at 15% ot 15%  Creation of

Proviloim Rata Pravislons Rate Tax Anzeta

Lang-term provisions per 1AS 19 280 585 42 088 276,571 41 486 802
Assels based on the calculaton af

pubdic: dubes 545 82 7a 1 71
Asszels based on the impaiment of

assels 355,272 53,281 144 59 21,158 32132

Total 05,461 62 656 A2 805
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19.

21,

GAINS FROM CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (Continued)

ii) Deferred tax liabilities - Temporary difference between the carrying amounts and the tax base
of fixed assets

2013 012 Effect in 2013
Tax
Doterred Detarred Gains on Liabilitos
Amount of Tax  Amount of Tax Reversal of against
Fixed Liabilities Figod Liabilitios Tax  Revaluation
Assels  at 15% Rate Assets at 15% Rate  Liabilities Reserves
Tax Dase B.107 552 - 7523 460
Carrying amount BE116ET . 7 908 521 S .
Difference 704,108 106.617 385,061 87 160 IG5, 1445) 103 002
NET DEFERRED TAX
(LIABILITES) / ASSETS IN
THE BALANCE SHEET (10, 156i 4 898

LOSSES ON DECREASE IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND CREATION OF DEFERRED TAX

LIABILITIES
December 31.  December 31,
2013 2012
Losses on gecrease n gelerred tax assels ana creabon of
deferred tax habiliies — change in the statutory tax rate from
10% to 15% - 23453
Decrease in ioss from based on the decrease of
deferred tax labdtes o - {12,500}
10,953
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
December 31, December 31,
_ 2013 2012
in RSD
Gyro accaunt 22,926 420 21,884 424
Cash on hand 2 524 909 2612 665
25 451 329 24 497 089
In foreign currencies
Foreign currency accounts 11,351,000 14 077.140
Cash on hand 1921714 1.722.481
Foreign currency cash eqguivalents — cheques in the course of
collection 14 836 21,272
Other cash and cash equivalents 230881 = 196119
15686 366 16.016.992
Gold and other precious metals ) ] 98
41,137 794 40,514,180

The Bark's required reserve represent the mmimum deposils set aside »n accordance with the NBS
‘Decision on Regured Reserves of Banks with the Natonal Bank of Sertsa” The calcuiation of the
required réserve in dinars is performed once a month — on the 17th day of the month based on the
average balance of dinar deposits as found In the prior calendar manth. The required reserve in dinars (s
allocated by the Bark n dinars al s gyro account and these funds may be used for liquidty purposes,
The Bank 5 obligated to mantain the average monthly balance on its gyro account in the amount of
required reserve in dinars where. n order to attain the average daly talance of allocated required
reserve. the daly baiance found on the gyro account may be below or above the calculated required
resarve N dinars

Transfation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Sertvan language
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.

22,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contlnued)

The annual interest rate applied to allocated resources found on the regular account used for required
reserves in aguals 2.5%. In 2013 the Bank mainlained the avarage monthly balence in the amount of
required resarye in dinars, i.e. required reserves in dinars were not used at any time,

Within the item "other cash and cash equivalents™ the amount of RSD 2 392 726 thousand refers to the
funde the Bank recerved on s account held with the Central Registry of Securties as collection of
matured Sovernmeart-issusd sscunbies in forsign currendies,

REVOCABLE LOANS AND DEPOSITS
Dacembear 31, December 31,

2013 212
i RSD
Loans based on repo transactions 12,246 700 4,000,000
in foreign currancies
Required reaerve in foreign currency hald with NBS 41,148 420 39,053,502
53,385 120 43,053,502

The Bank calculates required resarve in forekgn curnency on the 17th day of tha month based on the
average balance of foreign currency deposits regislered in the preceding calendar month. Required
resenveg In foresgn currency is allocaled onto a special account hekl with the Nabona! Bank of Serbia and
these assets may be drawn as necassary, Tha Bank is under obbgation to maintain the average monthly
balance of allocated foresgn cumency required resenve n the amount of calculated foreign cuency
required reserve, wherg, for the purposes of realizing average daily balance of allocated required
reserve, the daly balance on the account of required reserve may be below of above the calkulated
fareign cumency requured resenvea.

Foreign curmency required reserve does not accrue intersst Dunng 2013, in accordance with the
Decimon on Required Resarves of Banks with the Nabonal Bank of Serbia, the Bank allooated a certain
porbon of ils fovgign currency reserve in dindns 10 i3 gyno account.

RECEIVABLES ARISING FROM INTEREST, FEES AND COMMISSION, TRADE, FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTHENTS OF DERIVATIVES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
December 31, December 31,

2013 a2
interast fee and commission receivablas in RS0
- intarest 3932088 2232 991
- fees 140,618 142 287
Receivatdes fram Irade in RSD 170 arili
Other raceivables in RSO - rentals 371,664 353,100
Lass: Allwance for impairment of receivables in RSD (1,716,933 (1.284,140)
2,727,607 1,454 406
interas!, fae and cormmission receivablas in foraig Currencias
- interast 345,188 372,268
- fees ¥ 3
Loss Mlowance for impairmant of recelvables In farakgn
CUmencies (285 527} {275 I58)
80 6% 92 935
2 788 178 1.547 342
40
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A4.D., BEOGRAD

MNOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decembar 31, 2013
All arpaunts expressed in thousands of RSD, unlass otherwise stated,

24, LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Decambear 31, Cocwm bar 31,
2013 2012
RS0 Ipeans to cusiomers
Loans per transaction accounts 54705585 5.615,020
Consumer loans 1185521 1,903,601
Working capital kans 47,729,473 48,392 968
Expar losng 2805328 3,076,278
Investment loana 25,897 8924 33485818
Housing loans 33.800.924 30,108 265
{Other loans 45,483 860 44,625 1865
Less: Allowante for impament of RSD boans {11.566,857) {8 538.581)
161895, 703 158,570,555
Forgign currancy foans to custorners
Lcans for the payment of goods imported and agrvices
received from aboand 4 805 145 5,112,910
Crwernighl koans 9.238.017 2170276
Other loans 11,113,981 13933828
Logs. Allowance for impairment of foreign Cumancy loans {3 051,579) (2. 830872)
22105 574 18,377 142
Olher and earmarked foregn curmency deposis
Other foreign cumency deposits 222755 387,143
Less: Allewance for mpairment of foreign cumency deposis {219.911) (227 975)
284 155,168
184, (04,121 177106 865

Cunng 2013, loans matunng up 1o one yaar in dinars angd in foreign curmencies were approved for tha
periods from one menth (o one year at inferes! rales ranging from 0.53% 1o 1 5% per month,

Loans with over one year maturitiss denominated in dinars and in foreign currancies wers approved for g
pericd of maximum 30 years at annual Interest rates ranging from 3 35% {as increased by 1he interest
rate agread upon according to adequale monatacy collateral typa) to 22 5%,

Concantration of ihe aggregate loans approved to cUStomens is prasenied in Note 53

Risks and Uncertainties

The Bank's management reCorded prisasions for all estimated or known credit Asks as of tha date of
issuing the financial statements. The Bank's loan porflio contains @ number of customers that are
invived in the privatization andfor restruchnrg processes. The Bank's an porifolic eceivables were
classifisd based on most recent financial nlormation available, and the expected course of their
respective rastructunmng processes, Unless these fail to result in settliement of liabillies due to the Bank.
the Bank's receivables ara mostly collaterakized by morigagas assigned over property held by deblors,
as well as pledge liens o movables. In the avent that such attempts of collection prove t ba
unsuccesstul, additonal amounts of allowances for impainnent and provisions for contingent liabilities
will be required in the forthoming reponting panocs.
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KOMERCLIALNA BANKA 4.D., BEOSGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts expressed in thousands of RSD, unlass otherwise daled.

25.

25,

SECURTIES (EXCLUDING TREASURY SHARES)
Dacember 31, Dacembar 31,

2013 2012
in RSD
Securitios carried af fair valua through profit and joss
- ghares of banks in RSD 480 Fo8
- cOiporate shares 3,832 5,703
Securilies avaitable for safe
- sharas of banks in RS0 75 75
- corporabe bonds (Tigar a.4., Fingh) 82,812 &7,904
- bonds of banks 1,600 661 1,566 540
- Republic of Serbia bonds and Treasury billg 23,476 B0S 17.221.078
- bonds of local self-govemmenl 51,281 55,080
Securies held o malufy
- corpdvate bonds (ROP BS2 a.d., Beograd) 20206 51,167
Less Alowance for impairment of secunties in ASD (4,611) {467 1)
25211 551 18,964 693
i foreign curmrencies
Sacurtes carmed af fair value through prafit and (oss
- Republicc of Sertna bonds 83,7 208,492
Securitios avaifahie for sale
- Republic of Serbia bonds and Treasury blils 31,848,433 22,176,534
- bonds of foreign banks 49 730 -
3,785,914 22 383 026
57,001,485 41,347 719

Az of December 31, 2013, the markeal value of trading securties portfolio tolaled RSD $8.073 thousand
{December 31, 2012 RSD 212,903 thousand), whereaf dinar dencminated trading securbas scoount for
RS0 4,322 thousand and the foreign cumency dencminated frading secuntes amaounted to RSD 93,751
nousand

The largest investments were made inte the Repuiiic of Saria old savings bonds, in the amount of RSD
83,751 thausand and in shares of the following companies: DIN fatwika duvana a.d.. Nis of RSD 314
thousand, Melalac a.d, Gomji Milanovac of RS0 2,202 thousand, Messer Tahnoges ad , Beograd of
RSD 878 thousand and Zastava promal 8.0, Beograd of RS0 210 thousand.

BECURTIES {EXCLUDMNG TREASURY SHARES)
Avanl for Sale

Ag of Decamber 31. 2013, the structre of investments made in securities avalable for sale was as
ol

In RS0

Republhc of Sadia Treasury bils in the amouni of RSD 13.871.933 thousand. Republic of Serbia bonds
in the amount of RS0 2,604 872 housand: bords from the City of Pangevo budget in the amount of RSD
51.281 thousand, bonds of the company Tigar a.d.. Firod in the amount of RSD 62 512 Mhowssamkd, ar
bonds of the following banks: Societe generala banka a.d.. Beograd in the amount of RSD 1075009
thouzand. Erste banka a.d., Beograd n the amaount of RSD 525,652 thousand and AlK banka a.d., Ni& in
the amount of RS0 75 thousand.

in forgign Curmertcies,

Republic of Sarbia Treasury bills in tha amount of RSD 4,867, 3189 thausand; long-term Government of
the Republic of Serbia bonds in the amount of RSD 26,444 353 thousand, Republic of Serbia old savings
bonds in the amount of RED 334, B85 thousand, foreign bank bonds - Raiffeisen Bank International in the
amount of RSO 49, 730 thousand.

Seguntiss Held to Matunty

The amount of RSD 20,206 thousand enbirely refates to the bonds of the company RDP B9S2 ad.,
Beograd.

a5
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KOMERCLIALNA BANKA A4.D.. BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oecember 31, 2013
All gmaunts axpressed in thousands of RS0, unkss olferwise slafed.

28, EQLWNTY INVESTBENTS [INTERESTS)

Decembor 31, Dacembear 31,

2013 212

Equily nvastmants in subsidianes domiciled in Ihe country 140,000 140,000
Equity investmeants in subsidiary banks domiciled abroad 5,340,884 5,340,888
Equity investments in banks and inanclal organizations 135,867 1362365
Equity invastments in conporate and other legal entities 457 178 451,430
Equity investmenits in foreign entities domiclied abroad 427,331 285,433
Less: Allowance for imparment (445 954} {445 954)
§,054 110 5917011

As of December 31, 2013, equity nvestmants in subsklanes domicaled n the counbry related to
KamBank frvest 2.d.. Becgrad in the amount of RS0 140,000 thousand.

Equity investments in subsidiaries domicled aboard relate 1o inlerests bedd in Komereijalna barka ad.,
Barpa Luka iolakng RSD 2874815 thousand and Komercijaina banka ad. Bukiva totaiing RSO
2,266,273 thousand.

Equity invastmernts in banks and financial matitutions relate to Eurcaxis bank, Moscow [n the amount of
RSD 78387 thousand, AlK banka a.d., Ni§ in the amount of RS0 53,997 thousand, Jubmes banka a.d.,
Becgrad in the amcunt of RSD 1,408 thousand and Union banka d.d., Sarajevo in the amounl of RSD
1.874 thousand.

Equity investments in erterprises mainly refer 1o the following business enlities: 4. oklobar a.4d,
Krubavac amountmg to RS0 324 874 thousand, RTV Politika d.o.o., Beograd in the amount of RSD
A7 634 thousand, Dunay osiquranje a.d., Boograd amounting to RSD 51,182 thouszand and Politika a.d.,
Beograd amounting to RED 35,215 thousand.

Equity investments in foreign entites are assocaled with the company VISA Inc, USA tolaling RSD
343,705 thowsand and Master Card, USA totaling RSD 83,625 thousand.

The allowance for impaimment of other equity iInvestments of RSD 448,954 thousand relates to the ful
{100%} impairment of cost far those equity invesiments that do not have a markat value out of which the
largest amounts refer to the following antitias; 14, Oktobar a d.. KruSevac in the amount of RS0 324 874
thousand: RTV Pglitika d.o.o., Beograd in tha amount of RS0 37,634 thousand: Palltka a.d., Beograd in
the amount of RS0 28,484 thousand; Dunav ogiguranje a.d., Beograd in the amaunt of 26,628 thousand
and Al banka a.d., Ni# in the amount of RED 19,287 thousard.

27. OTHER INVESTMENTS
December 31, Decembear 31,
2013 2012
Other invastments In RSD
- Purchased investments — factoring 159,493 103,282
Advances for acceptances, bills of guaranteas
and paymenks mage upon guaraniees called 1,654,239 1,445 695
Other invastmeants 216, 866 380,005
Lazs Allowance for impaimment {583 708 {268,074}
1,045 BaG 860,208
Other invastmants in forgign currancies
Advances for acceptances, bills of guaraniees
and payments made upon guarantess callad 234,344 2BE 836
Sacured lattars of credit and othear suretiss 1,220, 803 16682270
Other investments 258641 2527863
Less Allgwanca for impairment (2 138 .348) {2,208, 7813
1,862 322 2 266 988
TOTAL 2,929 218 3.227 806
43
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cecamber 31, 2013
All smounts expressed in thousands of RED, unless stherwise stated.

a7,

OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Advancas for acceptances. bills of guaranteas and payments made upen guarantess called of RSD
1.654.238 thousand mostly rafer to the payments made upon guarantees called in the amount of RSD
1.298 486 thousand.

Secured lattars of credit and other sureties of RSD 1,220,883 thousand are mostly associaled with cash
cover collateral placed o secunitize the guarantes approved al the requast of the customer TE Mikols
Tesla Obrenovac d.o.a., Cbrenovac in favor of Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt for the ulimate benahciary
Alstom Power, Warsaw, in the amounl of RSD 573,211 thousand. az well a8 deposits placed with foreign
banks as collaterals for Visa and master card btansactions. Deposit b secunize Masier camd
transachons placed with Dewtsche Bank AG, Frankfurt amounts to RSD 431,435 thousand Deposit to
secunitize Visa card transactions placed with Barclays Bank PLC, London amounts to RSD 216,247
thousand,

Within other investments denomingte din dinars, the largest portion refers o the nominal value of
discounied bills of exchange totaling RSD 285028 thougand whereas out of other investmernts
denominated n foresgn  curmencies the largest portion of RSO 1,654,239 thousand acoounts for
receivables due Jugobarka a.d. Beograd in bankruptey prowided for in the amount by RSD 45,435
thaousand below the full amount (Maote 12), which was the amount collected form Jugobanka ad. in
bankruptcy during January 2014

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Decamipar 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Licenses and software 1387 741 1,188 177
Intargitse assets in progress 10,420 48 837
Less Actumulated amkrhzaton (B70 718} {6E12.276)
537 445 500,428
Movements on the account of intangible assats
Intangibta
Licensas and Apsats in
Software Progreas Toal
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2012 1168177 A5 537 1212714
Additions - 185.447 165,447
Tranzfarg 231 554 (231 56d) -
Balance @t December 37, 2013 1,257 7d1 10,420 1.408 161
Accumulated amortization
Balarce at Decamizar 31, 2012 612,276 - 612,276
Charge for the year 2013 258 440 - 258 440
Balance at December 31, 2013 §70.716 - 70,718
Net Book Value:
- at December 31, 2013 527 (26 10,4240 537 445
- ak December 31, 2012 553 901 48 537 500 438
44
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29,

KOMERCIJALMA BANKA &4.D., BEOGRAD

PRCPERTY, EQUIFMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements on the account of proparty, squlpmant and investment property

Cost

Balance, December 31, 2012

Addilions

Tranefars from construction in
MOgMss

Trangtar from investrent
poperty

Impasment duse 1o Kvee mejeune

Duaposal and retinenenl

Appraisal (revalualion) norease

Appraizal {revalualion) decroage

Balance, Dacembar 31, 2013

Accumulated Doprocistlon
Balance, December 31, 2012
Charge for the year 2013
Transler from investimant
PrOpaTty
Impaifment due to fivoe maews
Cispoaad and retiremeni
Appraizal (revalualion) crease
Appraisal (revalualion) decreasa
CHher

Balance, December 31, 2013
Mgt Book Value:
it Decembar 31, 2013

it Decambar 21, 2012

Conpinaction Inrvésietrrvdn

Property Equaipmnt in Propress Proparty Total
5,765,101 2 705,098 50,424 1,807 18 10,510, 245
- - 1,006 523 - 1,006,523

287188 300, 50 (965 804) 259,195 -
154,350 - {154, 3509 -
{27 BOG) - - - (27 .80E)
(.74 (112,518} - - f116.3681)
ar2.450 - - (52 .000) S20450
{191, BOK) - - (181, 808)
6,955,738 3082884 91 063 2,000,561 12.110, 247
1.031.410 1,889,510 181,483 3102403
147,364 5371 - 33,116 534,208
20,755 - - (20, F55) .
(5.643) - - - 3649
(2,823 (107 323} - - 1110, 246)
226,002 - - £1.837) 224,255
23161h - - - (23817

. 669 - - B0
1,345,437 2,136 579 152,007 3724023
5,550,302 976.306 91 063 1.808.554 8,386 224
4,733,691 506 428 50,434 1,726,233 7,416,848

The Bank hired an exiernal cerlified appraiser to parform appraisal of the following assets;
- proparty owned by the Bank and used for business purposes and

- inyastment property.

Positive appraisal effects were recognized within equity wheeas the negative appraisal affects were
récognized as decrease in the previously formed revaluabon reserves andioe sxpenses of the period.
Hirwover, increase 15 recognized in the income statement up to the amount in which the revaluation
decrpase for @ parbcular asset that had previously been racognized as an expensa i the income

statemant iz revearsed.

The appraisal effects of the properties owned by the Bank;

Froperty

Property used for bugingss purposes

Investrment property
Total

Total

Incoma Balance Appraizal

Statement Sheut Effect
{120.773) (24.438) {145.212)

12 260 711,118 723379

(108,513 86 A0 &78 167
{50.183) - 150,163}

{158.676) 566,680 528.004

48
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KOMERCIJALMNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 34, 2013
Al amoums expressed i thousands of RSO unfess olhorwise stated

29,

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY [Continuad)

a) Investimint Property

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank stated wwestment property as totaling RSD 1,808,554 thousend
compised of leased aut pramisses,

Pursuant to executed iong-term lease agreements, in 2013 the Bank ransfermed to investment property
building prepetes (Sabac, Lovéenac and Negotin] with The net book value of RSD 257 492 thousand,
which account for the larges! porion of meresse in investment propery in 2013 (RS0 289,195
thousand).

By acirvabng part of the investment property at the address of Makedonska 29 in Beigrade for its own
purposes in 2013 the Bank made s transfer to its own property (business premises) with the oost of
R3D 133,595 thousand. Revaluation decrease thereof amaunted to RSD 8 747 thouzand.

As of Decembar 31, 2013 the net profit reallzed form Investment property amounted to RSD 50,041
thouwsand:
Total Total Rental

Property Araa In m? Expanses _  Income Net Profit

Belgrade, Makedonska 29 5553 {30,299 72,085 41,765
NIE, Wrtiste new D building 1 815 (556 4,081 3,525
Nig, TPT Kalza 85 (7o) 1.829 1.030
Belgrade, Omiadinskih brigada 19 15,218 (14,172} 15,765 1.593
Sabac, Majur, Obilazni put bb 1263 751 1,735 884
Lovéenac, Marsala Tita bb, 48 880 [1.808) 3432 1,824
Negotin. Save Dragovica 20-22 858 (815} 335 (481)
{48 201) 90242 50,041

In December 2013 the hired extarnal cerfified appraiser paformed the valuation of investment property.

The carrying value of investment propery as of December 31. 2013 amounted to EUR 15,776 thousand
{equnalent 1o RSD 1,808,554 thousand)

The appraised value of investment property is provided in the table below

Carrylng Appraised Fair Value

Amount ln Varance
Eroperty Area in m® RSD ‘000 In EUR'000 In RSD '000 In RSO '000
Beograd, Makedonska 29 5,553 853,354 7.531 863,354 -
NI, Vrtidte new D building 1,816 25,336 240 27,514 2,178
NS, TPC KalZa 85 35 505 426 48,837 13,232
Baagrad, Omladiskih
brigada 19 15,218 628,687 6.201 710.781 82,064
Sabac. Majur, Otwlazni put bb 1,263 40,045 asy 41.042 897
Lavéenac, Markala Tita b, 46,880 173,109 1,510 173,109 -
Maguatin,
Save Dragovita 20-27 658 42 418 a7 42,418 -
1,808 554 16,835 1,907 055 98,501

Investment property positive appraisal effecl of RSD 98,501 thousand was not posted given the cost
msthod the Bank has elected for accourting for investment property in its accounting policies.
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts expressed in thousands of RSD, unless otherwise stated

29. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

b} Property

The Bank nas no buddings assigned uncer mortgage as collateral for the repayment of borrowings

As a result of incomplete land registers as at December 31 2013, the Bank did not have titie deeds as
procf of ownership for 25 buildings stated al the net book value of RSD §10.607 thousand. The Bank's
management has taken all actions necessary 10 obiain the appropliate property tities for these buildings.
The Bank hrred an incependent cenified appraiser to perform a new valuation of property observing ail
the relevant 1AS requirements. The negative 2013 apprassal effects were recognized as expenses of the
period, while the positive apprassal effects were recognized within equily

The appraised vaiue of property Is prowided in the table below

Carrying Appraised Fair Value
Amount in Variance
Property Area in m* RSD'000  InEUR'000 InRSD 000 _In RSD ‘000
Beograd Makedonska 29 12532 2,105531 17978 2061166 (44, 385)
Beograd Kralja Petra 19 5.358 553 504 6330 725,684 172 180
Beograd,

Svetog Save 14 378 477 687 4 B65 557,734 B0 D47
Beograd,

Svetogorska 42-44 3333 385.320 4,796 545824 164, 504
Sabac Jevremova 2 1210 135,484 1,100 126.108 {10 378)
Krusevac Trg tontana 1 2,959 93,045 1,400 160,468 A7 454
Other properties

{79 buildings/premises) 1206968 10,266 1,176 870 148,725
TOTAL® 4 958 538 48 736 8 _,?.5? 883 578 167

* The tatal camyng amount does nol include ieasenold improvements amounting lo RSD 202 418
thousand

The appraised fair value of property as of December 31 2013 wotaled EUR 46 736 thousand (equivalent
te RSD 5,357 883 thousand)

Based on the annual mventory count, permanently useless fixed assets with the net book value of RSD
2925 thousana were disposed of and derecognized

30, NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND ASSETS FROM

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
December 31, December 31,
00 020 w2
Man-current assets held for sale 71,630 78,763
71.630 78,783

Tne Bank's management is taking all the necessary measures n orcer to realize sales of the assets held
for sale In the course of 2013, two buldings were sold: business premises in Brandevo and Sviljig ana
agulgubmdmﬁmumdiapmuﬂunmmwuwmwodmbmw
performed

TMM'smmmmmﬂMWMMnmpuﬂm
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NQTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 31, 2013
Al amounts exprassed i thousands of RS0, unkess oherwise staled.

3. NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND ASSETS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
Based on the assessmant of the fair value of non-current assets held for sale performed by an expert
team. in 2013 the Bank decreased the valus of buildings located in Varwarin and Ratanj in its books of
account by RS0 2.237 Ihousand.

Mor=currant assets held for sake:

Canrying Carrying
Amount at Amount &t
Decembar 31, Dacembar 31,
Property Areainm® 2013 2012
Branifevs, business pramises 21.08 - 450
Jasika, business pramises T5.87 &1 &11
PoZarevac, M Pijade 2, Dusiness pramises 78082 31,83 31,838
Poiarevac, M.Pijade 2, business premises B80.586 26,345 26,345
Raan), garage 15 - 26
Belgrade, Toda Jovanovida 7,
siness premises 24 05 2,213 2.213
Vrbas M. Tila 48, business premisas 14556 4,688 4 628
Varvarin, M. Mannovida, busingess pramises 207 5534 D144
Swrljig, ugao D. Trifunca | HadFidews, busifmss
premises 128 - 4 417
71,630 T8 783

n DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Decambar 3, December 31,

23 2012
Defermad tax assats - 52 655
D=ferred tax labilites - (57 ,756)
Defarred tax assats, net - 4 BoE

Deferred tax assets relats to the tax credits based on the xable lemporary differences in th_e ra:spachua
amounts of long-tarm provisions as per 1AS 19, impaiment of assels and calculated public dulkes nol
paid, details of which are disdosed in Note 1§

In lne with paragraph 71 of lAS 12 “Income Taxes,” the Bank stated deferred lax assets and daferrad
tax liabilihes at nel prnciple (net deferred tax kabilties are disclosed in Note 40).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

All amounts exprassed in thousands of RED, unlass olterwize stated.

32,

OTHER ASSETS

Other recalvables In RS0

Advances paid for curment assels

Advances paid for pemmanent inyesiments
Recovables from employeas

Receivables for prepad taxes ad contritudions
Receivablas for prepaicd incams (axes

Cither receivablas from operalions

Suspense and temporary acoounts

Reacavablas in setiament

Less: Allowanca for imparment of ather recaivables

Other receivables in foreign currancies
Recevables from employeeas

Crther recevables from operations

Suspanse and temporary accounts

Recewvables in saitlament

Less Allvwance for impaimment of ofter redawables

Propaymants in ASD
Deferrad receivables for accrued nterest

Defarred expansas for labilites at amonized cost using

effecive irterest rale
Deterad other expenses
Cther prepayments

Prepayments In foraige curranclas
Deferrad recaivables for accrued iterest

Inventories

Invanlones of matanals

Inventones of tools and fixtures

Agsels acgured in veu of debt collection
Fixturgs in use

L ass: Allowance for impairment of assets acquired in lieu of

detat callection
Lass: Allowance far impaiment of inventeties

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Decembar 31, Decamber 31,
_.__ 2013 2012
52,647 28762
15121 51,4789
4404 1,281
2.858 3182
F12.700 12,784
264 EB50 231 900
608, 508 188,710
2688270 547 605
(272518} (53 228)
4 078 641 1,021,935
42 18
336 687 98,190
2,256 174
323250 228,472
(135 733) (127,697
526,512 198,157
4295 268 4096 147
196219 a0 497
171129 191 163
33 -
758 750 7I7 807
105576 135,112
105 676 135112
54 586 26,147
1.445 1,220
1,968,810 138 522
101,845 130,024
{141.357) (123,607
{101,845) (130,024
1.883.484 1,238,262
7,348.063 3,3?g,293

Within recevabies in seltement iclaling RSD 2,688,270 thousand. the largest portion of RSD 1.718.750
thousang accounts for recenables fom purchase and sales of foreign cumencies in the foreign
exchange markel, the amcunt of RSD 416,533 refers to the receivables due form the insurance
company Dunay osiguranje a.d.. Beograd fyr collective life insurance of employeas, and the amount of
RSD 545.105 thousand refers to the recelvables daimed in legal suits won aganst the customers
company Takowo a.d.. Gomji Milanovac (of RS0 336.020 thousand) and KMS Cyprus LTD (of RSD

209,085 thouzand].
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KOMERCIJALMA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oecamber M, 2013
Al armounts expressed in thousands of RS0 uitess otherwise slated.
32, OTHER ASSETS [Continued)

Tangible assats acguired in liea of debt collecbon with the net book valug of RSD 1 827 453 thousand
partain to the follevang

Tangibie azsals acguired i heu of debi collechon for the past 12 months

Acquigition
Descriptlon Area in m® Value Date
Wid, Cajnifka bb. residential and ancilary buildings 82574 11.515 IA23
Mi3, Sienicka 1. commercial building and warehouse 1.452.73 14178 31042013
Cupna, Aiskze Santica 2724, apartment 72.40 g24 16804203
N, wana Gorana Kovadita 31, apartment 434 58 0656 171042013
Kig, Ivana Milubinovica 30, business pramsey 438.38 5,048 230442013
Sombor, Apatinski put 56, family house 181 1,064 217052013
Waljevo, Donja Grabovica,

residential and commercal building 200 4 618 121062013
Wranic, Milijane Mati¢ 2, commercial builkding,

ancillary Duiklings and land 10,584 24 2751 QEOF2013
Wihpole, cestaurant and larskd 133 2,483 14062013
Leskowvat, Kralja Petra |, commercial building and land 1,157 5,863 HWO42013
Ni§, Triglavska 31, apanment T9.80 3486 26007213
Wi&, Bulevar 12 februara, warehouse — ancillary

Building 2,878 83,069 01082013
Nis, Comjomatejgvadka Vil prilaz bly, 2 aparments 113,99 228 29/08/2013
Mi&, Radoja Dakita 54, stare 700 6075 2302013
Kulz, Zelaznicka bb, business premisas. warahouse,

PowEr S bEtaticn 7.959 26,071 221142013
Vianje, arable field, category 2 vineyard 2,339 1858 2H N3
Mladenovac, category 2 filad and forest 1,142 506 1122013
Becgrad, RadniEka 22. sales 50w room and seracing

premises 719052 638,720 1811212013
Prijepolje, Karosewina, saw mill 450 1,126 AMM22013
Total i 845 160
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Alf amouris expressed in housends of RS0, unless othanwise stated

3z

OTHER ASSETS (Cantlhuad)

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Tangible a58als acquired in hau of debi collechon in prior penods

Description

fur, Novi Pazar, housa and calegory 3 orchard
1.C.P Krusevac, commarcial building
Soko Banja, cottage, production plant,
family reswlermal bulding
Soko Banja, aratle land {orchard, helds)
Beograd. Baje Prvijiarina 53, commeancial buiding
Nowi Pazar, Ejupa Kurtagica 13, house
Majur, Tabanovalka, category 4 arable field
Mladenovac, category 3 arable fisdd
Prokuplje, Maloplanska ¥, two buildings and land
Obrgnovac, Mislodin, arable field
Gnjilica, category 7 arable held
Hatel President, Cadak, at Bulevar aglaboden;a bb
Residantial building, Catak, at Ratka Mitrowia &
Mowi Pazar, Kej skopskin Zrtava 44, sione
MNowi Pazar, yard and category 4 meadow
Tival, MrGavac — residential building, andillary
faclities in construction and garage
Tutin, Budz calagony 4 forest

NBGD, Milentja Popawda 5b, apartment MZ 52 no.1
NBGD, Milentja Popaviéa 5b, apartment MZ 52 no.2
NBGOD, Milentija Popoviéa 50, apartment MZ 52 no.3

NEBGD, Milentija Popowida Sb, apartment | 52 no.5
NBGD, Milenbja Poperata Sk, apartment 11 52 o8
Tubin, Ostrovica, foresl, feld and pasture

Mali Fokarevac, Yaliko polje, category 3 and 4 fields

Mur, Movi Pazar, foresl, field and orchand
Budya, category 4 forest

Prijavor, catagory 4 forest

Residenbal buikling Galathea

Tedal 1l

Acquisition
Area inm’ Valus Date

1,180 5,535 QEfQA2012

12 835 48 Sa2 80852012
1944 24,954 QUQs2012
5,740 83 ares 35335 CGa2012
27852 67 320 2HERPMZ
138 80 4010 240712012
1445 ha 1.671 10082012
16,623 274 2211720142
480 314 11062012
10.017 1,051 1HG 202
2638 15 11/06/2008
227892 113,882 12/02/2000
185 3,706 121052008

82 895 3435 27002006

1ha 24 ares Kk rj 26f11/200
277 5512 231272010

8,292 07 2841142010

87 22 800 2411282010

170 44 552 2411282010

173 45,314 24122010

171 44 K14 241212010

175 45 862 24122010
110,782 L | 2007012
21,915 328 271092012

KER= 1 °% 43709 1210772011
874 13,632 171062011

1 B85 11,087 1710672011
825 38214 2111172011

880 488

In 2013 far the Bank changed wlilization purposa for three properbes totaling RED 125,031 thousand
fbuginess prermses, two in New Belgrade and one in Nig) into premisas for used for performance of its

own Business aclivily.

Tangible assaiz acquired in feu of debl coliaciion for the past 12 months - Equipment

Dascription
Wranig, equipment — producto lires

Tatal i1l

Translation of the Audiicra' Repor! isgued in the Serbian language
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31, 2013
Afl amounts expressed in bousands of RS0 unlass othanwise sfafed.

¥

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Tangwie assals scquired i fieu of dell collection in prior penods — Equipyment

Acquiaition
Description Yalue Dats
KruSevac, mavables {machinery, fumilure, squipsment} 45,243 110682012
Ni% 1 Soko Banja, movabies {coffee processing ling, transponers
ardl cleaning equigment) 3,701 MIOTR2012
Paratin, caffee roasting hne 11.018 3111202012
Tolal v 90 D52
TOTAL {net book value} | + [+ 1+ Iy 1,827 453

Tangible assets acquired in lisu of collection of receivables within a year totaked RSD 858,003 thousand
as of December 31, 2013 and referred to bulldings and land (forest) securitizing the Bank's recgivables
from customears based on loans approved.

For the aforementioned properties, the Bank holds ownership bes. Tha Bank's management 15
undertaking actions to sell such property.

During 2013, the Bank impaired tangible sssets acquired in lieu of collection of recevables (seven
properhes; five sparments in new Balgrgda, commercial building in Vrani¢ and a housa in Nowi Pazar)
based o the far value appraisal performed by the Bank's expert team in the total amounl of RSD
17,750 thousand.

In sccordance with NBS regulations. the Bank is under obligation to dispose of for langble assels
acquired in lieu of collection of receivablas up to December 30, 2013 or to deploy themn of A5 own use
within twelve months of the date of acgquisihon.

In accordance with amenced NBS ragulations in effect as from December 31, 2013, the Bank is under
obligation to dispose of for tangible assets asquired in lieu of colleclion of receivables up 0 Decamber
30, 2013 or to deploy them for its own use within three years from either the underylng recenable
malurity daie or the date of acquisition of such assets, in the event the asset acquisition date | earlier
than the undarying receivable maturily data.

In the event that the prescribed deadline is excesded the Bank must make a full provigion for eslimated
loszes thenaon.

Transiation of tre Aocitoed” Raport insped int the Serbisn languoge




NOTES TOD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decambear 31, 2013

Al amounts expressed i thousanos of RS0, unfess otherwiss Stated.

33

TRANSACTION DEPOSITS

in RS0
- finance and insurance secior
- puidiG gntsrpnses
« porporate customers
- ErirBensUrs
- public sector
- retad cLUSHomers
- nonHesicents
- registered agriculurz! producers
- glher customers
38785175
I foreign cUmencies
- finance and insurance sector
- public grgrpnses
= GOHpOrabe Customens
- BNIrSIrereurs
- public sector
- retail customers
- npr-rasidents
- registered agncultural producers
= Glfer CLUBiNTers
13431203

HOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

December 31, December 31,
2013 2042
7.871822 82 559
3,990 425 285231
15,203 645 12 567 931
2,156,416 1,518 444
17.338 42 879
7,066 609 5535428
215136 157 962
1,496.911 1,265 4684
1,668 673 1,452 445
38 7BS 175 25415024
1,133,046 783 T
173,185 185 144
5,408 485 T,028.121
228 843 187,079
1878117 1,383,082
3,358,756 2 558,638
27 488 1,165,728

T3 313

432 405 568,301
13,431,203 13,920,852
53,217,378 40,338,776

Demand deposits in dinars represent balances of transaction deposits of enlemases and other legal
entiies Baszed on the Decizon on Imares] Rates for the year 2013, these deposils wera nberagl-
beanng Depending on the level of avarage monthly balance on fransaction accounts of customers. the

interest rates ranged from 0.25% {0 1 3% annually

Demand deposits of corporale customers and noc-residents denominated in foregn cumences ara non-

interes1 bearing except for specifiic business arrangements.

Dvnar demand savings deposits placed by ralail customers were deposited at an intarast rate of 0 15%
annually. Foremgn currency demand savings deposits of retail customers were placed at an interest rate

of 0.15% annually far EUR deposils, i e 0.10% annuslly for deposits in other corrancias.

Transiation of tha Audifors’ Report sed in the Serbdan Jangoage
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCLAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2013

Al aroguanils axprassed in thousenids of RS0, vnkess othenwise sialed

34.

OTHER DEFPOSITS

KOMERCLJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Dacember 31, Decamber 31,
2013 2012
Other deposits in RED
Savings deposits 3,343 612 1,828,785
O posits for loans approved 200 401 344, 192
Special-purpose (earmarked) deposita 3,776,033 3,628 670
Cthar deposts;
- finance and inawrance sector 715,513 4,979,525
- pubhe anlerprises §12 459 811,005
- SOfporate customers 4,082 753 10.585 275
- itrapraneurs 191,465 56,650
~ plbhe sector 173.895 339,343
- retal cusipmers 41 989 22102
= rer-redsclents L T
= Qther Customers & 153 768 £.695 334
19,624 936 28,2591 982
Other deposits it foraign currencies
Savings deposits 165,597 584 147 512 464
Daposits for loans approved 1,727 288 2,354,006
Speclal-purpose (eamarked) deposits 1,585 322 1.734 876
Other deposits.
- ingnce and mawance sechor 6,055 118 5,235,630
- b enderpriges 627,353 2,432 538
- corporate customers 4,870,618 6,331,689
- gntrapranaurs 10.875 34 570
- public sector 2437 2425
- nonesidents ®17 a10
- other customers 23685736 1,212 676
1827552210 166,801,986
202 380,165 195 183,968
mer it

In 2043, short-term dinar deposite of corporate cusiomers were placed at annual interes! rates ranging
between the key policy rate less 4 percenlage points for deposits placed up to 7 days to key policy rale
less 1 85 percantage paints for deposiis placed up to a year annually.

Shorl-term foreign cumency deposits of corpodate customers were placed at an interest rate ranging
betwean 0.25% and 3% annually for EUR deposits and 1.75% annually for deposits in other currancies.

Long-term dinar deposits of carporate cuslomers were placed at an interast rale determined by the
amount of the National Bank of Serbia key policy annual rate decreased by 1.7 percentage poirds,
wheveas those denominated in foreign currency acorued inlerest at the annual rate of 1.55% for other
currances and 3.25% for EUR.

In 2013, short-term dinar deposts of corporate customers indexed to EUR exchange rale were placed at
interesi rales ranging from 0.7% to 1.7% annually.

Long-lerm dinar deposits of covporate customars indexed to EUR exchange rate were placed at the
intarast rate of 2% annually.
il Deposits

In 2013, short-tarm dinar deposits of retall customers were placed at ntarest rates ranging from &.5% to
B.5 % annually, while foreign currancy shor-term relail depasits acerued interest at rates from 0.25% 1o
2. 75% annualy.

Long-berm dinar depesits of retail customers weare placed atinterest rates ranging from 5.75% to 10.25%
annually. while foreign cumency short-term relail deposits socrued interest at rates from 1% to JBS %
annually

Translation of the Auditora’ Regon fasoed in ta Sariian language




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA &4 [, BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All ampunts expressad in thousands of RS0, uniess ofherwise stated.

35, BORROWINGS

Borrowings recelved in RSD
Crwemight [cang
Otheer finarwzial hakilities

Borrowings recwived in foreign currencies
Other financial hatxalibes 0 foreign currencies

Dacember 31, Decembar 31,
2013 202

1,239,835 249 478

44 174 21,741

1.284.104 271217

335 881 368,047

335,81 85047

1,618 880 637 264

Cwemight koans rafar b the shart-tenm loans matuing within 7 daye at the interast rate batween 4% and
7.5%. The breakdown of the largest creditors for owvarmight [gans is provided below.

Creditor

ADOC d.0.0., Beograd

JP Stars Planina, Knjakevac

Folitika Stampanja d.0.0., Beograd
MALEX-CITY COPY SERVIS d.o.o., Beograd
Sawva Osiguranje a.d.¢., Beagrad

Qither craditors

Decombaer 31,
20121

§23.000
172 803
55,600
45, 500
30,000
112,232
1,232,935

Other financial liabilies in foreign currencies mostly refer to the payments not made based on lhe
recaived proceeds from abroad in the amount of RSD 325,013 thousand.

3. INTEREST, FEE AND COMMISSION FAYABLES AND
CHAGE IN THE VALUE OF DERIVATIVES

Intersst, fee and commission payaiies In RSD
and change in the valua of dorivatives

Interest payaie

Fees and commisgions payable

Interest, foe and commizsion payablas in forelgn currencies
and change in the value of derivatives
Inteerezst payablka

3T, FROVISIONS

Provisions for potential losses arising from libgabon

Provigions for amployee benefis (IAS 19)

Proviziong sgainst potential losses per commitments
and contingent liabilines {(off-balancea sheet ileme)

Daecember 21,  December 31,
213 2012
243,160 171,676
10024 11,893
253,184 183 869
2,704 & 041
5.041
255, 888 188 810
Decambar 31, December 31,
3 Flg
10500 1557 557
280 585 276,571
473 647 497 612
785 132 2.331,780
¥

Transfation of the Augitors’ Report issuad in the Serbies Enguade




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A}, BECGRAD
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decemier 31, 2013
Al srraunts sxpressad in thousands of RS0 utass otherwise sfalod.

. PROVISIONS (Continued)

Movements on accounis of provisions
December 31, December 31,

2H3 2012

a) Provislons For potential kogses arising from litigation
Cpening balance 1,567 55T 1367278
Chargs for the year {Mote 12 a) 13,100 218,528
Ralezaa of provisions during the year (1,178,087} -
Raversal of provigions {Mote 12 b (3081.670) {18,248}
Balance, end of year (Note 48 b) 10,900 1,557 557
b) Provisions for retirement benefits and unussd annual

leaves (vacations)
Cpenwg balance 276,571 276141
Charge jor the year —annual leaves (Mote 12 a) T.B37 489 358
Reversal of provsions — retirement benefits (Note12 ) (3629 (48,929)
Balance, end of year 280 585 276 571
¢} Provieions for potential losses per commitments

andl contingant liabilities
Cpening balandea 497 632 502 017
Reversal of provisions (Note 12 (23,885 (4,385)
Balance, gnd of year (Note 48 k) 473 647 497 632

&)  Commeant an movements on prowsions for hbgations

} Based on the Supreme Appeilate Coun revised ruling during 2013 1he amount of provisions in
respect of the legal sut aganst company Takown a d.. Gomji Milanovac tolabng RSD 1,124,857
thousand was:

- reversed i e amount of RS0 380,770 thousand due to coldection made (the total amoumt
of reversal of provision based on collechbon ameounted to RS0 281670 thousand as of
Decembear 31, 2013},

- released in the amount of RSD 744 087 thousand for the refund of this portion of the Bank's
recaivable for redeliberation dus 10 the altered method of interes! caloulaton;

- and the Bank's receivables for newly determined penalty of RED 336,020 thousand was
recognized based on the new ruling which is expected to become final and enforcaable at
ther end af 2014

iij Based on the final and enforceable adjudication of the Commercial Count of Belgrade, in
December 2013 the Bank made a payment tolaling RSO 757 070 thousand in respect of the
legal suit agawnst, the custormer Ineks Inlereksport a.d., Beograd (in banknapicy) as follows.
- release of provisions was mada in the amount of RS0 417,187 thousand,
- RS 235,883 thousand was addbonally chargad to the meomea statemeant

&)  The main actuarizl assumptions ueed in calculation of retirement benefils were as follows:

Dacamber 31, Decambur 31,

2013 22
Discounl rate 11.25% 11.25%
Salary growih rate within the Bank 4% 4%
Empoyee turnover 5% 5%

The discound rate equaled the pravious years' key policy rate of the Mabonal Bank of Seviua as of
Dacember 31, 2012 (whereas the key policy rate for 2013 equals 1%

Tranglation of the Auditors” Report isaued in the Serbian lamguags




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2093

All amounts expressed in thousands of RS0, unfess otherwse sfafed.

39.

40.

TAXES PAYABLE

Walug added tax payable
MMher taxes and conributions payable

TAX AND DIVIGEND PAYABLES

Tax and dividend payatles

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Defemed Lax assets
Defaned tax lizbilnes

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Decembar 31, December 31,
2013 2012

&, T 7273

14 824 14,524

21616 21.799
Oecomber 31, December 31,
2013 2012

160,124 85.114
December 31, Decemnber 31,
2012 2012

(95461 -
105,617 -

10, 156 -

In line with paragraph 710f 1AS 12 "Income Taxes,” the Bank stated deferred tau assets and deferred tax
liabillkes &t net pringaple. Changes in defermad tax assels and liabilities dunng 2012 are presented n

detal in Note 1.

Translation of the AwiTors” Bepat fEsuad in the Senian fanguage
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31, 2013
Afl armounts gxpressed it thousands of K30 urlass olherwise staled.

4,

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other Rabilities cenomingted in RS0

Arcounts payable

Advances recaived

Crher accounts payabie

Liabilides for consignment operations (LEDIB 1znd 2)
Lrabilies in setbement

Suspense and temporary acoounts

Met salaries

Taxes on salares and benafits
Contibutions to salanes and bangfis
Temporary and seazonal employsas
Other ligbilities to employees

Liabilities for defamad interast sccriad

Other acerued expenses

Deferred inlaresl incoms

Deferrad receivables at amortized cost caltulated by
applying effective interest rate (Mote 5a)

Daferred other maome

Other acoruals

Othar foraign currency liabilittes

Advances recaived

Liabilites from congignment operahons — koan faclbes
Lighiihes in seiement

Other Labiliies

Suspense and emporanry accounts

Subordinated foreign curency liabiliies

Liabilities for deferred interest accrued
Chher acerued expenses
CHher socruals

KOMERCIJAL NA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

December 31, Dacember 31,
2013 2012
283183 227126
200217 190,454
44389 41,902
18,406 -
500, BRG 235620
45,843 {292 291)
1.080 044 402111
38 931 B8, 187
4 &81 12,921
3,780 6,562
?,425 7,277
hd 339 114,547
76,251 45 711
6 508 17,224
28 271 49, 865
808,665 824 282
91,820 93,237
555 GES 525612
1.558 274 1.956.931
15,747 10,373
26,688,192 14 212 223
2055 385 586G 716
7.2m 7,366
bayt) 54
28,767 704 14819732
5. 732,105 5 685815
5 7321058 & 6A5 95
2,868,105 2 882 58%
oa.G28 91,807
1,601 1,508
30688 332 2 555,885
40 271,698 25 535,822

Liabiliies ansing from consignment operabang in foreign cumencies mestly refer ta the follovang loan

Tacilities

« Liabilities toward the Republic of Serbwa based on the loans from the Kinggom of Denmark foc
financing projects of local economic developmaenl in the Balkans:

LEDIE 1 and 2
2013

12

Amount in RED 0 Amount in EUR ‘000  Amaount in RSD '000 Amount In EUR '000

18,406 -

Transiation of the Audfiors’ Report 1saiued in the Serbian Wrguege




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A D.. BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts exprassed i thousands of RS0, unless otherwise stated

41 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

Liabiities toward the Repubiic of Serbla based on a borrowing from the European Investmert Bank
(EIB; for financing projects of small and medium-sized enterprses. as well as financing infrastructural
projects of munecipalities of small and medium scope

2013 2012
Amount in RSD ‘000  Amount in EUR ‘000 Amountin RSD '000  Amount in EUR ‘000

5,781 447 50,430 4 815,056 42 342
Liabilities toward the Repubiic of Serbia based on the loans from the Republic of taly for financing

projects of smail and madium-sized enterprises,

2013 202

10.547

Liatulities toward the Repubic of Serbia based on a ican cbtaned fom the European Agency for
Reconstruction (EAR

2013 2012
Amount in RSD '000  Amountin EUR *000 Amountin RSD'000  Amount in EUR ‘000

158 421 1,382 124.413 1,084
+  Labiities toward internatonal financiai organizations
a) EFSE 1 and 2
2013 2012
Amount in RSD ‘000  Amount in EUR ‘000 Amount in RSD 000  Amount in EUR ‘000
5011487 43714 3,574 004 31428
b) GGF
2013 2012
Amount in RSD '000  Amount in EUR '000 Amount in RSD '000 Amount in EUR '000
2.636.768 23,000 2615521 23.000
c) FMO
2013 2012
Amount in RSD ‘000 Amount in EUR '000 Amount in RSD ‘000  Amount in EUR ‘000
2202 8e2 20 D00
) KA
2013 2012

Amount in RSD '000  Amount in EUR '000

Amount in RSD ‘000 Amount in EUR ‘000

B.305,314 55,000
e) EBRD
2013

Amount in RSD '000  Amount in EUR ‘000

3439263 30,000

2012
Amount in RSD '000 Amount in EUR "000
1682844 20,000
62
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
Al amounts exgressed m thousands of RS0, uniess otherwise slated

4.

OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

Liatwktes for deferred mterest accrued in foreign cumencies lotaling RSD 2.870 516 thousand mostly
refer to foresgn currency retal savings deposils

Fees collected n advance comprising deferred income amounbng to RSD BOB 666 thousand are
inciuded in interest Income within the balance sheet (Note S a)

in accordance with the regulabons of the Natonal Bank of Sertva n respect of capital adequacy
requiremenis and impiementaton of Basel |l standard. the Bank sirengthened s core capital by
obtarvng a suborcdinated joan from IFC in 2011

The recesved subcrdinated loan amcunted to RSD 5732 105 thousand 1 @ EUR 50.000 tnousand

In respect of the loan facites obtaned the Bank agreed o certain financial incicators shpuiated by the
loan agreements with #s creotors. The methodology for calculating the contractually defined fnancial
ngicators per loan faciibes obtaned differs from the calculation method for those indicalors in
accordance with the regulations of the Natonal Bank of Serbia in parl refernng 16 the caiculaton of
capita and mcdusion of items relevant for determming open credt exposure

Pursuant to the ioan agreements executed with the Kredilanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (German
Development Bank abbreviated KAW), the Bank s oDhgated 1o comply with cenamn financal indicators
until completion of the loan repayment. As of December 31. 2013 the Bank did not comply with (he open
credit exposure ratio (actually achieved - 62 04% as compared 10 the prescnbed maumum of 25%) On
June §. 2013 the Bank received from KW a Wasver Letter where KW warves the nghts stipulated by the
Loan Agreement dated December 12, 2012 in respect of the Bank s non-comphance with the financial
covenants n the penod up o December 31 2013, At the Bank's request KW approved of the
modificaton to the methocology for determining open credt exposure ratio. whereas oblaning the
approval of the Nationa Bank of Serbia as the agent for this ican faciity 1s underway After reconciing
methooclogical assumphions. the Bank will fully comply with the contraciually defined rabos.

Pursuant to the lcan agreements executed with the European Bank for Reconstructon and Development
(EBRD) and International Financial Corporation (IFC) the Bank & obhigated to comply with certan
financial ndicators until completion of the ioan repayment As of December 31, 2013 the Bank did not
comply with the open credil exposure rato (actually achveved - 28 39% as compared o the prescribed
max:mum of 25% for EBRD. ang actually achieved - 47 58% as compared to the prescribed maxmum of
25% for IFC). The aforesad departures from the contraciually defired firancial indicators do not aliow
IFC 1o gemand early ican repayment Megotations have been witisted n order lo harmonze

methoccloges for determiming the inancial mdicators al ssue

CORE CAPITAL
December 31,  December 31,
2013 2012
Share capital 17.191 466 17.191.466
Share premiums 22,843 084 22 843,084

034550 40034560
The Bank's share capital was establshed through mitiai sharehoider contnbubons and the enswing
ssues of new snares Sharenciders nave the nght 1o manage the Bank as well as to share n profit
asinbution

The Bank's share capital is compnsed of 17.191.466 shares wih the indmidual par value of RSD 1
thousand and of the lgllowing structure

8 708 310 common shares.

B.108 646 preferred converibie snares and
373 510 preferred shares

Translation of the Audrtors” Report isswid i the Sertian language




KOMERCLIALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
Al amounfs exprassed in housands of RS0, unless ctharwise stafed,

42, CORE CAPITAL {Continuad}

The structure of the Bank's shareholders in respect of common shares al December 21, 2013 was ihg

fsl lenwanng:
Sharmholder Share Count % Intareat
Repulde of Sertia 3702890 42 60
EBRD. London 2177330 25.00
Jugobanka a d., Beograd in bankruptey 321,600 389
Invej d.o.o., Beograd 230,000 254
Evropa osiguranje a.d , Beograd in bankruptcy 202 420 2.40
East capital {lux)-Balkan fund 202 906 233
Karmpamja Dunay oalguranje a.d., Baograd 171,380 1.9%
ERSTE Liank a 4., Nowvi Sad 130,308 1.50
Vicames Consulting Limited 121,807 1.40
Sftankom oo do.o., Beograd 117 535 1.35
UniCredit bank Srbija 101,494 117
Others (1,175 sharehohders) 1, 215540 13.85
8,708,310 100.00

The structurg of the Bank's shareholders in respect of convertible preferred shares &t December 31,
2013 was the following:

Sharehcidar __Share Count % Interest
Republic of Sertia 3210456 40 83
EBED. Londen 1832110 2383
IFC Capdalzabon Fund LP 1.706.810 2105
Dreg Deutche Investitions FT2B50 953
Swedfund Imemabonal Aktiebo 85420 4.76
8,108,646 100,00
The structura of the Bank’s shareholders in regpect of prefermed shares at Decamber 21, 2013 was tha
fedlowing.
Sharehcider Share Count % Interaal
Jugebanka a.d . Beograd in bankruplcy 18,020 4.64
Others (G35 shareholders) 356420 895 16
373,510 100.00

During 2013, prior year dividends weare pald oh preferred shares in the amount of RSD 40,342 thowsand.

The basic earnngs per share totaled RS0 468 or 46.75 % of a common share par value in 2013,
whergas in 2012 the basic eamings per sharg amounted to RSD 469 or 46,5 % of a common share par

valyg.

Tranwaton of the Augitors’ Repor? issued in the Sarbias fsngusge
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42,

43.

CORE CAPITAL [Continuad)

Dlluted earrngs per share totaled RSD 242 or 24.21% of a common share par valua in 2013, whereag in
2012 the diluted earnings per share amounted to RS0 280 or 29.04% of a commen share par vélue.

Profit for the yaar less prefermed share dividand
Awarage weighted number of shares dunng 1he year

Bas eaminggs per share {in RSD}

Prof for the year kess prefermed share dividend
Avarage waighted number of shares during the year

Ciluled samings per sharg {in RS0)

RESERVES FOR ESTIMATED LOSSES
RETAINED FROM EARNINGS

Spaoial reserves for estimated Ksses retained from aamings

Movements on the resarves retained from samings
Balance, beginning of year

Crihar capital

- allocabon of partion of 2012 profit to resarves

Baiance, end of year

REVALUATION RESERVES

Revalyation reserves basad on valuabon of
proparty and equipment

Revaluation reserves based on fair value adjustment of secunties

Movameants on myalaticn resarves
Balance, beginning of the year
wncreaseidacrease duning the year

Balance, end of the: year

Revaluation reserves are assoaaled with gains on:

2013 2012
4,071,705 4 084 785
8 709 310 8,709,310

4G5 469

2013 2012

A (71,705 4 084, 795

16 517 956 14,068,288

242 2810
Dacember 31, Dacember 31,
2013 2012

165,635 440 14, 785 440

14,755,440 11,635 440

1.850.000 3,150,000

16,635 <440 14 785,440

Decambar 31,  Decembar 3,

M3 2012

1,062 582 458 942

720,686 378,832

1,791,268 867 774

867 7rd 669620

923 454 178,154

1,791,268 851714

- increass in the value of property baged on the valuation performed by an independant appraiser
in the amount of RS0 68565680 thousand and fair value adjustment of secunties availabla for

gale in the amount of RSD 349 854 thousand, net and

- dacrease of revaluation reserves of depreciation and amortization of fixed assats in the amourt
of RSD 10,038 thousand and decresase |1 ravaluation reserves for tax affacts in the amount of

RS0 103,002 housand.

Trenshation of the Auditors” Report fa0ed [n tha Sarbian IEnguage
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45,

UNRELAIZED LOSSES ON THE FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF
SECURITIES AVAILAELE FOR SALE
Decembaer 31, Dacamber 31,
2013 2012

Unrealized losses on the fair value adjustment of
securites avenlable for sals {187,011} {7,015}

In the course of 3013 increase in unreaiized losses from the secinitias avalable for sale totaling RSD
179,995 thousand includes increase of RS0 408,379 thousand and decraase of RSD 226,384 thougand.

RETAINED EARMNINGS
Dacamber 31, December 31,
2013 012
Retained sarmings
Prior year profits 2,011 546 63 E6G
Profit for the yaar 4 B676.325 4 122 1456
6,687 871 4,185,812
Frofit for the year
- proft from continuing operabions 4,508,375 4 572 662
- proft floss from tax effects 87,950 2198932
- current ncome (ax expanse - (472 448)
4 676,325 4 122 146
Movaments on prior year profits
Balance, beginning of year 53665 w213
Increases durng thae year
- fransfer from profit for the year 4 122 146 3513680
Decreases during the year,
- dradends on preferred shares (37381 (40, 254)
- Emipl e prfit Sharing (296.853) {308,000}
- ranshes o the Banlkds reserves {1.850,000) {3.150,000}
- increase due to the effect of revaluabon reserves amortization
based on valuation of property and egquipment 10038 10,037
Balange, and of year 2.011 645 53,566

Fursuant to the regqulations of the National Bank of Serbia. gains on the realized revaluabon resarves
from property and equpment in 2013 weare recogrized within retaned eamings rom prior years in the
total amount of RS0 10,038 thousand.

In 2013, pursuant the Decision enacied by the Bank's Shareholder Assembly, accomulated retained
eamings rom 2012 was distributed as foilows:

Payment of dividend on prefermed shares for tha year 2012 37,381
Transfer to the Bank's résarvas ratamed from 2042 sarnings 1,850,040
Employes profit shanng 296,853

2,184 204

Transiation af the Aoditors’ Repart issuved k1 the Sarbéan (nguege
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47

MANAGED FUNDS
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Furnds rmanaged on behatl and for the accounl of thrg parbas = A2 256 5137

Funds managed on behall and for the account of Hurd parties are mostly composed of assets for

consignment loans of he Republic of Sertia, the largesl portion of which, in the amount of RSD

3.491.045 thousand, relates to the long-lem housing loans extended o refail customers. Other

Eanaged furds mastly refer to leans approved for sgrcutture and assets received from foreign grantors
r micrg loans

COMMITMENTS
a} Guarantees igsued and other surates, collaterals, irrevocable commitments and other
lakilities
December 31, Dacember 31,
2013 212
in RSO
Guarantess issued and other suraties 11,203,800 10,518 584
Collaterals secunng liability sattiemant - 5,856 170
Irrevodable commitments for urdrawn lcans and advances ¥.118.883 ¥ 896 785
Other irrevocable commmenis 8,278 856G B 072 881
27 601,839 33,345 821
It fpreiger currencles
Guarantees issued ard other surehes 2,024,730 4 778 632
Irrevocable commitments for undrawn loans angd advances 821,333 28,509
Crhar imevocable commitments based on the contrachually
agreed value of RS sacunties and bonds 581 464 3411696
3,227 527 9.106.837
30,829 366 42 452,658

Cther ivevocable commiiments in RSD mostly mfer 1o tha fllomang: unused portion of approved retal
clients” cument account overdralis in the amount of RS0 5 052 982 thousard and unused portion of the
approved limit amounts per credit carda in lhe amount of RS0 1,983 853 thousand and charge cards in
the amount of RSD 2,074 810 thousand,

For the aforesaid guarantess and contingent liabiliies the total esimated provigion for potential losses
on off-balance sheet items a5 in accordance with [AS 37 was formed in the amount of RSD 473,647
thousard (Mote 37). This provision amounl is stated wilbin he liabilities in the Bank's balance sheet,

As of Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no liabilities arising from forwand foreagn exchange
operations,

b) Litigation

Az of December 31, 2013, contingent hatities based on legal suits filed against the Bank amouried 10
RSD 2,276,270 thousand (for 265 legal swits). The Bank's management antcipates no malenally
significant losses thereof in the forthcoming period.

The most sigreficant legal suls invelving the Bank as a defendant is the legal suit against the company
Takowe a.d., Gomji Milanovac worth RS0 1,124 857 thousand. Based on the Supreme Appellale Count
rewised ruling, in 2013 the Bank collected the due receivables in the amount of RSD 380,770 thousand.
Pursuant to the ina and enforceable verdwd received. with regard 10 Hhe resumed lawsuit &gainst
Takovo. the Bank iz entiled to recenatles o RED 335020 thousand representing penalty interest
accned on claimed kans apgnoved 1o Takove.

Transiatian of the Axdtiors” Report laaued i the Serbian langusge
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48 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
b) Litigation (Continued)

Based on the expert estimate made by the Bank's Legal Depariment. in 2013 not all legal suits fled
aganst the Bank will entanl outfliows of lunds  but of there are any for certan cases, the amounts will be
mmatena Based on the aforesad estmate the Bank's management made no acamonal provsions for
potential losses on htigatons apart from the amount of RSO 10 900 thousand as disciosed in Note 37 a)
to the fmancial statements.

The total provisions of the Bank for ingation losses amount to RSD 10,900 tousand {Mote 37)
In additon the Bank s involved n lawsuits against third parties the most significant portion of which

amounts to RSD 20 314 083 thousand (for 251 cases with the largest indwidual amounts) The Bank's
management anticipates favorable oulcome of the maost lawsuits

49, OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
December 31, December 31,

203 2012
Recewvabies for suspendeg interest
-in RSD 1,782,978 1,636 802
- foreign currencies 321,276 282 058
Otrer off-balance sheet assets 186 613,150 155257 041
188 717 404 151.175.901
=

in the course of 2013 the Bank had a net mcrease n suspended interest of RSD 185 3084 thousand
comprised of

aj mcrease of RSD 211 488 thousand. with the Iciiowsng structure.

- newly-suspended interest of RSD 49,635 thousand

- resumed calculation of suspended interest of RSD 160,125 thousand
- feregn exchange gains of RS0 1,728 thousand. and
b} cecrease of RSD 26 094 thousand, with the following structure:

- write-off of RSD 2 577 thousand,

- collechion of RSD 20 342 thousand, and

- transfer 1o other oft-balance sheet tems of RSD 3,175 thousana

Within other off-balance sheet assets inter ala the Bank records custody operations performed for the
Bank s chients. repo mvestiments in the Governmenl-issued secunbes and oig foreign currency Savings
bonds In accordance with the obtaineg permil for custody operations. the Bank keeps the financial
instruments of the customers an the accounts of secunties. recorded within off-balance sheet items. The
Bark is not exposed 1o credit nsk per these lems

50. CAPITAL ADEQUACY AND BUSINESS RATIOS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE LAW ON BANKS

The Bank |8 required to maintain a mmimum capdal adeguacy rato of 12%. as established by the
National Bank of Serbia in accordance with the Basel Convention applied to all banks As of December
31 2013 the Bank s capital adeguacy ratio. as caiculated based on the financial statements prepared by
the Bank s management by applying the NBS decisions effective for 2013, was 18 02%.

The Bank is also requred D maintain certain ratics pertaiung © the volume of ils activibes and
composton of sk assels » compliance with the Law on Barks and with the NBS requirements. As of
Decemper 31, 2013 and 2012, all rabos pertaining to the voiume of its actvibes and composition of nsk
assets were within their prescnbed lim:ts

Transiation of the Auditors’ Repar? issued in the Sorbian language
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51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

A. Balance as at December 31, 2013

RECEIVABLES
Loans and Interest Other  Net Balance Off-Balance

Subsidianes Advances and Fees Assets Exposure  Sheet tems Total
Komerciaina banka a d

Budva 430,157 825 4253 435235 - 435 235
Komercyana banka a g

Barja Luka 2 Z 646 23437 343,926 578 843
KomBanx INVESTad |

Beograd ——— L “epe—". | 200 201
TOTAL: flfid 428 826 .859 670,153 Jda 126 1,014,279
LIABILITIES

Deposits Interest Other
Subsidiaries and Loans and Fees  Liabilities Total
Komercijaina banka a.d.. Budva 147 814 - 1.601 146 515
Komercijaina barka ad Bana Luka 5228 - . 9228
KomBark INVEST ad Becgrad 12940 13 - 12953
TOTAL: 170.082 13 1 601 171 696
INCOME AND EXPENSES
Fee and Fee and

Subsidiaries Income _ Income _ Income Expenses ___ Expense  Expenses
Komercyaina banka a d

Budva 4414 1,548 387 5a7 - (a3 382,728
Komarcyaina banka a.d

Barja Luka 2,635 628 . (390) (293} 2,684
KomBank INVESTad

Beograd g - it = (EdH) - {801}
TOTAL: 7.053 222% 387 597 11.338) w a4 411

Komercijalna banka a.d. Beograd realzed net foreign exchange losses in the amount of RSD 1,188
thousand i 2613 (2012: RSD 4,662 thousand) from related party transactions.

Transiation of the Auditors’ Report issued in the Serbian language
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KOMERCIJALMA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS = RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

B. Balarw:¢ as at December 31, 2012

RECEIWABLES

Loanz and Interest  Impatrment  Met Balance Off-Balance
Subaidiaries Advances and Faam Allowa nce Exposure  Sheet hoima Total
Komercjalna banka ad.,

Budwva 5 686 g2 - 6,578 - 6,578
Komearcijaing banka a.d.,

Banja Luka 2,962 . - 2.9%3 802 748 912,704
KomBank INVESTa.d.,

Baagrad - 1 - 1 200 2
TOTAL: £ 645 533 - 8,542 08,945 918 408
LIABILITIES

Daposita Interest Other
Subsidlaries and Loans and Fees  Liabilities Total
Komergijaing banka a.d., Budva 487 204 - 1,588 458, 392
Komercjaing banka a.d., Banja Luka 5.085 - . 8,085
KomBank INVEST a.d., Beograd 14 506 38 - 14 B
TOTAL 10,795 38 1,508 512,421
INCOME AND EXPENSES
Feo and Fee and
kitwrwni  Cowaniasion Interest Commission Mat incomal
Subsidiaries Incoim Irv o Expansos Expunas Expantas
Komercyaina banka ad.. Budva 23 1,5 - (720} 1,011
Komercyaina banka a.d..

Banja Luka 1.570 i) (588) {508) 1,301
KomBank INWESTa d., Beoarad - 1N {1.223) - {1,082
TOTAL: 1,800 2 460 {1,811) (1,228} 1,280

RELATED PARTY HSCLOSURES

Gross and et remunerations paid to the members of the Banks Executive Board, Board of Directors

and Audit Committes in 2013 were as follows;

Grogs remuneradons

Exeutne Bosard

Net remunerations

Execitive Board

Gross ramumerstions

Board of Directors and Audit Cormmittese
Mat mmunerations

Board of Directors and Audit Committes

December 31,  December 31,
2013 2012
83,788 ¥2972
71.179 81,199
26, 845 28,11
17 276 17,087
£9

Trargigtion of the Awditors' Report Iasved in the Serbian lergusge
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3.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank has recogrized risk managamant procass as the key slement of business management given
that nisk exposure is an inseparable part of banking and is managed theaugh a process of conlnued
idarification, measurement, mondonng, mikgabon, contrel and reporting, e setbng of nsk hmits and
through other types of control, including reporing in accardance with adopted sirategies and policsas.

The Bank has established a comprehensive and reblable nsk manzgement system that includes. nek
management sirateges, poliaes and procedures. appropnate oganizabonal structure, effecve and
efficiert process of managing all nsks it is expased to, adaquate system of imemal conbrols adequate
information systern and process of internal capiial adequacy assessment

Risk management process involves chear determining and documenting risk profile and adjusting rigk
profile fo the Bank's aptiude {0 assume nsks it i oF may be exposed n accordance with adopded
shateges and policies.

The basic objectives that the Bank sal for the risk management system in its intemally adopled acts
on fisk management stralegy and capitel management strategy arg the following: minimizing tha
negastive effects on financial result and aguily within accaptable risk levels, maintaining the required kel
of capital adequacy, developing the Bank's aclivilles in accordance with business opportunities and
market develapment with a view o gaining compaetitive advantage.

The Bank implemenls Basel I standards snd permanentty mondors il the announcements amd
amendmenls to the effective requlations. analyzes the nsk levels and undertakes measuras far bmaky
reconciliaion of its operations with newly anacted regulations in accondance with tha risk lavel
accaptable to the Barnk. Through the chearly dafined process of intraducng new products, the Bank
analyzes the mfluence of all new services and products on the future risk exposures in onder 1o optimize
its revanpes arxd losses based on ihe estimaled risk as well a5 to minimize all potential adverse eifgcts
on the: Bank's financial result

Risk Managemeant System
The nsk managemsnt system 13 governad by the follewing iltemal enadmernts:

Risk Management Stralegy and Capital Management Strateqy.
Risk Management Policles,

Risk Managemest Proceduras,

Methodologies for managing mdwidual risks; and

Cther enactments.

Risk Management Strategy sets out-

« Long-tenm objectives, definad by the Bank's business policy and sirategy and its aplitude to assume
nisk detarmined in acoordance with those objechves,

«  Bagic principles of risk assumption and managemant,

«  Basic principles of the process of internal assessment of the Bank's capital adequacy; and

«  Owerview and definitions of 2 types of rigks the Bank is exposed to or may be exposad 1o

The Bank specified the basic principles of nsk management for meetng its long-tenn objectives:

«  Organizing operation of a separate organizalional unit for risk management,

Functional and organizational separation of nsk management activities from the requiar oparating
activilies of the Bank:

Comprehensive risk mansgmeant;

Effective risk managerment

Cydic risk management;

Developing rizh managemenl as a strategic onentation. and

Risk management as a part of corporateg cutiure

L IR T B ]
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53.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Policies for managing certan nsk types define the foliowng:

«  Manner of organizing risk management processes within the Bank and clear division of personne!
responsibdities i all stages of the process,

«  Manner of assessing the Bank's nsk profie and methodology for identifiing measuring and
a58es5Ng risks

«  Manners of sk menitonng and contret and establishing the system of lmits. i e types of hmits the
Bank uses as wel as thesr structure,

+  Measures for nsk mitigation and rules for mplementation thereof.

=  Manner and methcgology for implementing the process of intemal assessment of the Bank's capital

agdequacy,
«  Principles of the system of internal controls; functioning: and
«  Framework and frequency for siress testing and procedure in instances of unfavorabie tes! results

Procedures for managing ocertain risk types define, n greater detail. the process of managing risks and
competencies and responsibilities of ali organizational units of the Bank in the nsk management system

Indadual methodologes further and in more detal prescrbe methods and approacnes used in the nsk
Managemeant system

Competencies

The Board of Dwectors is authonzed and responsiole for estaclishing a uniform nsk management system
and for momtonng such system adopting polices and procedures for nsk management and capital
management siralegy establishment of internal control system superwsion of the work of the
Executive Board and execution of the process of internal capital adequacy assessment

The Executive Board is authorzed and responsible for mplementation of nsk management strategy and
policies. capta management Strategy acoption and efficiency analysis of nsk management procedure
implementaion. which define processes of identifying maasuring, Mminmuzing, monitonng, controling
reporting nsk the Bank s exposed 1o,

The Audit Commuffes s authcrizec and responsible for continued analysis and manitoring of the
adeguale | of the adopted risk management strategies and policies and internal contral
system At least montnly, the Audt Commitee reports ta the Board of Directors on its activites and
identified rreguiarities and proposes how to eliminate them.

The Asset and Liabiily Management Cormmiltee s authonzed and responsibie for monionng the
Bank's risk exposure resulting from the struclure of its recewables payabies and off-balance sheel

items, and proposes measures for managing interest and liquidity risks.

The Credit Committee decides on loan approval requests within framework determined by the Bank's
enactments. analyses the Bank's exposure credit, interest rate and currency risk, analyzes loan portfolio
and proposes measures to be taken to the Executive Board

mmmmsmmwwmmmw i
makes decisions on the write-off of nsk-weighted ioans up to set imits of authorization and recommends
writeoff of icans to the Executive Board and Board of Direclors exceeding its imits of authonzaton

The Fisk Management Organizational Uil defines and proposes the nsk management stralegy and
polices 1o the Boarg of Directors for adoption, defines and proposes nsk management procedures and
methodologies to the Executive Board for adoption, wentifies, measures. mitigates, montors. controls.
and reports on the neks the Bank is exposed fo It Is also in charge of developing models and
methodologies for all stages of nsk management and reperting to the competent Bark's bodes

Treasury 15 responsdle for managing assets and hguiity, the Banks assets and habilities, their
overall financial structure. and is pnmanly responsible for the Bank s houidity risk, interest rate nsk and
foresgn cumency nsk

Transiation of the Avditors’ Repor issued in the Serbian language
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53.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
Competencies (Continued)

The Infernal Augi Division is authorized and responsible for continued monitoring of implementation
of risk management policies and procedures at Bank kevel, and tests the adequacy of procedures and
the Barnk's compliance thereto. Intamal Audil reports its findings and recommendations (o the Audit
Committea and the Board of Directors,

The Compliance Carttrod Divisfon ia obligated to identify and assess compliance risks at least annually
and propose risk managemeant plane, whereof it prepares a report and submits it to the Executive Beard.

Riak Management Process

The Bank regulady measures and evaluales risks identified in ite operations. Measurement entails
applying qualitative and guanttabve measurement methods and models that enable detection of
changes in risk profile and assessmant of new rigks,

For all rigks wantified the Bank datermings their signikcance based on as comprahensive assessment of
nsks inhgrant n the Bank's particular operabons, products, achvities and procesees.

Risk alieviation or mitigation involves risk diversificabon, transter, minimization and of avoidance. the
Bank performs risk mitigation in accordancs with risk profile and risk appatite.

Fisk monitonng and contred 15 based on limits that are sef by the Bank. Thay in tum depend an
business strategy and Lhe business emvironment, as well as on the level of risk that the Bank is ready to
aceqt

Risk management reports are requiarty submified 1o the Bank's Board of Dwreclors, Exgoutve Board,
Audit Committes, Asset Liabdiy Managemeant Commities and Credit Commidtee, and they contain all the
infermation meguinad for nsk assassment and reachng of conclusons about the Bank's risks.

Types of Risk

In its business operations tha Bank 18 axposed to the following nsks in particular: credit risk and redated
risks. liquidty nsk, marked nsk and operatonal nsk, myvestmeant nsk. country nisk, exposure risk and all
other risks that may acour in the course of the Bank's reqular operatons.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk represents the nsk of negative effects on the Bank’s financial resull and capital arising from
debtors’ mability to settle the matured liabilties 10 the Bank. Tha Bank moniters the following risks within
the credit risk.

s Default risk - the rigk of Ioss thal may arise if a debtor fails 10 setie liabilities toward the Bank;

« Downgrade risk - the nsk of loss thal may angse if a risk level of a deblor is dewngraded
{detericration of the customer credit rating);

= Risk of changs In the value of assets - the nsk of logs that may arise on assets inthe event of a
dechne i their market value as compared 1o the price at which assets were acquired;

« Credit forelgn exchange riek — represents prabability that the Bank will incur & 1055 due 1o default of
the dabtor in liability setlement within contractually defined tarms, which is caused by adverse impact
of the RS0 exchange rate changes on lhe debtor's financial siluatlon,

s Concentration risk — reprasents & risk that is a diredt or indirect oulcome of the Bank's exposures
the same or similar risk faclor or typa, such 8s: exposure to & single enlity or a group of related
parties. industries, geographical regions, types of products and activities, collaterals, financial
instruments;

» Expoaure fiak - is a nsk that can anse from the Bank’s expasure lo a single entity, group of related
entities or the Bank's related parties:

+ Country rsk — relates to the borower's country of orlgin and rapresents the probabidity of negative
effects on the Bank's financial result and aguity due to the nability & callect recaivables from abroad
and is caused by polilical, economic and soaal condiions in the barrawer's country of origin.

Tranglaron of the Auoifors” Faport acad in i Seriian Langusge
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53.

53.1.

RISHK MANAGEMENT {Continued|
CREDIT RISK {Contlnued}
In addition to the aforelisted risks, the Bank also monlors the folicwing related nsks:

«  Rasidual risk - 13 a nsk that credit risk mitigation techniques may be less efficient than expected,
i |, that their application 13 not gufficient to allewate the risks the bank is exposed o

» Risk of reduced value of recaivables - is a risk of possibe emamenca of negative effects on the
Bank's financial results and capilal dua 1o reduced valug of repurchased recevatiles for cash on
non-cash liabilities of the pravious creditar io the deaiilor,

s Settlement/delivery risk — is a risk of possible emergence of pegative effects on the Bank's
financial results and capital due to counterparly default on free delivary transactions as of
comractually defined settlemantidalivary date;

« Counterparty risk - is 2 risk of possiple emergance of negative effects on the Bank's financial
results and capital due 1o counlarparty tailura 10 pattle its liahilies pror to the ulimate settlement of
the fransaction cash fiows, ie. sattlament of ¢cash payment.

Cradit Rigk Managament

Aotonhing B the welume, type and compiealy of Its operations, the Bank has organized the credit rigk
management process ard claarty delineated ampioyae rasponsibilities in all stapes of the process The
organzational medel of credit nEk management systern enables adequate communicahon, informaton
exchange and collaboration at all orgamezahonal levels within the Bank zs well 25 dear operahioral and
organzaticnal separation of funchons for independant nisk management and supporting sctivities on one
hand ard e adnites of nsk assumphon on tha other, i e segregabon of dulies, compatancies and
responstilites. The Bank has alsp estabbshed an adequale nformation system for full coverage of
parsons nvilved in credil sk management system and approphiate management repodting.

The chjective of credit nsk management 15 1o minimize sdverse affects of the credt risk on the Bank's
fnancial resutt and equity based on balanca sheet and off-balance shest mvestments and operations
with counterparties for ilems camid in e Danking bock

The kel of credi sk exposune acceptable o the Bank is in line with the defined nsk managemeant
strateqy and depends on the Bank's portfolo structure based on which negative effects on the Banl's
finarcial resull is Himited and capital requiremeants for credit risk, setlementideivary ard counterparty risk
are minimized in ordar 10 maintain captal adeduacy at an accapbable el On the other hand, the Bank
does not make high-risk investrmeants such as invesmants 10 highly profitable projects with significant nsk
levels.

The basic principles of credil risk managemeant are as follows

»  Managing credit risk at the individual loan level as well as the Bank's entire portfolio level;

«  Maintzining credit risk level that minimizes the negabve effects on the Bank's financial result and
capital;

= Lean rating according 1o righ;

«  Operaling in accordance with best banking practicas of loan approval;

«  Ensuring adequate credit nsk management controls.

In its effort to manage credit risk the Bank seaks to do business with customers that have good credit
rating and to acquire apprapriate collaterals to secure repayments. The Bank assesses creditworthiness
of sach customer upon tha submission of & loan application and regulady monitors its dettors, loang and
collatersls, in order to be able to undertake approprigba achvitias for the purpose of colledting its
recaivables.

Credit risk igentificabon involves analysis aof all indicators leading to the emergence and increase in
credit risk exposure. The Bank detarmines the causes of the curent ceedil risk exposure In a
comprehensive and timely manner and assesses such causes based on the incurred and proyecled
changes in the market, as well as based on tha intreduction of new products and achvities. The Bank's
eredit risk depends on the debisl creditworttuness, debtor's reguianty In setting liabilites due to the
Bank and collateral quality.

é4
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53.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
CREDIT RISK |Continued)
Credit Risk Management (Continued)

The Bank pertorms guantilatve andior qualtatve measurement (& assessment of the dentfied creds
risk. The credit rsk measurement process s based on measuring risk level of mdividual loans and
investments based on the intemally adopted rating system

The rating system s not merely an instrument for forming indidual decisions and assessing nsk leveis
of ingwidual investments; it is aiso a basis for portfolio analysis, support in loan approval and loan
imparment procedure as wel as in estimating provisions against losses per off-balance sheet itams for
the purpose of loan and investment ranking by rsk level and stating realistc value of recewvables,
Internal rating systerm is reviewed and improved on an angoing basis

In agdihon to the internal rating system. in credit nsk analysis the Bank aiso uses principies prescribed
by the Natonal Bank of Serbea, which require classfication of loans based on the prescribed criteria as
well as calculabon of the reserve for estmated credd risk losses Application of these principles allows
the Bank to cover unexpected iosses due to the customer's inability to settle Labsilies as they fali due in
accordance with contraciually defined terms. For these purposes. the Bank classifies recevables and
assesses the level of necessary reserve using the reguiar analyss of portfoiic. The analysis includes the
measurement of adequacy of reserves formed against indnvdual borrowers, nsk categories, porson of
portioho and at gverall portolo level Reserves for eshmated icsses represent a certan form ol hedge
against potential adverse effects in case lent funds are not repaid when due and in full

Prigr 1o loan approval, the Bank assesses the crediworthiness of the borrower based on internally
cefined criteria as a prmary and offered colateral as a secondary source of collecionfloan repayment
Based on the dentified and measured cred! nsk level [assessed financal sduabion and credit worthiness
of the borrower. vaiue and legal secunty of the credit hedge and other relevant factors), and independent
risk assessment. the Bank's competen] bodes enact a loan approval decision in accordance with the
defined decision making system

Decisions on credit nsk exposure are defined through the decision making system that depends on the
type of customer and exposure level for loans within defined limits decisions are made by the branch
credi commitiees although in cerain cases approval of the nsk management organizatonal unit s
required Central Credit Committee decides ¢n the loans in excess of the defined iimits (depending on
the type of chent) with prior oprion of the riss management organizational unit. The Executive Board and
Board of Directors make decisions depending on the exposure levels,

In decision making relaled fo areas of crediting, wrespectve of the decision making level. the panciple of
double control, the se-called “four eyes prnciple” 1s cbserved which ensures that there is always a party
that proposes and a party that approves a particular ioaninvestment

For inans contracted in currencies or dinars indexed to a currency clause the Bank estimates the
effects of the changes in ign exchange rates on the financial situation and creditworthiness of
debiors and particularly analyzes adequacy of the debtor s cash flows in relaton to the changed level of
liabiities per ipans assuming that there will be certain fluctuation in RSD exchange rates on an annual
basie

Alleviating credt nsk entails mantaming the rss at the leve! acceplable 10 the Bank's nsk profile, 1 e
maintaining acceptabie level of the Bank's ican portioiio

The basic techniques for credit risk mitigation are as foliows:

+  Exposure limits - concentration sk,
«  Investment diversification. and
+ Coliaterals.

The Bank's exposure limils per mdisdual deblor are based on the assessment of the debtor's credi-
wortiness whereas e exposure imils al the portfolio leve! are locused on mesincling exposure
concentration within the portfolio. The Bank contnuously controls credit nsk movements within a defined

¥
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3.1,

RISK MANAGEMENT [Continued)
CREDNT RISK [Continuwed)

Credft Risk Managament {Continued)

Concentration nsk includaes: large exposura jexposune {2 a single entity or a group of redated entities and
the Bank’s related parties), group exposures with the same or similar risk factors such as industry
pectors, ypes of products, geographical areas and the like, county risk and credit risk hedgas.

Investment diversificalion s aimed a1 aleviatng credit nsk rough reduciion portfoln concentrations in
cerigin segments of agsels.

Manitoring loan investment quality at the individual debtor level is primanly based on obtaining updated
information on the inancial situation and creditwortuness of the debitor as wall as on the market value of
coliateral, whereas credit risk monitoring at lhe portiolio level 15 parformed through identikcation of
changes at the level of client groups with cartain preset levels of risk, Investment, collateral and reguired
resenvas for estimated and unexpedctad losses for the purpose of aslablishing managemant of the asset
balances and guality. For pratection ageinal credit nsk exposure. in addition to the regular monttoring of
the customens’ Gusiness operations. the Bank contractually defines security instnamsms [oollaterals),
which reducs cradt sk

In oroer to protect itsel! from changes m the markel value of collaterals (mortgages, pledges, secunhies
glc.), the Bank adjusts the appraised collateral value for a defined percentzge dapending on the
collateral type and location, which percentage is reviewed at least annually or more frequently as
appropriate. |0 thia way, the Bank protects iteglf from potential logses ansing from Lhe Impossibility of
tollection of recaivables through security inslrumant achvation

Credit risk contrel entails 3 process of conlinuous reconciling business operaions wilh the defined
system of fimits. bath on a daly and monthly ases. as well as under conditions of large credit exposure
approaching the upper nsk profike limit, 1.&. upon inroduction of new products and ELEsingss SCivites.

As a hedge againgt counterparty default nek, the Bank undertakas the following sleps in respect o
collechion of dua recavables: rescheduling or restructunng; cut-of-gourt settiement, seizure of goods o
properies in order to collect receivables; sale andior assigrment of recewvables; executing agreements
with interested third parties; and instigating court preceedings and other maasuras.

The Bank reschedules and restructures receivables from cusiomers axperencing certan difficulbes in
cperations. f the ungeraken measures for regulating collection, (& enforced collection arkd court
proceedings fal 1o prowde expected results. 1 6. when recenvables cannot be collected in ful, the Bank
nhates wite-off of the remaining recaivabies

Apart frorm credil risk exposure, the Bark also has offbalance sheet exposures (vanous lypes of
payment and performance guarantees, acceptances and letters of gredit) based on which the Bank has
contingent liabilibes to make payments on behalf of thind partiss. For off-balance sheel exposures the
Bark uses the sama conirol processes and procedures that are used for credit risk.

Credit risk reporting includes internal and ewternal reporting syslems executed on a monthly basis
avcording to a preset schedule and in conformity with the defined regorting system.

Downgrade Risk

The guality of the Bank's assets is rmeasured by the level of exposurs ko individual risk ca?agurias
according ko intemal rating systern critena. The intemal raling $ystem focuses on quanbtative ard
qualilative parameters for assijming customer ratings. The rating scale consists of 5 risk calegories that
are subdivided into 17 subcategories. The rating scale is used as a wniform method lor assigning
ratings which ensures Inat customers with the same raling have the same oedit characlenstcs and
the same probability of default, in part or i full, over the pericd of one year. The basic parameters
of credit risk used in determinming a nsk subcategory are cakulated and monitored on a monkhly hasis.

&4
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53.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Conidnued])
CREDOIT RISK {Continued)
Downgrade Risk {Continued)

A low level of risk implies doing business with customers with a high credit rating {nsk rabing categorles 1
and 2), increased level of nsk implies doing busingss with custaomers with cperating difficultlias that oeukd
have 2 pegative impadt on the settement of liabilibes (risk rating category 3}, and a high level of risk
characterzes customers with negative operating results and poor credit rating (risk rating categonas 4
and 5).

The Bank guards against downgrade rigk through continugus manitoring of customers' business
operations and by identifying changes that couid arnse through: detencration of a borrower's finangial
standing, delays in repayment and changes in Lhe busineas emwironment, as well as by secumg
appropriate collatersls,

Risk of Change i the Value of Asselz

Allowance for impairment of loan investmants is intended to ensure reasonable, cautious and Smely
registering of losses on lean impaimen, as well as to intervene in respect of conbngert hatihes with a
views to protect the Bank in the pericd when the ioss occurs and is definilely confirmed {reahized). due
to inabilly to collect contracted amounts or through cutfiow of assets to sette contingent liabilities

Allowance Rk impalimment of loans and provisions are made whan there is justification and objective
gvidence of impairmant ariging as the result of events that occurrad after initial recognition of a loan, that
have a negative effect on future cash flowa associated with a loan.

Key elements in assessing mparment of investmeants are as fllows overdue payments on pringapal of
imerest, cash flow dificultes on the part of the bomower, the bomower's credit rating detenoration or
thanges in the inibal terms of contract et

Allowance bor impairmert 15 based on eshmated future cash flows from the borower's busness or
collateral foreciosure if it is assessed that a loan can be readstically settved from such assets.

The Bank assessss allowance for impaiment of receivables on am indladual and on a group basis,
frudhnddusl Assassmant

The Bank assesses imparment of each indndually significant koan and considers the financal position
of the toan benehciary. sustsinabdity of its business plan, s atality 10 improve perfarmance in the gvent of
financial difficulties. income projections. availability of cther inancial support and collateral value which
can be realized, a3 well as scheduling of expected cash flowe. In the event of new information
coming to light that significantly alters the customer's creditworthiness, value of collateral and
likglihood that habiliies toward the Bank wilii be setiled, ad hog assessment of loan impaimmant is
perfmied.

Group-Level Assassamant

Imparment is assessed on a group basis for loans that are not Indnadually significant and for indmdualty
significant Inans and advances. when lhere 5 no objechive ewgance of individual imparment Group
assessment is performed monthly within groups that are determined based on intemal methodology and
intermal rating system. Group impairment perceritages are calculaled based on migration of risk rating
categories in cefaull status per type of borrower of product. The sbtained migration percentages are
adjustad for coliecied receivables,

Impaimment of loans decreases the value of loans and is recognized as an expense n the ncome
atatemenl

Transiation of the AnFiors’ Feport Rscdd in the Sertdan OgUIDe
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53.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Assessment of Provisions for Probable Losses on Off-Balance Sheet ltems

Assessment of provisions for losses on off-balance sheet tems (contingent iiabilities) |s performed
when it is estimated that it is farly certain that an ocutflow of assets will be required to seftle contingent
liatwities.

In assessing prowisions for contingent losses on cfi-balance sheel items. funds obtaned by
activating collaterals are recognized if il is completely certain that cash outfiows for coningent kabilities
will be settled from collaterals.

Maximum Credit Risk Exposure

Maxmum credit risk exposure as of Dacember 31 2013 s presented in the table below without taking
into account any collaters or any other sort of credit nsk hedge The stated vaiues are presented in
gross and net carmying amounts {after impairment effects).

Maximum credit risk exposure before collateral or any other improvements

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Gross Net Gross ~ Net

I. Assets 365,452,580 345075720 324,556,515 307,922.409
Cash and cash equivaients 41 137,794 41137794 40,514 180 40514 ,160
Revocable deposits and loans 53395120 53385120 43083502 43053502
Receivadles arsing from nterest fees

COmmissions. rade. changes in the

fair value of denvabives and other

recesvables 4,790,736 2788176 3110857 1.547 342
Loans and advances o customers 188 842503 184004121 18BB13293 177106885
Other investmeants 8,062,272 24920218 8,405,751 3,227 806
Securitias ET0080768 S7T001465 41352380 41347718
(Mher assets 4228079 3.819.826 1,306 542 1,124 805
Il. Off-balance sheet items 30,882,511 30,408,862 33938607 33,440,975
Payment guararees 7357 478 7291000 7.87C.828 7814377
Performance bonds 5,787 610 5861 141 6771238 6 663 684
irevocabie commitments 16,830 341 16 830 341 17 B12.564 17.812.584
Other __ POroBsa 526380 1 483 956 1,160,330
Total (1+11) 396,335,091 375484582 358495122 341,363,384

Tre largest credit risk s associated with the executed ioan arangements, nowever, the Bank is exposed
to rsk pased on off-baance sheet items resulting from commitments and contingent habities

Transiation of the Auditors’ Report issued i the Serbian language
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53,

53.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
CREDIT RISK {Continued]
impaired Loans and Advances

Impeired loans and advances are those for which the Bank has determined the exstenca of objactive
avigence of impaiment and does not expect them to be collected in full amounts of principal and inlerest
maturad pursuant o the relevant lcan agreements. In the internal rating systam. such loans for retail and
corparate customers are allocated rating from 2 10 5 and represent indivigually signiicant loans {hotaling
above RS0 & milion) For lgans that are not individually significant impairmert is detenninegd on a
group-level, depending on the categonization in to groups with simitar risk levels, for all abng categones
from 1 to 5

fripaimmant Alowance

Tha Bank makes impairment alicwance for loan arrangements based on the assessment of imparment.
Tha key components of impairment allcwanse made in this manner are. impaimment sllowanca redaled o
individually significant credit risk exposures and group-level impairment allowance made for groups of
similar loans where mpairment has occurmed but has not yet bean klenbfied (materially less signficant
loans) as well as for those materially significant loans that were subect o individual assessment of
impairment yet no impairment was identifisd on an indivdual basis.

Recaivabies Matured bul nod impaired

Loans and advarces matured oul not impaired represent those loans and advances whera there s
defaull in settling lisbikties for contractually agreed interest or principal outstanding. Yet the Bank
balipves that it is nol approprate to make smpaimment allowances for such lan imestments given the
probabilty of defaull status occurrence for cedain types of customers (migrations). the value of
Instruments securitizing swch kans andior cerainty of debt collechon on the part of the Bank,

Receivables not Malured and nof impaired

Leans and adwances not maturad and not impaired axtended to corporate customers and banks relate
to the loans approved and disburzed to state-owned companies, local self-governments, municipallties,
and o deposits placed with other banks for which it is determined that it is not appropriate t0 make
impairment allowances for such loan investiments given the probabilily of default status occurrence for
certan types of customeans (migrations) and/or cerlginty of debt callection on the part of the Bank

Trantlation of the Awnlirors’ Report tvod in the Serbian language
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L% RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
£1.1. CREOT RISK (Contlnued)
Lara and advances to customears and duwe fram banks, not matured and rot impai rsd
Comporatn Due from
Dwcomber 34, 23 Customans Totual Bwnks
Low (IR 1, 23 5179605 5,179 605 B804 051
Medram (R 3} 4 026736 4 026,736 .
High (IR &, 5} - - -
Total 9,206,341 9,206,341 8,854,081
Corporata Duss from
Datambar 39, 212 Caslmens Tetal Banks
Low (IR 1, 2} 12 548 006 12 548 006 2,326,256
Medlurn (IR ) - - .
High {IF 4, 5} - .
Total 12,548,006 12,548,006 2 328, 256

Loana and advances to customers and duwe from banke, matured but not im painad

Corporate Oue fram
December 31, 2013 Cistamans Total Banks
Lip 10 30 days past due DATT TEZ 9977 752 1,000,231
31 - 90 gdoys past due 71,959 71,950 -
Orver 50 days past due - - -
Total 10,049 711 10, 0ud%. 741 1,000,231

Corporate D from
Decambar 31, 2012 Cusloamers Total Bapniks
Up to 30 days pasl due 6,385 451 6,385 481 189
1 - 80 days past dua 22033 22033 .
Crvar B days past due - - -
Total B, 417,514 6,417,514 3,189

The braakdown does not includg the ralatad interast and fees accrued on matured [0ans and agvances
o corporate customers totaling RSD 92 424 thousand a6 of December 31, 2013 (Decembar 31, 2012;
RSD 58,052 thouwsand ) and o banks totaling RS0 830 thousand as of December 31, 2013 {December

31, 2012, R3D 892 thousand).
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31, 2013
Ail amounts exprassed in thousands of RS0, unless olhanvise slaled

63,
53.1.

93.1.4.

§3.1.5.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Contlnued]
Securities
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Groas Met GEross MNat

Securities ;
- available for sake o5 BAY Far 56,885 285 41,088.320 41085776
- at Far valpe through profit and

lss 298,073 a7 816 212503 212 680
- bl 19 matunity 20 206 18,364 51.167 45 253
Tatal 57,006,076 57,001,465 41,352,390 41,347,718

Avalable-for-sale financial assets reprasant financial ingtruments which are imended to be hekd aver an
indefintde time parcd and which may be sokl for llquidity purposes, due to the movements in interest
ratas, exchange rates or pices of capital. Thay mostly compries Treasury bils and bonds issued by Lhe
Republic of Serbia and bonds of other banks. Availeblefor-sale assets are initially measured at ¢ost,
and on a quarterty basis Fair value thereof is detarmined basad on the market prices for securitias fraded
in achve stock exchangs (mark o marketh, Internally devalppad valuation models (mark o moded are
used in nstances that for certain financial ingtruments independent sources of market information are
not available, and are based an the maturity of Ive Security and the risk-free interest rate level.

Financial assels carried at fair value through profit and loss refer to the old foregn currency sawings
bonds of the Republic of Serbia and corporate and banks hargs. These securtias ane measunad using
the markat approach adjustment methodclogy (mark 1o markel) or intemally developed models (mark io
mogel), deperkling on whether there arg available prices changing on a2 daify basis those trading wia
conbnuous rading method.

Held-to-maturity securities entirely relate 10 corporate customer bHonds.
Cradit Risk Hedges {Collateral)

For the purpose of protection aganst cradit risk, n addition to regular menitoning of the customer
business pperations, the Bank also acquires secunty Nstruments {collaterals) to securs the collacticn of
macgivabies and minimize credil nisk. Depending on the assessment of the ability 1o sattle contractual
hiabilities, tha level of loan coverage is defined a0 that in case of the debior default, the Bank could
collact its receivables through colistersl forackosure. The quaniity and typse of collateral depsnds on the
assassed credil risk.

As a standard type of loan security Instrument, the Bank demands and receives iom chents conlraciual
auihorizabons far account withdrawals and bille of exchange, whereas, depending on the cradit nsk
asgessment and loan ype, additional collaterals agreed upon include the following:

« for commercal loans — pledge over movable and immovable property [modgages]. depasits.
banking, corporate and state-ssued guarantees, sureties, pledge over secunbes, equity interests.
receivables and Investock;

+  for retad loans — modtgages. depasits. co-surebes and insurance of the National Corporation for
Houging Loans.

Foi valuation of property or pledges assigned over movable assets, the bank hires cerirhed apprarsers in
arder ko minimize potential nsk of unrpalsbe valuation. Property, goods, equigment and other movables
pledged must be insured by an insurance company acceptable to the Bank and insurance policies must
ke duly enorsed in favor of the Bank.

The Bank monitors the market value of collaterals and if necassary, it can demand additional gullat&ral
pursuant to the lcan/deposit sureement execuled. |1 is the Bank's policy to ensure colledion from
collateral foreclosure and Lse the proceeds therefrom ta reduce or repay debt

§2
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KOMERCIJALMA BANKA A 0., BEOGRAD

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts expressed i thousands of RS0, uniess athorwiss stated.

43.
53.1.

3316,

532

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continuad)
CREDIT RiSK {Continuad)
Tangitde Assets Acquired in Lieu of Debt Collection

Coliaterals secunbizing loan repayments repossessad by the Bank in the process of debt collection are
prosided belom,

Collaterats acquired through collection of loans

2013 2012
Resiclantial bulldings 278 216 245614
Busingss pramises 1.518,067 539,405
Equipment 101,805 82,145
Larwl and foresis 1,782 67,308
Todal 1Im.am 1,334 5282
Accumulated depraciahon 141,357 123606
Met book value 1,827,453 1,210,918

In order ta stat the acquired assets at fair value, as of December 21, 2013 tha Bank impaired tangible
assets acquired in e of debit colections based on new fair value eslimates.

Curing 2013, in tha process of loan debt collection wia collaterat foreclosure. the items repossessed in
this mannar kataked RSO 1,060,829 thousand [2012; RS0 442.213 thousand).

It s Lhee Bank's policy 1o ensure coflection from collataral forecosure.

LICUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk represents the risk of negative effecis on the Bank's financial result and eguity resulting
from the Bank's difficulty or inability to setie it5 matured liabilities in instances of insufficient houidity
resenves and inabilty to cover for ungxpacted outfliows and cther liabilities.

The Bank operates in accordance with the basic pnneiples of liquidity, malntaining a sufficient level of
fungs to cover abiities incurred in the shod lerm, i@, it observes the pnnclple of soivency by
gstabiishng the opbmal hnancial leverage and sufficient liquidity reserves which do not compramise
realization of the projected retum on equity,

Liquidity risk represants the Bank's inabikty to setile s matursd habdiws. Liqusdity risk may be manifest
as the risk refated o sources of funds and markel lquidity risk. The problem of houdity in respect of the
sourcas of funds relales 10 the structure of labilines and is exgpressed through potenbal sigrficant shara
of unstatde ard shor-termm sources of funds or their concentration. On the other hand, liquidity nsk is
reflectad in reserves deficiency and difficulty of inatility 1o obtain liquid assets al reasonable markel
prices.

The Bank has astablished appropriate organizational structure, which allows for clear differenbiation
betwesn the procass of assuming and the process of managing liquidity nsk, The Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Liquidity Committes have the most significant role Iherein as well as other
compatent boards/committees, whose decisions can impact the Bank's expasure to this nsk.

In arder to minimize Lquidity nsk, twe Bank:

Drversihes sources of assels in respect 10 ther cumencies and maturbes;

Forms sufficienl liquidity reserves;

Manages monatary funds:

Monitors fulure cash Aows and liquidity kevels on 8 daty basis;

Limits principal sources of credit sk with most significant impact on ligquidiy: and
Diefnas and periodically tests Plans for Liguidity Management in Crisis Situations.

* & % ® = u
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KOMERCLIALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TD THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2043
All amounts axpressed in thousands of RSD uriless otharwise stara,

51
3.2

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cortinued)

Tha liquedity managemant process CHMpses mantfication, measumemant, MiniMmizing, mottonng, conro
and iquidity sk reparting.
In identfying ligquidity risk, the Bank identifies in & comprehensive and timély manner the causss that

lead to the occurranca of liquldity risk determines curment liquicity risk exposure a5 well as Nguidity risk
gaposure ansing feom new business products and activities.

Maasuremenl and assessment of liquidity risk i fhe 8ank is performed through Guantiative andfor
quaktative assessment of wentified liquidity risk by using the following technegues:

»  GAP analysis;
»  Ratio analysis: and
»  Slress test,

Minimizing liquidity risk congists of maintaining this rlsk at a level 1hat 15 acceptable to the Bank's rigk
profile through defimtion of e system of exposure limits including both intemal and stalulory limits and
timely implemantation of magsures o mitigate e fisk and aperation within the set internal and extemal
[irnns.

Control and monilonng of bguidity risk inciudes the process of mortenng compliance with intemalty
defined limits, and monitoring of defined measures for reducing the bank's exposure to liquidity nsk.
Liquidity risk control wwvolves the control &l all liguidity risk managemeant levels as well as the
independent contrl system implemented by the bank's organizalional units responsible for intemel audlt
and compliance monitgring.

Liquidity risk reporting consists of imemal and extarnal reporting systems and is performed on a daily
basis and a set schedule according o the defired system.

The Bank's gperahons ara reconciled daily with legally prescribed liguidity ralio and rigidicash liquidity
rabo. The legally prescnbed minimum and maximum valuves for thesa ratios are defined for one working
day, three corseautive working days and average for all working days within 2 month. Duning 2013, the
Bank's liquidity and rigid liquidity ratios were signlficanily in excess of tha prescribed limits,

The Bank's operations are reconciled daily with lagally prescribed liquidty ratio as follows. minimum 0.8
for one working day; minimum 0.9 for no longer than three consacutive working days and minimurm 1 as
the average likqudity ralio for all working days in @ month. The Bank also menitors compliance with the
requigiony prescribed ngklicash liquidity ratio as follows: minimum 0.5 for one working day, mirmum 0.8
for o longer than hree consecutive workry) days and minimum 0.7as the avecage hguadity ralio for all
working days in a month.

Compliance with liquidity ratle limits extarnally prescrbed:

Liquidity Rlgld/{Cash
Ratio Liquldity Ratlo
2013 2012 213 a2
As at December 31 345 218 308 204
Awerace for the penod 273 235 243 2m
Maimurn for the peried 288 33 330 277
Minimum for the period 1.68 104 1.50 0.63

The Bank sets intamal limits, based on the intemal reporting on ligudity AP for all balance shest
COMpPOnents.

Compllance with last day llquidity ratio llmite internally definad:

Limits 213 0 12

AP up 1o 1 monthfTotal assets Max [10%) 10.42% 10.17%

Cumulative GAP up 1o 2 months / Total assels Mz {20%) 6.75% 11.00%
84
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
Al amounts expressed in thousanas of RS0 uriess otherwise stated
53, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

§3.2  LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

In addibon the Bank limits and coordinates its operations with the limits defined for matnty per major

fareagn currencies
Maturity structure of monetary assets and monetary liabilities as of December 31, 2013
Uptot Fram1-3 From 3 -12 From1-§ Over 5
Cash and cash equvaients 41 137 704 . - . = 41,137,754
Revocable deposils and loans 53385120 - - . = 53385120
Interest fee and CcomMmMIssIon 2788176 . - - .
recevaties ZT7BB1TE
Cash and cash equwvalents 24 530 797 10,896 615 44 505710 72320 197 31.741.702 184 004 121
Securties 2 585847 3.348 400 20 186,150 25,402 260 5478808 57,001 465
Other investments 2 820858 B 360 - - 2925218
Other assets 2888 o s . 831278 b e L EBI9ENS
130,255,640 14,253,375 65.623.138 97,721,057 37,220,510 345,075,720
Transaction deposits 53,217 378 - - . - 53217378
Otner deposits 54,273,868 28 641,604 88.592.672 30,143,978 T8 043 202 380,166
Borrowings 1,619,890 - - . 1,619,850
interest fee and coemmission
payacles 255,888 . . - 255 888
Other Labilives 3,300,870 613,958 6.526 453 24 BT 104 3930 667 39,259 092

112,667,994 29255562 95119165 55031083 4658710  296.732.514

Net liquidity gap

As of December 31, 2013 17.587.646 _ (15.002,187) _ (29.496.027) _42.691,974 561
As of December 31, 2012 5,907,439 ﬂm ’H‘iﬂl.li‘ll gmllu 793 §3,
The repor on the maturty structure of monetary assets ana haoilives inciudes monelary balance sheet

tems distributed according to maturities cutstanding, | @ the conservative assumption was used that all
transaction and demand deposits will be wihdrawn within one month.

The Bark collects deposits of corporate and retal customers which commonly have shorter matunty
perigds and can be withdrawn at the chent request, Short-term nature of such deposits increases the
pank's hquidity nsk and requires active gudity risk management and constant monitorng of market
trends

In near term, the Bank manages liquidity risk by monitonng and controfing items 0 all major currencies
n order 1o ientify the needs for additional funding in 3 timely manner n case ¢f maturities of centain
tems | e n the long term the Bank plans the structure of its funding sources and nvesiments in order
1o provice suthcwent stable funding sources and Wguidity reserves

The Bank s management beleves that adeguate diversification of the deposit portfoho per number and
type of depostors as well as histoncal experience prowde a solid basis for exstence of a stable and
lang-term deposit base, e no significant cutflow of funds is expected theres!.

The Bank tests the Plans for Liguidity Maragement in Crisis Situasons wrich are intended for testing

potential crisis, checks the survival penod and solvency, availabiity of funding for habilites that could
arige and assesses the support urder the assumed cnsis condibons

Translation of the Auditors' Report (ssued in the Serbian language




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Decambar 31, 2013

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

Alf amaunts expressed in thousands of RS0, unlass olherwise slaled.

3. RISK MANAGEMENT (Contlnused)

513 UIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

Undiscounted cash flows from monetary asssts and monetary liabilities as of Decomiber 31, 2073

Up to 1 From1-3 Fromm 3 -12 From1-5 Owver 5
marth monthe momithia YA years Tounl
Cash and cash squivalents 41,137,784 - - - - 41,137,754
Reavocable depasits and loans 53415 946 - - - - 53,415,846
Interest, fea and commisson
receivables 2788176 - - - - 2,788,178
Cash and cash equivalants 25,784 389 12978322 52,438,519 201176879 45 374,389 227 6b4, 488
Secunbes 2,196 827 3,892,051 21646773 28,291,288 5938 337 52665376
Oither investments 2,90 858 8380 - - - 25929218
Oiher assets 2,588 548 _ - 931,278 - - 3819826
131,732,538 16,878,733 75,007 570 118.509 267 B2 312726 04 440 23
Transachon deposiis R3217 378 - - . - 53,297,378
Onther deposils B4 T4Z 668 28183 564 52,198,424 3.651.338 1,1354192 210,927 407
Bomowings 1,620,165 - - - - 1.620.165
Interast, fea and commission
payablas 255 BE4 - - - - 255,888
Other liabilities A.310.161 G804 744 845 27 580,130 4,101 489 43,235 BdB
113,148 260 26,800 488 99,643, 369 61,331,469 & 236,590 305,256,487
Mot figquidity gap

Az of Decamdbwr 31, 213 18,566,278 113,019, 765) (24,635,799) 57i1rr|m AT.075 825 5154.'34?

Undiscounted ¢ash flows ansing from the dems of monetary assets and monetary babidiiss include
fulure cash fiows per balance sheet items and future interest In the case of ransachon deposits and
demand depasils, which, observing the conservative approach, ame categonzed ino deposits with
malunties of up to a month, the undiscounted cash flows include only the cash lows from the debt
principal cutstanding.

In the course of 2012 the Bank conbinuously improved the liquidity risk management process and
implemented a aoflwara solution in order to advance the asset and liability management. The aforesaid
software enablas considering the undiscounted future cash Rows from inlerast in addition to those from
prinapal The Implemeantad methodology was applied only to the data as of Decembar 31, 2013

MARKET RISK

Market risk regrasants the possibilty of occummence of negative effects on the Bank’'s financial resuit
and equity due 10 changes n markel variables and comprises inerest rata risk, cumency risk for al
business operations and price nisk for all lemns in 1he lrading book.

The Bank is exposed 1o interest rate riak, currency rsk, risk of securites flucuations, counterparty risk
and risk of setlement relaled to trading boak ltems. The trading book containg balanca sheet and off-

balance sheet assels and liabiilies relatad to financlal Instruments that the Bank holds for sale or to
hedge othar Ainancial instrumenis that are malntained in the trading book.

The Bark has established appropriate omanizalional structure, which allows for clear differentiation
between tha process of assuming market risks and tha process of managing those risks. The Asset and
Lisbility Management Committes and Investment Committes heve the most significan role Hievein as wel
as other compelent boardsfcommitiees, whose decisions can mpact the Bank's exposure to this risk.

38
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
Al amournis expressed n housands of RS0 unfess ofhanwise statad.

3.
53.3.
53131

RISK MANAGEMENT {Corinumed}
MARKEY RISK (Continued)
interast Rute Risk

Interest rate risk represants the probability of negative effects on the Bank's financial result and equity
through iterms of the banking general ladoar dus 10 adverse intarest rate Auctuations, The axposurs to
this rigk depands oh the relation betwaan the interast rate sensitive assets and liskillbas.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate isk inherent in the items within the banking general ledyger, which 1z
reflected in the possible negative effects on the Bank's financial resutt and squity through due to
achvrse interest rate fuctuations.

The Bank manages he following types ol inlerast rale nsk-

» Repnang nsk of lemporal mismatch between matunty ardd repnang,;

s Yield curva nsk - to which the Bank 1$ exposed due to changes in yeld curve shape,;

«  Basis nsk - by which the Bark is exposed dua to different reference interast rates for interest rate
senaitiva itams with similar matunty o repncing characternistics; and

«  Optionality risk — to which the Bank is exposed due to coniraciually agreed optional terms - lbans
with an option of early repayment, deposits with an option of early withdrawal, etc.

Basic objettive of imerest rate risk management i8 maintaining the acceptable level of intarast rate nsk
exposUre from the aspect of the effact on Lhe financial resuit, by conducting adequate policy of maiching
periods of interest rate repricing, matchng adequale sources o investments per interest rate type and
matunky, as well as projecting movements in the yield curve in both foreign and domeshc markets.
Fnmariy, Iha Bank manages the intemal yield margn through the prices of loans and deposits, focusing
an the interest rate margin

The Bank parbculardy corucdes the affects of interest rate changes and changes in the structure of
interest-bearing assels and liabilities from the perspechve of maturty, interest rate repriang and
curmency structure and manages the effect theraof on the economic valug of equity

The process of imerest rmle risk managamant consists of identification, measurement, MIMIZING,
monilering, comirol and interest rabe resk reponting

Identificauon of interest rate risk consisls of comprehensive and timely identification of the causes and
factors that lead o the occumence of interest rate rigk, which includes determining current interest
raba risk exposure, as well as interest rate risk axposure arising from new business products and
acthilias.

Measurement and assessment of inlerest rate risk at Ihg Bank is performed through quanttative andfor
quahtative assessment of identihed interest rate risk by using the following techniques.

GAP analysis;

Rabo anztysis;

Duratin,

Economic value of equity; and
Sirexss test.

Minimizing interest rate risk means maintaiming this risk at a level that is acceptable tor the Bank's nisk
profile. Allewnating interest rate risk refars to the process of definng the systems of linmiled exposure of
the Bank to the interest rate risk and implamenting measures for interest rate risk miligation. Control and
monitoring of Interest rate risk entails the process of menltoring compliance with the established system
of limits &% well as monitoring defined measures for reducing the Bank's exposure 1o the Interest rate
risk Control of interest rate risk refers ko conlrel on all management levels as well as an indapendent
conirol system implemerted by the arganizalional units responsible for intenal audit and compliance
monltoring.

Interest rate sk raporting consists of an intemal sysherm of reporting to competent boardscommitteas and
the Bank's interest rate risk mansgement bodes.

intemal imis are determined based on the intemal repot on the interest rate GAP. which inciudes all
trwr palanca sheat items.

Transiation of the Apditarg” Raport leawed in the Serbian laguage
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53.
513

52.3.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contitusd)

MARKET RISK [Continued)
Intorest Rite Rigk (Contiured)
Complianca with internally defingd interest rate risk limits at the last day was a# follows:
__Umits 2013 _ 2012
Relalive GAP Max 15% {3.66%) {4.42%}
Mismatch ratlo 0.75-1.25 085 {54

Duning 2013, interast rate nsk ratios were within intemally prescnipsd imits,

Ther Bark has dafined inbemsd irmiks for ntenest rate nsk exposune per mags currency as well as the mit
of the maxmum aconomic value of equrty.

Compliance with intermatly defined limits of sconomic value of equity:

2013 212
As at Decamber 31 5. 20% 537%
Awverage for the year 5.98% 9.16%
Maximumn for the year 7. 45% 11.00%
Minimum for the year 4.78% 5.3 %
Limnit 20% 20%

The axposure b interest rate risk can be reviewed through the Report on Interest Rate GAP in monetary
assats and ataities as follows:

94
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KOMERCIJALMA BANKA A.D., BECGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31, 2013
All amourits axprassed in thousends of RS0 unless olferwise siafed

53.
53.3.
3339,

5332

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continumed)
MARKET RiSK [Continuwed)
interest Rate Risk {Continued)

The Bank’s management believes that appropnate compliance of positions per interest rate type and
interast rate repricing pericd constitutes a solid prerequisite for existence with required financal resufts
achieved and maintenance of economic value of agquity.

In the course of 2013 the Bank continususly improved the interest rate risk management process and
implemented a software solubon in ordar 1o advanca the asset and liablity managsment.

Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the possibility of nagalive effects on the Bank's financial result and equity
dug o fluctuations in exchange rates betwesh cumancies, luctuations in the domestic currency with
respect o forsign currancias o changes in tha value of gold and ather precious metals. All items in
the barking book and tha trading back that are denominatad in a foreign cumency and gold. including
dinar ikems irdexed 1o foreign currendcy clause arg exposed o cumancy rigk

In arder to mikimize the curency fisk axposura, the Bank diversifes the cumency structure of fs ponfolio
and currency structure of liabilities. reconciling open postions in cartain curencies pursuant (o e
principles of maturity ransfomation.

The Bank has established appropriate crganizabonal sinucture. which allows for dear differentiation
between the process of assuming cumancy risk and tha process of managing cumency risk. The Asset
and Liability Management Commitea has the most significant role therein as well as other competent
boardsfcommittess, whoss decsions can impact ihe Bank's exposure o this nsk,

The process of cumency risk maracemant rbals entfying, measunng, minimiang, monitoing, comirol and
In iderfifying cumency nsks, the Bank wentfes in a comprehensive and tmely manner the causas that

Izad to emegence of currency nsk and includes the determinabon of curment currency nsk exposure, as
wall 35 cumency risk sxposure msuling from new business produdcs and actnabies.

Measurement and assessment of cumency nisk in the Bank 15 perormed through quanfitative andfor
qualitative assessmenl of identified currency risk by using the illowing tachniques:

GAFP analysis and currency risk ratia,
VaR analysis,

Stress tesl;

Back testing

Relieving foreign cumency risk entails mantenance of nsk at an acceptable level for the Bank's risk
profile through the establishment of a transparend system of limits and defining measures used to
miligate forgign cumency risk.

Control and monibonng of the currency risk consists of observation and supenvision of compliance with
internally and externally defined lmits as well as monlteding of defined and implemented measures.
Continuous manitoring and control of forgign currency risk during the day ensures timely undertaking
measures for the purpose of maintaining the currency risk within defined limits. Forgign currency risk
control means control at all managament lavels as well as independent control system implemented by
the organizationsl units responsible for Intemal sudit nd compliance monitoring. Reparting on currency
rigk includes internal and extamal reporting systems. It is paformad on a daily basis and according bo
set schedules and in accordance with the defined system.

The Bark reconciles it business operations with the prescribed foreign cumency sk ratin, which
represents the ratio between the total net faregn currancy balance and tha position of geld relative to the
Bark’s requialory capdal.

Onegrviers of the total currancy risk Dalance and lagaly defined curmency riak ratio at December 31:

2013 M2

Total ciwrency fisk balance 720705 333.032

Currency rizk ratio 212% 0.82%

Legaly-defined limit 20% 20%
g8
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEQGRAD

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
All amounts exprassed in thaousands of RSO unlass etharwise slafed.

53.

RISK MANAGEMENT [(Continued)

53.3.3. OPERATIONAL RISK

Cperational risk represants the possitility of negabve efects on the Bank's financial result and equity
due to employas arrars {intentional or acodental), inadequate procadurag and processes in the Bank,
inadequete management of infermetion and other systems in the Bank, as well as cccurence of
unforeseen extemnal events. Operational nek includes lagal risk.

Cperglional rlsk is dehned a3 an evend thal gccurred as the result of inappropriale or unsuccesshul
intarnal procasses, employes and syslem actions ar system and other extarmal ovenis, intemal and
autarnal abuses, hinng and secunty prachoes at the workplace, customer recerwvables, product
dhstribubon, finas and penaltes for infrachens, damage incurred to property, disrupbons i operations

and sysiem emors and proCess Mmanagemen

The Bank monitoes operabonal nisk everds aceomiing Lo the fodowing busngss inas. corporate financing,
trace and sales. retal brokerage serncas, corporate banking, retail banking, payment transfers, agency
aBMvicas and asset management.

Tha process of operational nsk management répreserts an integral part of the Bank's activities
conducted on all levels and ensures identfication, measuring. relieving, momloring and reporting
continually on operational risks ahead of thair realization, as in accordance with the legal requirements
and deadlings. The existing pracass relles on known methods of measuring aperational risk exposures,
databaga on oparating losses, an updated control and reporting system.

The Bank momtors operational risk events dally and manages oparabng risks. For the purposs of
efficient operabanal risk montoning. the Bark appoink employess who gre n charga of operational risk
with the objectve of monitoring operational nisk in its every arganizational part, where such
employeas are responsibie for acouracy and hmeliness of information about all operabonal nsk events that
OCCUT 1 T organizatonal unit, a5 wall as for kesping records about all such evenis n the gparation
nsk datapase The organizational part of the Bank which 15 responsible for nsk management manitors
and reports operational risks to the Bank's Board of Directors. the Bank's Executve Boand and the Audt
Commttes.

Measuremant and asssssment of oparalional nsk at the Bank is done through quartitative andior
gualitative assgsament of identified operational rigk. The Bank measures opecalional risk exposure
through event racords, self-assessment and slress testing. Self-assessment conslsts of assessment of
risk exposure by organizational units based on the roadmap for identifying oparating risks. through
measuremant of potential ranges and frequencies of evenlts that can resull in losses, identification of
levels of control that busingss areas must mantan over these risks and measuwres of improvement. Stress
test repregents an operational risk management technique which is used 1o assess polential effects of
specifiic events andior changes in sevaral inancial variables on the Bank's axposure to operational risk.

The Bank cannol sliminate all operational nsks. but by introducing a rigorous framework of control,
mommonng and response to potential nsks it 15 capable of managing these risks. The Bank Lakes
measunes in order to relisve operational nsks and ensure proactive response lo events potentially
craating cperaticnal nsks threugh conbnued monilering of all activities, appication of adequate and
reliable information system and by applying project approach onentation, the implementation of which
helps improwe the business practice and optimize the Bank's business procassas.

Through reliable reporting on the implementation of measures underiaken to mitigate operational risks,
the Bank hae established a system for monilgring the activities undertaken by the Bank's organizational
parts in order ko reduce ariging opacational risks The Bank assess the risk of entrusting third parties with
activities related to he Bank's operations and based on the service contracts executed with such third
pariies which clearty define terms, rights. obligations and responsibilities of the conlracting parbes.

With he objective of smooth ard contimued operation of all significant systems and processes In he
Bark. and to Imd losses that coukl be incurred 0 extracrdinary cmumstances, the Bank adopted the
Business Continuity Plan, in order to ensure the restration and recovery of the information lechnology
systems in the event of intermuption or stoppage of aperations, the Bank adopled tha Disaster Recowvery
Plan,

Trarslation of tre Audiioed' Report Insued in the Sorhian langosge




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEDGRAD

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
AN amounts expressed in thousands of RS0, uniess olfierwiss stated.

53.

53.4.

53.5.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
THE BANK'S INVESTMENT RISKS

The Bank's investmeanl nak relatas to tha risk of invasting in olher entilizs and capital expenditunes. The
Bank's investmenlts in a8 non-financial sactor antity cannct exceed 10% of the Bank's equity, wheraby
such investments antail investments through which the Bank acquires equity interest or shares in & non-
financial sector entity. The total Bank's investment in non-financial sector entiies and Bank's own fixed
assals cannot exceed B0% of the Bank's equity, but this restrichon does not apply W the acquistion of
shares for further trading and sales therea! wilhin six months rom the scqulation date.

EXPOSURE RISK

Large exposures of the Bank to a single enity or @ group related entities, including Bank's redated
parlies, are exposures amounting 1o over 10% of the Bank's capnal.

Ir ita operabons, e Bank takes cara of the compliance with statutory axposurg limits.

+ The Bank's exposure to a single entity or group of refated entiies cannot exceed 23% of the Bank's
squity,

« The Bank's exposure 1o & party that s related o the Bank cannot exceed 5% of the Bank's
siuity, whike total aapssurg o the Bank's relaied partios cannot exceed 20% of the Bank's squity’

« The aggregala amount (sum) of the Bank's large exposures cannot sxcasd 400% of the
Bank's equity.

The Bank's exposure o & single paty of group of rdated parties, as well as exposure to tha Bank's own
related parties, were within tha prescrbad Iimils

COUNTRY RISK

Couriry risk relates o the nek of the counlry of engin of Ihe entity the Bank is exposed to, ie the
possibility of negative eflects on the Bank's hnancial rasult and equity due to inabiity to collect
receivables trom abroad and 15 caused by pohbcal, sconomic and somial condibons in the bomowsr's
courtry of ongn Country nsk inclwdeas Ihe followng nsks:

«  Polthcal and economic rsk relates to the Likelhood of 10655 due to the inability to collect the Bank's
recelvables because of deteriorabion n Maroeconomic stabilty, dua to limtabons prescnbed by
govesmment regulations or due 1o other structural changes in the economy of the grven country,

+  Transfer risk relates 10 the propabity of 108565 due 1o he inabiity to coled recarvables in a curmency
which is not the officaal currency in the bamower's country of ongin, due bo lmilabons 1o lability
settiement loward crediors from other countnes i speafic currency that is predetermined by the
official state regulations and bylaws of state and other bodies of the borrower's country of ongin.

Measurement of country rigk is maga per indeadual lcans and sdvances and at the Bank's portfolio level.
Measurernent of ssposure of an indedual receivable (o cousley fisk is based on the country rating of the
Bank's bormowers country of ongin as defined by intemationally recognized agencies, while measurement
of portfal exposure 1o country nisk is based on setting limils to expesure n terms of a percentage of he
Barks oouity, depending on the intemal country rating category. The Bank measures and Gontrols
portfolio exposure to country risk by grouping recenvables by default kevel of nak of the bormower countries
of ongin.

For the purposa of adequate country risk contral, the Bank defings axposure limits by countries or regions.

The Bank's investmenls approved to the bommowers domiciled outside of the Republic of Serbia for
financing businesses in tha Republic of Serbia, whose financial obligations to the Bank are expected fo
be settled from the operating resulls achieved in the Republic of Serbia, represent the Bank's
receivables without axposure o tha rigk of the borrowear country of arigin.

Transistion of the Autitors’ Regor fsaued in the Sertian fanpuage




KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
ANl amounts expressed in thausands of RED, uniass olherwise stated.

53
83.7.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bank has established a rigk managemant system in accordance with 1he volume and struclure of g
busingss activings and the capital management i aimed at unhindered achievemant of the Bank's
business policy goals.

The calculation of the amount of capital and capital adequacy ralio is reconciled with the Basel 1|
Standards.

The Bank manages capital on 2n ongoing basis i oroer to:

Maintain the minimum regulatory capital requirement {EUR 10 million);
Comply with the prescribed capital adequacy ratio {minimum 12%);
Maintain customer trust in the safely and stability of the Bank's opsrations,
Realize business and financial plans.

Sypport the expecied growth of lgans and advances to customers,

Ersura aptimum hriure sawoes of funds and deployment thereof,

Realza of ihe dividersd policy.

The Bank's regulatory capital represents the sum of the core capital and supplementary capial, reduced
for deductible items. The capital adequacy ratio rapresents the Bank's capital relative to the sum of cradit
risk-weighted assels, forgign cumensy gap and operational risk exposure. Credn risk-weiphted assets arg
determined pursuant (0 risk weights prescribed for all types of assats. Exposura o oparational risk is
determined by mulliplying the reciprocal value of the prescribed capital adequacy rabo by the capltal
requirement for opevational risk, which reprasent & three-year average of the product of exposure
indicators lor all ines of business by the prescrbed capital requirament rales for each ndividuad
business line.

Capital agequacy lndicators

2013 02
Core capital 45 134,001 50,608,348
Supplemeritary capital 4 BE1.842 5,328,728
Deductible tema (16,075,615} (15 648.210)
Capital 34,019,228 40,377,866
Credi nak-wenghted assets 161,508,806 169,333.007
Operahonal nsk axposura 16,668 642 15,196 806
Foreign currency nsk exposure 720804 -
Capltal adequacy ratio (minimum 12%} 18.02% 21.B8%

In the course of 2013, the Bark's captal adequacy ratio was in excess of the prascribed regulatory imi
of 12%.

Through its Capilal Management Strategy and Capitel Management Plan, the Bank controds and ensures
maintenance of the level and structure of tha inlemal capital, which adeguately suppons increase in
loans znd advances, future sources of funding and their utilizations. divdend policy and changes in
requialony requirements.

As part of the system of capital management. the Capital Management Plan, includes the following.

Strategic goals and schedule for realzation thereof,

Marnsr of grganizng the process of avallable intemal capital management;
Procadures for planning adequata levels of avallable intemal captal,

Manner of attaimng and maintaining adequate levels of svailable intemal capral; and
The Businass Continuity Flan in case of unforeseen evenis.

¥4
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemnber 31, 2013
Al amourts expressed in ousands of RSD, unlass oiherwise stated,

53.

53.8.

RISK MANAGEMENT {Continwed)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT [Continued)

The Bank continucusly implements procasses of inlemal assessment of capital adequacy in angoransg
with the nature, volume and complenaty of its busirerss operations and in compliance with the adopted
risk management strategy. individual risk management policies and capital management strategy.

As a documented and continuous process, intemal assessment of capital sdequacy meels the fallowing
critera.

il is based on risk klenbficaiion and measurement;

it provides comprehensive assessment and monitoring of risks the Bank is or may be exposad to;
it provides adequata level of Intemally gvallable capial according to the Bank's risk profile,

it is included in the Bank's management system and degision making process, and

it is subject to regular analysls, supenasion and review.

&« & & B ¥

Stages of the intemal capital adequacy asaessmant inglude the folowing,

determingtion of matenally significanl risks as per quahlative and quantitative criteria;

calcwation of the amounts of inlamal capital requiremants,

determinalion of the aggregala intarmal capital requirement,

comparison of the following elements:
I capital to available internal capital:
5 minimum prescnbed capital requiraments to internal capital requirements for indnadual nsks; and
o sum of the minimum capral requirements to the aggregate nlemal capital requiremern.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Unrecondiknd outstanding item statemenits

Based on the analysis of tha regular annual inveniory cound performed a5 of December 31, 2013, the
Bank has unreconciled aulstanding nem staements in the amount of RSD 1,286 thousand. Statements
unreconcied with 22 customars mastly ralata 10 the clients which contest the amount or the manner of
caloulation of inferest and fees and tha accounts of which are blocked or contest the amounts
cutstanding as per their respective rearganizabsn plans.

Unreallzed dividends

Unraalized dividends payalde in 2014 amount to;
- RS0 37,015 thousand for 2013 (881 % of I nominal value of prefersd shares);
- RED0 567,608 thousand for 2013 (7% of tha nominal value of convertible preferred shares).

Non-compllance with agresmant covenants for loans obtained from international crediting
Institutions

As disclosed in Mote 41, on March 8, 2013 the Bank recamvend a Waiver from the credicr IFC waivers tha
rights stpulated by the Loan Agreement dated December 25 2011 in respect of the Bank's non-
compliance with the covenants in the pariod from March 31, 2014 1o December 31, 2013,

a5

Transfation of the Auditors’ Repoet isaised In e Sertian langurage



KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013
Al armounis expressed in thousands of RS0, unkass ofherwise stated.

55, SEGMENT REPORTING

A) Balance as at December 31, 2013

Transigrion of i ARt Rigae awed in the Sorbiart Enguage

Investment
GCorpiratad Banking and
Retall Sector Legal Entity Intarbank
Dperations Cperations Operationa Othar Total
|nkereat, fae and
COMMIEI income 10,034,643 11.338.991 6,155,384 - 27 5ZB.MA
Inbarast, taa and
COMIMMBEINN BXDanses {5,687 5326) (1.933,536) {2401 137) - (10022 5688)
CHhr inc-oimie (fiormign
suchanga gaing.,
réwarsal of impairment
allwance Gnd other
iNGCoIme) 3467570 9,954 812 1.3249 358 1,743,558 16,695 336
Crhar sepensas {Rosgn
exchange losaes.
impairment allwance
and other axpansas) (4,364, 246, {11 605,525 {1,203, 236) (1,272.578) {18.450, 5848)
Oparating rosult befora
oparating axpenses 3,445,041 6,052 741 3,881,367 471.020 14,750,168
Cperaling expenses - - - - {10,151 794}
Profli bafore taxes* - - - - 4,588 35
Invastment
Corporatel Banking and
Ratall Sscior Lapal Entity Intarbank
Cparations Operaticns Operaiions ey Tortal
Azgsls par pagmant 107 844 330 127668, Fod4 111,796,911 16,344 351 363.654 365
Loans and advances 62331 827 117.401_38% 85290075 - 2650237491
Specul resar 45 512,503 10,266 875 6,506, 225 . 52 285807
Cihar . . 20,000,607 16,344 361 36,344 968
Liakdlitles par emgrment 186,766, 804 42,131,535 59,145,195 10.648.610 298 692 148
Ceposits 186,766,604 42,131,535 26,659,205 - 255 557 545
Ciher resourcas (loan
facilties and
subardinatad dabt) - - 32.455 954 - 52 455 594
Other hakililies - - - 10,848,810 10,648,610
* Reslits per segment do not include effects of the inler-seqgment relations,
%%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

Al amounts expressed n thousands of RS0 unless otherwise slated

88 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

B) Balance as at December 31, 2012

Assets per segment
Loans and agvences
Special reserve
Other

Liabilities per segment
Deposis

Other rescurces | ioan
faciities and
subordmated debt)

Ol hakalties

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA A.D., BEOGRAD

Investment
Corporate/ Banking and
Retail Sector Legal Entity Interbank
Operations Operations Operations Other Total
9,059,320 11,638 415 4 770 058 254657594
{6.080.T4E) {1405 753} iz 514.513) - (10,001 012}
§.717.084 18696813 B84 926 1.075 137 30.373,740
(15,404 415} (13,080 675} (2,008 770) (689.113)  (31.452973)
{2, TOBT7TT) 15,876 60O 1.131.702 86 024 14,385 549
= . . - (9812 887)
x 4 572662
B7 400,214 138,834 124 76,480, 199 11473236 324187773
66,360,007 123,162 951 53.623.897 - 233,148 B55
41040 207 158671173 2 035867 - S8 747 047
- - 20.820.635 11.473.236 32 283,871
164 532 866 62 826, 756 28086627 BA4964 264321213
164 532 866 62 B26 756 8161123 . 235520 746
19 905 504 - 18,905 504
- B 894 964 B 894 S64

* Resuits per segment do not include effects of the inter-segment relations

Change i the siructure of mterest expenses and ‘ee and commissicn expenses as well as liabites
wathir the balance sheet per segments for 2012 was performed in accordance with the change in the
struclure occurmed in 2013

The official

EXCHANGE RATES

rates for major currencies as determined In the interbank foreign exchange market

and used in the transiahion of baiance sheel components denomnated n foreign currencies nto dinars

(RSD) as of Cecemnber 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

usD
EUR
CHF

December 31.  December 31,
2013 2012
831282 86.1763
114 6421 1137183
035472 04,1922

00

Translation of the Auditors' Reporn issued in the Serbian language




2. ANNUAL REPORT ON BANKS OPERATION

2.1. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BALANCE SHEET

Balance sheet assets (RSD 000) 324,187,773 275,488,718 255,868,309 205,257,221
growth in percentage 17.7% 7.7% 24.7% 20.1%
Off-balance sheet operations (RSD 000) 204,642,280 183,524,897 145,180,526 66,248,482
RETAIL RSD 000
Loans and advances (RSD 000) 55,917,000 48 555,491 45,372,699 38,831,745
growth in percentage 15.2% 7.0% 16.8% 11.5%
Deposits (RSD 000) 164,532,866 143,061,647 130,964,790 104,438,978
growth in percentage 15.0% 9.2% 25.4% 35.8%
CORPORATE RSD 000
Loans and advances (RSD 000) 118,860,421 98,486,288 90,244,925 75,091,060
growth in percentage 20.7% 9.1% 20.2% 8.3%
Deposits (RSD 000) 40,526,379 31,728,178 36,543,673 35,170,368
growth in percentage 27.7% -13.2% 3.9% 5.5%
LOANS TO DEPOSITS RATIO as a percentage
Gross loans/deposits 80.2% 80.7% 80.9% 74.6%
Net loans/deposits 75.2% 75.5% 75.6% 68.8%
CAPITAL (RSD 000) 59,866,560 44,275,566 41,054,428 27,276,381
Capital adequacy ratio, % 21.88% 17.25% 17.14% 14.82%
Number of employees 2,989 3,022 3,101 3,155
Assets per employee (EUR 000) 954 871 782 678
PROFITABILITY INDICATORS
Earnings before tax (RSD 000) 4,572,662 3,952,066 2,791,964 2,055,495
ROA 1.51% 1.53% 1.15% 1.06%
ROE - on share capital 15.05% 13.89% 12.27% 12.05%
ROE - on total equity 9.44% 9.21% 6.98% 7.78%
Net interest margin on total assets 3.6% 3.8% 3.1% 3.3%
Net interest income (RSD 000) 10,910,317 9,853,368 7,437,483 6,334,099
ygé)fee A RSSO (22l R 4,554,466 4,423,399 3,892,459 3,531,165
Cost-to-income ratio 63.5% 63.0% 74.7% 80.5%
Operating expenses(RSD 000) 9,812,888 8,995,578 8,462,471 7,940,766
Net gain/loss on exchange rates and -
revaluation of assets and liabilities (RSD -227,799 95,890 -152,498 1,141,520 1,245,486
000)
gf;vfggﬁgjgssfgggg‘)red RS Ve 1,444,299 1,335,461 1,416,354 1,365,223
Quality of assets - NPLs 13.1% 10.7% 11.1% 11.8%
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2.2. MACROECONOMIC OPERATING
CONDITIONS

The defining aspects of 2013 included further
deterioration of the business climate and escalation
of liquidity/solvency issues faced by a significant
number of economic operators, coupled with a low
level of FDI and the resulting unemployment
growth, lower volume of lending by banks and
rising NPLs. Two key processes have been
initiated: efforts to find a solution to the Kosovo
issue and regulate relations with the territory and
the launch of EU accession talks, an objective on
which the Government focused its activities in its
first year in office.

Rampant fiscal deficit and an increasing risk of a
public debt crisis triggered a budget revision, which
was shortly followed by a reconstruction of the
Government in late August. The new cabinet's first
fask was public debt stabilisation and fiscal
adjustment, i.e. fiscal consolidation measures,
mostly on the expenditure side of the budget. From
the preliminary figures of the Ministry of Finance it
would appear that the unconsolidated budget deficit
was lower than the RSD 178.3 bn projected in the
second revision (an estimated 4.6% of GDP).
Negotiations with the IMF on a new precautionary
agreement are expected to continue in the spring of
2014. The growing need for deficit financing has
resulted in an increase in the share of public debt.
After the Eurobond issue of USD 1.5 bn in
February (7Y, 5.15% yield), a Russian loan of USD
300 million, repayment of London Club debt
(approx. 300 million) and an additional USD 1 bn in
5Y Eurobonds (6.125% yield) issued in November,
public debt stood at EUR 20.2 bn (+EUR 2.5 bn), or
approximately 61% of GDP. Businesses and banks
have continued repaying their debts to foreign
creditors, resulting in an increase of a mere EUR
300 million in external debt to a total of EUR 26 bn
(81.3% of GDP). At the end of 2013, Serbia’s risk
premium measured by EMBI was 374bp, while the
5Y CDS was 399 bp.

According to the initial estimates, GDP increased
by 2% in 2013 (source: Ministry of Finance), while
the preliminary estimates of the Statistical Office of
Serbia put this figure at 2.4%. The key factors
underpinning the growth of economic activity in
2013 included the recovery of agricultural
production (+20%) and strong growth in a limited
number of industries, primarily in the automotive
and oil industries, which offset the effects of exit of
US Steel in 2012, along with continued downward
frends in the construction industry and commerce.
Foreign trade and current account deficits have

been reduced; exports grew at an estimated 26% in
2013, while imports increased by 5.5% (MAT).
Estimates put the current account deficit at below
5% of GDP. One of the key issues, unemployment,
saw a surprisingly sharp drop according to the
October's Labour Force Survey (down from 24.1 in
April 2013 to 20.1 n October 2013) and is seasonal
in nature as far as informal employment is
concerned (the public sector employs about
780,000 persons). The second key challenge in
2013 was the growing illiquidity of much of the
economy. The number of corporate clients,
especially large ones, that move from liquidity
issues to insolvency has been increasing
constantly, with a growing trend for turning to
PPRPs (Pre-Pack Reorganisation Plans) for a
solution. As at 31 October 2013, out of the total of
110,337 companies, 22,789 had their accounts
frozen, including 8,500 whose accounts were
frozen in the past 4 months. Domestic investment
declined, while foreign direct investment remained
low (EUR 760.5 million). Lending through the Loan
Support Programme reached EUR 320 million
(compared with approximately EUR 950 million in
2012).

The most significant achievement was certainly the
strategic partnership established between JAT and
Etihad Airways.

GDP TRENDS as %

3 2.0
1.0 1.6
1_
F o B | L

-1 —l 2010 2011 . 2013
-3 1 -2.0

5. 35

RSD/EUR and INFLATION2009/2013
15 1
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12.2
10.4 10.3
8.7
9 1 ./‘1; 7.0 o
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Annual inflation rate o= RSD/EUR annual change

After the excessively high rates seen in the
previous years, in September year-on-year inflation
was brought back to the limits of standard
deviationof 4+1.5 and subsequently fell further,
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reaching 2.2% at the end of 2013. This can be
attributed to a significant decline in aggregate
demand and food prices, a restrictive monetary
policy and a stable exchange rate, even with the
9.5% increase in regulated prices in the first nine
month (which contributed 1.9 pp to inflation). Core
inflation  (excluding energy, food, alcohol and
fobacco) has seen a downward trend y-o-y and
stood at 4.2% in 2013.

In the course of 2013, the NBS gradually relaxed its
restrictive monetary policy as inflationary pressures
and expectations abated. The most recent increase
of the key policy rate was in February 2013 to
11.75%, followed by a period of gradual decrease
to 9.50% at the end of December. There certainly is
scope for further relaxation of monetary policy in
the coming period, but this will undoubtedly depend
on the US economic policy in the next year
(quantitative easing and overcoming the debt
ceiling issue) and a number of internal factors,
including in particular the implementation of fiscal
consolidation measures and the early elections
ahead. Furthermore, the abolishment of reverse
repo transactions and introduction of direct repo
transactions in mid-2012 made it possible again for
banks to invest their liquid assets in T-bills, but this
could only be done through auctioning and subject
to multiple interest rates, which resulted in a
separation between (lower) and key policy (higher)
rates.

2013 Repo operations
14% A

12 |

6% -

4%

2% A

10% 1 S —_
» -\W\\_

0% -
Balance of repo securities in the banking sector
e NBS key policy rate

— Average auction interest rate
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Notwithstanding the significant fluctuations at the
end of Q2, as a result of both global uncertainties
and local uncertainties concerning the Kosovo
issue and the fiscal problems faced (in June), the
nominal exchange rate of the national currency
remained relatively stable throughout 2013 and
appreciated by 1.4% in real terms in the first 10
months. The lower volatility can in part also be
attributed to the NBS interventions made in both
directions (selling EUR 435 million and purchasing
EUR 615 million). Portfolio investors remain a
significant factor determining the exchange rate,
with a net inflow of EUR 1,967 million during the
year (source: NBS). Overall, the dinar depreciated
against the euro by 0.8% in 2013.

At the end of December 2013, foreign exchange
reserves of the NBS amounted to EUR 11.1 billion
(source: NBS), which is sufficient to cover 7
months’ worth of import of goods and services.
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2.3. BANKING SECTOR IN THE REPUBLIC OF
SERBIA

I Asets in RSD million * Percentage of growth
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At the end of 2013, Serbia's banking sector
included 30 banks with the assets of approximately
EUR 24.8 billion. In addition to the market exit of
KBC banka, Razvojna banka Vojvodine (ex Metals
banka) and Privredna banka Beograd had their
licences revoked during the year, at which point
some of their assets and liabilities were transferred
to Postanska Stedionica, similarly as in the case of
Agrobanka.

Lending activity by banks declined throughout
2013. According to the  NBS  figures, by
December 2013 inclusive, gross loans were RSD
93.1 bn lower (5.0% compared with 31 December
2012.), with increased retail lending (RSD 20.9 bn
or 3.2% up) and with corporate lending reduced by
RSD 114.1 bn or 9.3% (NBS). As at 31 December
2013, a significant portion of the assets was
invested in securities (RSD 334.0 bn). From 18.6%
at year-end 2012, the share of NPLs (loans more
than 90 days past due) reached 21.4% at the end
of December 2013: 23.5% in corporate and 9.3% in
retail. The increase in NPLs even with the
enactment of the law which limits the payment term
in transactions between corporations to a maximum
of 60 days and the payment term for the liabilities
of the government to a maximum of 45 days is
attributed to the unfavourable overall business
climate, in particular for large corporate clients, who
had managed to resist the years-long economic
crisis for a long time. The number of corporate
clients, especially large ones, that move from
liquidity issues to insolvency has been increasing
constantly, with a growing trend for turning to
PPRPs (Pre-Pack Reorganisation Plans) for a
solution. To address the issue of accumulated
NPLs, in 2013 banks disposed of an amount of
RSD 32.1 bn by assigning due debts (NBS figures).

Retail FX savings continued to grow and reached
EUR 8,4 billion at the end of the year, while the
insured deposit level remains high (EUR 50,000)

Capital adequacy, as at 31 December 2013 was
20.9%, which was still far above the statutory
minimum of 12%. By December 2013 inclusive,
the banking sector's total equity was EUR 5.18 bn
(NBS).

M Assets in EUR million
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The outflow/debt repayment by banks towards
foreign entities has continued, reflecting the trend
observed in the operations of subsidiaries of
European banks in the region since mid-2011. At
the end of 2013 saw a net outflow of EUR 699,5
million. This withdrawal of funds was alleviated by
significant lines of credit provided by international
financial institutions.
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Profitability of the banks in the year 2013
declines, primarily as a result of pressures on
interest margin and the growing costs of risk. 15
banks operate with losses, and only 8 banks have
ROE above 5% at the end of the year. In
comparison to the end of 2012, when the profit was
achieved in the amount of RSD 11, 6 billion, the
banking sector at the end of the year 2013 reported
a loss of RSD 2,1 billion. The profit of the sector in
2012 is under significant impact of the loss
expressed in the first three quarters of 2012 by
Razvojna banka Vojvodine and Nova Agrobanka
Beograd. At the end of 2013, as many as 15 banks
reported a loss. If the loss of the mentioned banks
has been excluded, the banking sector would, in
the reporting period, record a profit of RSD 32,5
billion.

M Interest margin in %

8 -
6 4 51
4,6 4,6 42 42
4
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Cost-to-Income  ratio displays a tendency of
returning to the 2011 level, after peaking in 2012 as
a result of an increase in other operating expenses
(costs of direct loan write-offs) reported by some
banks.

M Earnings before tax in RSD million
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Note: Earnings before tax in 2011 include the EUR 284 million
loss of Agrobanka, while the year-end figure for 2012 includes
the EUR 128 million loss of Razvojna banka Vojvodine.

s ROA - Return on assets. %
—e+=— ROE - Return on total equity, %
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Determining factors of bank profitability in Serbia
include a high level of statutory reserve, focusing
on local sources of finance, limited lending
opportunities (lack of retail demand, limited pool of
corporate clients) and the government's borrowing
Strategy.
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2.4. OPERATIONS OF KOMERCIJALNA
BANKA IN 2013

Focusing on sustainable growth in the mid-term
perspective has remained a defining characteristic
of the Bank’s operations in 2013, with all the
limitations imposed by the nature of the market in
which we operate and its inherent risks.

Balance sheet total. Notwithstanding the apparent
stagnation of banking activity, with a balance sheet
total in excess of EUR 3 bn and an above-average
growth compared with the rest of the sector,
Komercijalna banka has increased its market share
to approximately 12%, primarily as a result of
withdrawal of credit lines (EUR 139 million) and
stable growth of retail FX savings throughout the
year (EUR 145 million). Maintaining its focus on
sustainable profitability growth, the Bank continued
with sound portfolio growth and further optimization
of the structure of its sources through credit line
withdrawals.

Sources. Reflecting the tendency observed in
2012, FX savings continued increasing (EUR 145
million), but this was mainly due to the increasing
transaction deposits by corporate clients. The net
increase in credit line withdrawals of EUR 108 is
attributable primarily to the withdrawal of the KfW
credit line for agriculture and local self-government
in the amount of EUR 55 million, the EBRD credit
line for SMEs in the amount of EUR 30 million and
the EFSE and FMO of EUR 20 million each. In
parallel with this, the Bank repaid the CHF EBRD
credit line for SMEs in the amount of CHF 20
million.

Loans and advances. A growth of loans and
advances to retail clients, farmers and micro-clients
as a result of intensive activities is evident, coupled
with a mild decline in the corporate portfolio
reflecting the market circumstances and the
collection of outstanding loans and advances from
a number of large corporate clients. Despite the re-
launch of the subsidised loan programme and its
quick depletion, the quality of demand continues to
deteriorate, with widespread underestimation of the
risk premium. A portion of liquid assets was
invested in dinar-denominated and FX securities,
as well as in repo securities.

Loan portfolio quality. Nevertheless, the
operations of all banks in 2013, including
Komercijalna banka, were characterised primarily
by a marked decline in corporate banking, which
put an even greater focus on stabilising and
maintaining portfolio quality. Although our NPLs are
far lower than the sector average (17.5 vs. 20.7), it
is impossible to “beat the market” for too long. The
increase of NPLs in the market is for the most part
a logical consequence of the long-drawn crisis and
the diminishing lending activities, along with certain
unsustainable business models. Other factors have
emerged as well, not least the quality of lending
standards and monitoring, which further exacerbate
the situation: payments and certain strategic
decisions by the government (in particular with
regard to the destiny of specific government
projects and enterprises); the nervousness of
certain creditors once they find out there are other
creditors involved; the lack of interest in or delaying
of restructuring agreements; the past attractiveness
of PPRPs (significantly lower interest rates and a
grace period). Unless a systemic solution is found
for the ever-increasing illiquidity in the market
which over time turns into insolvency, we expect to
see credit risk and NPLs escalate, which will
undoubtedly affect lending activity in the coming
period.

Profitability. Strong pressures of loans on the
interest margin have continued. A lack of sound
demand, heavy competition for the limited number
of available good-quality clients and absence of the
Subsidised Loan Programme have combined to
push the cost-to-risk ratio up; together with a high
level of statutory reserve, these are the main
factors exerting negative influence on the interest
margin. The scope for profitability growth is limited
— Stabilisation of the interest margin in 2013 was
the result of further optimisation and diversification
of sources, whereas the key factor for overall
profitability is the quality of assets.

Capital _adequacy. The capital base remains
Stable and adequate taking into account the length
of the crisis and we expect that capitalisation of a
portion of the profit will be sufficient to cover all
risks, including in particular credit risk.
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2.4.1. Board of Directors

2.4.3. Executive Board

SHAREHOLDER / MEMBER
NAME AND SURNAME INDEPENDENT OF THE BANK POSITION NAME AND SURNAME POSITION

SiniSa Mali, PhD Republic of Serbia President Ivica Smoli¢ President
Biljana Chroneos Krasavac, . . Deputy
PhD Republic of Serbia Member Dragan Santovac President
Viadimir Saric Republic of Serbia Member Slavica Dordevic Member
Dragica Pilipovic — Chaffey = EBRD Member Andrijana Milanovic Member
Philippe Delpal EBRD Member Lidija Sklopi¢ Member
Khosrow Zamani IFC Member
Prof. Miroslav  Todorovic,
PhD Member independent of the Bank ~ Member
Marija Pantelic, M.Sc. Member independent of the Bank ~ Member
Mats Kjaer Member independent of the Bank ~ Member
2.4.2. Audit Committee
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF
NAME AND SURNAME DIRECTORS / INDEPENDENT OF POSITION
THE BANK
Prof. Miroslav Todorovié, PhD ~ BoD member President
Dragica Pilipovic — Chaffey BoD member Member
Member independent of the
Jelka MiloSevi¢ Bank Member
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
| GUBITCOMMITITEE ‘ ! COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
l_l—l
INTERNAL COMPLIANCE
AUDIT BANK SECURITY I
CREDIT
COMMITTEE QUALITY MANAGEMENT/ISO I
| EXECUTIVE BOARD
PROJECTMANAGEMENT |
[ I 1 1 1 I
ASSETSAND
FINANCE AND RISK OPERATIONAL DTy RETAIL CORPORATE
ACCOUNTING MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS INVESTMENT < OPERATIONS OPERATIONS
BANKING
I Corporate
Accounting o — CRM (citizens, Human
Creditrisks ] Treasury 1 private banking, | | R::Jastitg:;:li'p [ Resources
safes) Management
Payment 9
4 3 R Assets and Alternative N N
Fﬁ;’:{:g";?‘a | | [WWGinancialiisiciyl] | [Seesem Liabiltes || Distribuon || S;Zdh‘;m:"{;'; L
Budgeting Operations [ Channets (MO)
Coordination
Subsidiaries Operational risks Procurement '_ Financial N y
[ (- Institutions [— Micro Clients | C’:c;;r;?‘::a;e ]
Administration- ’.:.iXEd asste L Executive Board
Back Office  —— Work Out Investment c - Support Unit
L] Banking L ontact Center

Administrative
Operations
B Cash

it
Management
Help Desk
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2.4.4. Bank’s Head Office in Belgrade

ADDRESS Svetog Save 14 Svetogorska 42-44 Makedonska 29 Kralja Petra 19

PHONE

TELEX

FAX

S.W.LLF.T. code
REUTERS code
INTERNET

E-mail

+381-11- 30-80-100

+381-11-32-40-911

+381-11-33-39-001

12133 COMBANK YU 12133 COMBANK YU 12133 COMBANK YU
3442-372 32-36-160 33-39-196
KOBBRSBG KOBBRSBG KOBBRSBG

KOMB KOMB KOMB

http:www.kombank.com

posta@kombank.com

http:www.kombank.com

posta@kombank.com

http:www.kombank.com

posta@kombank.com

+381-11-33-08-002
12133 COMBANK YU
32-82-732
KOBBRSBG

KOMB
http:www.kombank.com

posta@kombank.com

2.4.5. Regional Distribution of Bank’s Branches in the Republic of Serbia

[ BRANCH ADDRESS [ ] BRANCH ADDRESS

Krusevac
Nis
Zrenjanin
Cacak
Kraljevo
Novi Pazar
Novi Sad
UZice

90.\19\.‘":'*5”!\-'!*

©

Vranje
10. Valjevo
11. Subotica
12. Sabac

Trg S. Ratnika bb

13. Kragujevac
14. Smederevo
15. PoZarevac
16. Jagodina
17. Loznica
18. S. Mitrovica
19. Zajecar
20. Kikinda
21. Sombor
22. Vrsac

23. Belgrade
24. K. Mitrovica

2.4.6. Group Komercijalna banka AD Beograd

Apart from the parent bank Komercijalna banka AD Beograd, other members of the Group are:
1. Komercijalna banka AD Budva in the Republic of Montenegro,

2. Komercijalna banka AD Banja Luka in Bosnia and Herzegovina, and
3. KomBank INVEST AD Beograd.

KOMERCWALNA BANKAAD Investment Fund Management Company
I T R

ADDRESS
PHONE

Potkosljun bb
00382-33-426-300

Veselina MasleSe 6
00387-51-244-700

Kralja Petra 19
011-330-8310

Komercijalna banka AD Budva has:
- 119 employees,
- 20 organisational units (6 branches and 14 outlets).

Komercijalna banka AD Banja Luka has:

- 143 employees,

- 28 organisational units (10 branches and 18 outlets).
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2.4.7. Corporate operations

Market — key tendencies:

2013 was characterised by a significant decline in
lending activity by banks. According to the NBS
figures (Statistical Bulletin), corporate lending by
banks in 2013 fell by 9.46% (RSD 105.9 bn down,).
Statistical recovery of economic activity was limited
to a small number of industries and companies
(Fiat  Automobiles Serbia, NIS (Serbian oil
company)).

An absence of investment activities and reluctance
of clients to borrow more were the defining
characteristics of 2013. The subsidised corporate
loan programme was launched and completed in
Q1 2013. After the completion of this programme,
loan demand fell significantly.

Loans - KB’s operations

31.12.2012. 31.12.2013.
Rastu %,
'mil. RSD, %, 'mil. RSD %,

KREDITI 118.860 100,0%  112.261 100,0% 94,4%
Kratkoroc¢ni 22.785 19,2% 16.769 14,9% 73,6%
Dugoroc¢ni 80.007 67,3% 83.337 74,2% 104,2%

U stranoj valut,  16.069 13,5% 12.156 10,8% 75,7%

To alleviate the effects of the poor market
environment, significant efforts were made to
expand the base of borrowers (the number of
borrowers increased by 117 clients in 2013). The
Bank expanded its supply of loans by introducing
loans from foreign credit lines (EBRD, KfW, FMO)
and export support loans from the Bank’s own
lending assets (KOM EXPORT).

M Corporate loans in RSD million

150.000
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120,000 - 112.261
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The stability of the national currency exchange rate
throughout 2013 resulted in a lower demand for

dinar-denominated loans, which effectively reduced
the share of dinar-denominated loans (17.3% share
at year-end 2013).

The share of long-term loans increased in 2013, as
a result of the strategy to compensate for the
limited price competitiveness by extending the loan
repayment terms.

M Corporate clients ~ ® SMEs (as %)

100 +

70,4 72,7 743 77,0 75,4

75
50 A

25 1

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The huge competitive pressure to reduce interest
rates and the portfolio decline brought interest
income down by RSD 291mil compared with 2012.
As regards the competition, SBERBANK and
ERSTE Bank have noticeably stepped up their
game, while Bancalntesa, SocGen and UniCredit
Sremain at their usual high level.

Structure of Clients as at 31 December 2013

M Large enterprises Medium-sized enterprises

Small enterprises  Non-residents
Public enterprises W Other government institutions

W Local self-government W Others

4,1% "~ 1,1%

20,5%
0,3%
6 5%“‘; 18,0%

.
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Deposits

31 Dec 2012 31 Dec 2013 Growth

CORPORATE amount | share amount | share as %,
(RSD mil.) (%) (RSD mil.) (%) 13/12

DEPOSITS 40,526 100.0% 42,132 100.0%  4.0%

;’;gsa"”"” T | 16521 | 40.8% | 20539 @ 488% @ 24.3%
2’;2;“‘9"” - 5422 | 13.4% | 7958  18.9%  46.8%
,L?";g'te”” - 402 1.0% 510 12%  27.1%
= 18182 | 44.9% 13124  31.2%  -27.8%

Despite the lower borrowing interest rates and the
deteriorating market circumstances, i.e. reduced
liquidity of the economy, corporate deposits
increased by 4.0%, reflecting the bolstered trust in
the Bank in view of the circumstances and
developments in the banking sector in 2013.

W Corporate deposits in RSD million

50.000 -
s0s26 42132
40.000 55 47¢ - 36:544 ” ;
31.728
30.000 - . ; . ;
20.000 - . . : ;
10.000 - . . . ]
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Following the significant increase in corporate
deposits in 2012, the Bank continued the trend of
attracting deposits, with a slightly different currency
structure.

Structure of corporate deposits in RSD billion

25 1 21,9 22,0
20 A
15 +
10 +
5 -
0 T T r r
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
M Large corporate clients ™ Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises
Structure of depositors as at 31 December 2013
M Large corporate clients M Medium-sized enterprises
= Small enterprises
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2.4.8. Retail operations

Market — key tendencies:

There has been an evident stagnation of demand
for loans, with the number of borrowers dwindling
by 41,738 (Source: Association of Serbian Banks)
compared with 2012. On the other hand, given the
high unemployment rate of more than 20%, loan
recovery is slow and the number of borrowers in
arrears on their repayments (the number of
borrowers in arrears was 10,511 higher than in
2012).

The average debt remains relatively low compared
with the neighbouring countries at EUR 836, or 1.9
average monthly salaries, including EUR 742 in
loans, EUR 35 in current account overdraft, EUR
47 in credit cards and EUR 6 in lease instalments.

The downward tendency in the demand for home
loans has been observed since 2011 and has
continued through 2013. In 2013, the amount of
loans provided was 0.8% lower than in 2012, with
subsidised loans falling by 2.9% and unsubsidised
loans seeing a slight increase of 0.4%.

Home loans insured with NMIC without subsidy in €

Banking sector KB ’
Year KB’s share

No. Amount  No. Amount i, the amount
2013 4,461 145,216,136 935 28,165,101  19.40%

Subsidized home loans in €

Year Banking sector KB KB’s share
No. Amount  No. Amount in the amount

2013 2,068 77,843,274 538 19,482,651 25.03%

Total subsidized home loans in €

Banking sector KB KB’s share
Amount in the amount

Year
No. Amount  No.

2013 6,529 223,059,411 L1473 47,647,752 21.36%

Cash loans, in particular the dinar-denominated
ones, remain in highest demand. The competitors
have taken an aggressive approach, focused on
acquiring new clients.

To address the illiquidity issue, the government
implemented a subsidy programme for these
purposes (Q1), which boosted lending in the micro-
client segment. In the agriculture segment, there
were no subsidies at any point in 2013, for the first
time since 2004.

The number of defaulting individuals and farmers
continued increasing, with NPLs at sector level
reaching 9.7% (figure as at 31 September 2013).

Loans - KB’s operations

In 2013, the Bank disbursed RSD 21.1 bn in loans
- a 28.05% increase from 2012. Disbursement
loans went up across all segments, with the highest
increases compared with 2012 reported in loans to
farmers (78.5%) and home loans (46.3%). Despite
the fact that no subsidies were paid in the
agriculture sector, by providing loans from its own
lending assets and the KfW credit line and by
cooperating with dealers of agricultural machinery
the Bank managed to achieve a significant growth
in loans and advances.

Cash loans accounted for the highest share of
loans disbursed in 2013 (38.3%), followed by home
loans (26.8%) and loans to micro-clients (21.8%).
This increase in retail loans was the result of an
increased number of sale outlets, introduction of
new products and stepped-up efforts of the Bank’s
operating network; it can also be attributed to the
competitive credit lines offered to farmers and
micro-clients. Of the total number of loans
disbursed, approximately 44% were denominated
in dinars, while dinar-denominated retail loans
accounted for 30.9% of the total balance of loans
and advances.

M Retail loans in RSD million

72.000 A 61848

60.000 - 20217

45373 48.555
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Loan type RSD mil % RSD mil %
Cash loans 10,071 18.01% 12,021 19.44%
Consumer loans 492 0.88% 218 0.35%
Car loans 1,355 2.42% 892 1.44%
Home loans 29,735 53.18% 33,340 53.91%
Loans to farmers 2,971 531% 3,849 6.22%
Loans to micro-clients 5,537 9.90% 5,390 8.71%
Cards 2,101 3.76% 2098  339%
‘ Current accounts 3,655 6.54% 4,040 6.53%
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Due to lower demand and the absence of
government subsidies, the shares of car and
consumer loans have been gradually decreasing.
According to the available figures as at 31
September 2013, the retail segment contributed 9%
fo the growth of the Bank’s net loans and
advances, thus exceeding by far the banking-sector
growth of net loans and advances, which stood at
2.5%.

The quality of the Bank’s portfolio has been
preserved: NPLs to individuals and farmers
accounted for 5.2%.

Interest income reached RSD 6.7 bn, which was
9.6% higher than in 2012, while total net interest
and fees saw a significant growth of 47.1%

Structure of the balance of net loans and advances
as at 31 December 2013

339% 6°3%

0,35%
1,44%

M Consumer loans

M Cash loans

W Car loans W Home loans
M Agricultural loans M Loans to micro-clients

W Cards W Current accounts

Alternative methods of payment

In the card segment, the Bank focuses on the
quality of its offering by introducing new products
and services, improving the security of payments
and maintaining a consistently high level of service
quality.

e Incentives for using PayPass cards at Bank’s
terminals and technological improvements
e New product: Visa My Tag / One&Only card

o Compared with 2012:
o POS transactions increased by 16.9%,
ATM transactions increased by 25%
o The number of issued cards increased
by 13.9%
o Interest-free sale in instalments: more
than 300 merchants and almost 1,000

All this contributed towards the above-average
growth of transaction values in the Bank’s core
operating segments (24.6% compared with the
Serbian average of 12.8%), which in turn increased
its market share to 13.2%.

Deposits - KB ‘s operations

The banking-sector average increase in FX
deposits in 2013 compared with 2012 was EUR
145 million, while the Bank, with its growth of EUR
149 million in 2013 which was achieved despite
interest rate cuts made on several occasions,
retained its leading position with a market share of
18.4%.

M Retail deposits in RSD million

200.000 - 186.767
164.533
143.062
150.000 130.965 - :
104.439
100.000 - - - - :
50.000 l - : - :
0 + T T T T
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Under the existing market conditions, a proper
balance has been struck between the cost, the
Bank’s image and brand and the desired stable
growth of deposits.

B FX savings in EUR million

1.500 -
1.200 4
900 -
600 -+

300

0 -

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

*.
The above figures on retail savings do not include special-purpose FX
accounts (pensioners) and sole traders.

Trends of weighted interest rate on FX savings

5,00 o
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4,00 4,30 .
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The weighted interest rate is clearly displaying a
downward tendency.

Structure of FX sabings as at 31 December 2013

0,54%

4,06%

sight W 1 month m 3 months
6 months W 12 months W 24 months
36 months

In FX savings, the share of term deposits for a
period of 12 months or more remained stable and
stood at 66.9%. Another stable aspect was the
dominant share of small deposits of up to € 50,000
(more than 99% of the total number of deposits and
81% of the total amount).

The Bank will continue with its active interest rate
policy in order to maintain a balance between the
cost and the desired growth of deposits, making full
use of the Bank’s brand.

2.4.9. Treasury operations

In accordance with the Bank’s strategic orientation,
the key objectives and business activities of the
Treasury business function in 2013 focused on
adequate liquidity management, coupled with
investment of any free assets in the money and
capital markets; support to operations with clients

Share of Komercijalna Banka in total investment in securities
of the Republic of Serbia as at 31 December 2013

M Komercijalna banka ad k4 Other banks

(retail and corporate) and ensuring suitable sources
of finance, while reducing concentration and
improving the maturity and currency structure, thus
successfully overcoming the limitations inherent in
the fact that it as no foreign parent bank and no
global Treasury function, which effectively curtails
its access to favourable financial instruments and
prevents it from exercising more flexibility in
liquidity management.

Through its policy of cautious investment in first-
class financial instruments, in 2013 Komercijalna
banka reaffirmed itself as one of the most active
participants in the Serbian financial market.

Share of Komercijalna Banka in reverse repo operations with
NBS in 2013

M Komercijalna banka ad bk Other participants

With total sales of EUR 747 million and total
purchases of EUR 891 million, Komercijalna banka
is one of the most active participants in the foreign
exchange market.

Share of Komercijalna Banka in FX sale and purchase between
banks and residents in 2013

M Komercijalna banka ad k4 Other banks
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By disbursing new foreign credit lines in 2013 and

Komercijalna banka rearranged its sources as part
of an effort to achieve the mid-term objective of
their full optimisation. The effects achieved include

restructuring a number of large deposits,
EUR 30,000,000, February 2013

Furopean Bank (Loans to SMEs)

for Reconstruction and Deselopment

lower average cost of finance and reduced

concentration of deposits. EUR 55,000,000, mart 2013

(Loans for municipal infrastructure /

Thanks to the participation of IFls in its ownership

structure and the earned international reputation of - ENTWCKLNGSBANG o iture and food industry)

a first-class, safe bank, Komercijalna banka has

ready access to favourable international sources of

finance. In 2013 Komercijalna banka used this fact EUR 20,000,000, Sept/Dec. 2013
fo its advantage by attracting new credit lines from SE (Loans to micro and small enterprises
international organisations and agreeing credit lines

, , , including registered agricultural
which are expected to be disbursed in 2014. { gre g

holdings) in the private sector)
UROPEANFUND FORSOUTHEAST EUROPE

In the course of 2013, the Bank drew a total of EUR

125 million in credit lines from IFls to finance the FMO EUR 20,000,000, November 2013
needs of a wide range of clients, with repayment

terms of 5-7 years. This enabled the Bank both to ntreprencur

retain its existing clients and to attract new ones ,
with its offering of competitive products. : in the private sector)

(Loans to sole traders and micro,

small and medium-sized enterprises

Furthermore, the Bank secured a better maturity
structure of its sources of finance/loans and
advances taking into account the maturity dates of
the disbursed credit lines.

114



2.4.10. Bank’s Human Resources

A significant increase in the volume of operations,
coupled with continual optimisation of the number
and structure of employees, resulted in a dramatic
improvement of the Bank’s efficiency measured by
assets per employee, both in RSD and in EUR.

B Fmployees +  Assets per employee in EUR 000
4.000 i r 1.200
3.000 H- - 900
2.000 4

- 600

1.000 - - 300

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The Bank continually invests in its employees;
training and development. Development activities in
2013 point to a continuation of its qualitative and
proactive approach to training, based primarily on
the identification of training needs and ftailoring of
fraining content, design and delivery of internal
frainings, organisation of internal and external
frainings and measurement and improvement of
the quality of trainings and training processes.

In terms of subject, most of the training events and
professional training aimed at acquiring new
knowledge and upgrading the existing knowledge
in the fields of credit analysis, knowledge of the
Bank’s products and procedures, IT expertise efc,
In addition, the Bank invests in particular in
frainings aimed at developing employees’
capacities for more efficient work (selling,
presentation, management and communication
skills) and technical skills.

Since 2008, the Bank has been evaluating its
employees’ performance against set annual
fargets. The evaluation includes both an
assessment whether the targets are met and an
evaluation of the skills demonstrated by the
employees in the process of achieving the targets.

The annual performance evaluation also serves as
the basis for employee rewards (the reward system
was developed in cooperation with the German
consultancy ADG), staff career planning and
planning of Staff Training Programme and budget.

The principles of rewarding the employees are
clearly defined in the Remuneration Policy passed
by the Bank’s Board of Directors acting on the
proposal of the Compensation Committee, a body
of the Board of Directors. The aim of this Policy is
not only to provide adequate remuneration to the
employees, but also to motivate them to excel at
their work. The amount of reward will depend on
the duties performed by the employee concerned
and the annual evaluation of his/her performance.

Qualifications structure of employees in 2013

1,9% W university education

advanced secondary
education

vocational secondary
education

other educational profiles

2.4.11. Marketing and CSR Activities

The Bank’s marketing activities were built around
the core task of maintaining the high position of the
brand and its further affirmation, together with
fostering of standard distribution channels and
opening of new ones for the existing and new
target groups of customers of the Bank’s products
and services.

According to the tried and tested method,
marketing activities were planned and implemented
through  ongoing  creative  cooperation — and
coordination with one creative agency and two
media agencies, one of which was mostly used for
media planning and lease, while the other was
used for PR activities and support. In total, 8 ATL
campaigns were implemented: Gift Card, home
loans, cash loans, Kombank agrar, Pay Pass card
(this advertisement received the bronze annual
award by UEPS  (Serbian  Marketing
Communications Association), youth cards (One &
only and My Tag), savings and the corporate New
Year’s video clip.

In addition to the standard communication
channels, in 2013 the Bank implemented a
planned, intensive and comprehensive appearance
on the social networks (Facebook, Twitter,
YouTube, Googlet, 4Square, Linkedin).

The Bank’s marketing activities were targeted in
particular at the younger and more affluent
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population groups (by focusing primarily on e-
banking services and new and improved card
products).

The effects of promotional campaigns were
complemented by supporting PR activities and
public awareness activities concerning  the
implemented CSR projects. Apart from highlighting
our social responsibility, they were also aimed at
reinforcing the ftrust of external audiences. The
Bank continued with the sound practice of investing
in a limited number of well-chosen and focused
actions with lasting beneficial effects not only for
the environment, but also for the Bank’s public
image, through continual garnering of positive
public attention. Two projects stand out in this
context. The first is the art gallery “Kombank Art
Hall”, which, in cooperation with the Faculty of
Applied Arts, within the space of only several
months hosted 8 highly-attended exhibitions which
garnered positive reviews in the media. The Bank
also supported a number of charity, cultural, artistic
and sport projects and programmes, maximising
the return on its investment.

In 2013 the Bank exploited to the fullest extent its
headline sponsorship of Kombank Arena, the most
prestigious sport and concert facility in the country,

which has been positioned in the media as a sort of
powerful sub-brand of the Bank. Through the
implementation of the “Kombank Arena”
sponsorship project, in 2013 the Bank achieved
positive marketing effects based on the evaluation
of advertising space in electronic and printed
media.

The desired step forward has also been made in
terms of coordination of marketing activities with
the subsidiary banks in Montenegro and the
Republic of Srpska.

In 2013 the Bank continued carefully monitoring
and analysing the results of qualitative and
quantitative surveys of its positioning in the Serbian
banking market, using the intelligence thus
gathered to enhance the quality of its marketing
activities. The results indicate that, in public
perception, the Bank is firmly positioned as a
leader, measured by the standards of familiarity
and quality. To reinforce company loyalty and
power in the communication with external
audiences, survey results continue to be regularly
posted on the Bank’s portal.

Public Percention

The best bank in Serbia — Over the flights

BANCA INTESA, Beograd [ 17,4
e/ KOMERCIJALNA BANKA , NN 17,1
POSTANSKA STEDIONICA, Beograd [ 11,2
RAIFFEISENBANK, Beograd [l 8,2

VOJVOD]ANSKA BANKA, Novi Sad [l 3,0
SOCIETE GENERALE BANK, Beograd [ 2,6
ERSTE BANK, Novi Sad [ 1,9
EUROBANK EFG, Beograd | 1,7
AIK BANKA, Nis | 1,4
ALPHA BANKA, Beograd | 1,4

Spontaneous awareness — Top of Mind - Top 10

sanca iNTesa, seograd ([N 225
&>/ KOMERCIALNA BANKA .

POSTANSKA sTEDIONICA, Beograd [ 132

RAIFFEISENBANK, Beograd [ 8.5
ALPHA BANKA, Beograd ]} 4.5
VOIVODJANSKA BANKA, Novisad [ 3.6
SOCIETE GENERALE BANK, Beograd [ 3,2

Ak Banka, Nis [ 2.8

ERSTE BANK, Novisad [ 2.7

OTP BANKA I 2,3

Izvor: IPSOS Strategic Marketnig, Bankarski omnibus, Novembar 13
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2.4.12. Project Management and Project
Portfolio Management

In 2009, the Bank formed its PMO (Project
Management  Office), ~ which  enables the
achievement of 2 key objectives through
implementation of the project portfolio management
concept:

e Implementation of the Bank’s adopted
Strategy and/or introduction of changes in the
Bank through the selection of best suited
project initiatives, with maximum benefits and
maximum added value,

e Best possible implementation of selected
projects with optimum allocation of resources
and/or their most rational use, prompt
addressing of any issues that may arise and
prevention  of  delays in  project
implementation.

Of the 33 projects in the Bank’s project portfolio in
2013, a total of 13 projects were completed, a total
budget of EUR 2.62 million, while 20 projects are
still active.

Projects closed in 2013

Category Number of projects
Strategic 1
Regulatory 1
thimisation and 6
improvement

IT projects 2

Other 3

Total 13

>

Major projects closed in 2013:

Basel Il Implementation Programme, Standard

Approach
Compliance with the risk management system with

the requirements of Basel Il. The programme of
implementing Basel Il standards harmonised the
risk management systems of the Bank and the
Group with the requirements of Basel Il. The
primary goal of the project was to calculate capital
requirements according to the standard approach.

»  Document Management System / DMS2
Aimed at increasing the efficiency of the Bank’s

operations and better utilisation of resources,
more efficient management of clients’
requests/types of products used by clients,
reducing the number of errors and ensuring
consistency across all business processes.

» KomBank Mobile KB Beograd

Expanding the functionality of the existing
Android application and developing new
applications for iOS and Windows Phone 8
platforms, thus introducing a new service for
KB’s clients, in particular the younger
generations.

> WEB2.0
Implementation of a new-generation online

banking  application  providing  greater
accessibility (from most browsers and operating
systems, both PCs and tablets), increased
parameterisation of the layout/functionality,
keeping of existing functionalities and addition
of new ones, with expanded levels of
authentication.
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Active projects as at 31 December 2013

Category Number of projects
Strategic 2
Regulatory 1
Optimisation and improvement 10
IT projects 5
Other 2
Total 20

Major active projects as at 31 December 2013

inclu

ded:

» Basel Il Implementation Programme,
Internal Approach - The programme
comprised 5 projects. The purpose of
implementing the internal approach in the
Bank is to improve risk management
through the development internal models
tailored to the Bank’s specific risk profile.
Improving the Bank’s capacity to more
accurately measure and assess the risks
to which it is exposed would also reduce
the negative effects on the Bank’s bottom
line and capital and this, in turn, would
increase the capital adequacy ratio. The
scheduled completion date is 31
December 2016.

» ALM Software implementation project -

Improvement of the process of asset liability
management in terms of technical support in
the preparation of static and dynamic analyses
of liquidity risk and interest risk in the process of
further implementation of the Basel Il standard.
The scheduled completion date is 31 March
2014.

Business process management - The aim of
the project is to improve the Bank’s operating
processes  through  the  “Six  Sigma”
methodological approach. Once the pilot project
is successfully completed, the Bank will gain
adequate know-how it could subsequently apply
fo other processes. The scheduled completion
date is 31 March 2014.

» Improvement  of  the Project
Management  and  Project  Portfolio
Management System - More efficient selection
and allocation of the Bank’s resources to
projects and programs that will contribute to the
achievement of the Bank’s set strategic
objectives;  improvement  of the  cost
management system; improvement of the HR
management system; improvement of the
reporting system; improvement of the PMO
document management system; increased
efficiency of PMO activities and better use of
human resources. The scheduled completion
date is 31 March 2015.
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2.5, EQUITY

Changes in equity from 2009 to 2013:

e BT BTN BEETEEN BEETIEN BTN

BANK’S EQUITY (RSD 000)
Share capital 40,034,550 28,462,553 28,462,553 17,062,534
Reserves from profit 14,785,440 11,635,440 9,235,440 7,385,440
Revaluation reserves 860,758 625,680 647,126 694,117
Retained eamings 4,185,812 3,551,893 2,709,309 2,134,290

Bank’s shareholders as at 31 December 2013

Convertible 0 %
SHAREHOLDER Ordinary shares SHARE Preferred shares SHARE preferred shares % SHARE | TOTAL SHARES SHARE

Republic of Serbia 3,709,890 3,310,456 7,020,346
EBRD 2,177,330 0 ‘m 1,932,110 4,109,440
IFC 'l 0,00 o I 1,706,810 1,706,810
DEG o R o 772,850 772,850
SWEDFUND o R o 386,420 4,77 386,420
OTHERS 2,822,090 373,510 0,00 3,195,600
100,00

TOTAL EQUITY IN THE PERIOD 2009-2013

(RSD 000) 70.000.000 - 60%

- 50%

60.000.000 -ﬁ -
50,000,000 8% y - 40%
40.000.000 W

-
30.000.000 / ' i
20.000.000 : :
10.000.000 . :

0

w

F 20%

- 10%

0%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
= PROFIT 2.134.290 2.709.309 3.551.893 4.185.812 6.687.971
= REVALUATION RESERVES 694.117 647.126 625.680 860.758 1.604.257
RESERVES FROM PROFIT 7.385.440 9.235.440 11.635.440 14.785.440 16.635.440
= SHARE CAPITAL 17.062.534 28462553 28.462.553 40,034,550 40.034.550
GROWTH RATE 7% 51% 8% 35% 9%
TOTAL EQUITY 27,276,381 41,054,428 44,275,566 59,866,560 64,962,218
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The Bank’s total equity at year-end 2013 amounted
to RSD 64,962.2 million and increased more than
twofold in the past five years. Share capital
increased by RSD 22,972.0 million in the observed
period as a result of two issues of preferred
exchangeable shares (in 2010 in the amount of
RSD 11,400.0 million and in 2012. in the amount of
RSD 11,572.0). Over the past five years, the bank
formed additional reserves from its profit in the
amount of RSD 9,250.0 million, of which RSD

1,850.0 million came in 2013. The significant
increase in reserves from the profit made in each of
those years reflects the rational choice of
shareholders and management to hedge the
Bank’s operations against risk, while at the same
time also providing for the Bank’s continued
operation in  unfavourable  macroeconomic
conditions, in an unstable financial market
characterised by lower demand for loans,
increasing credit risk and increasing share of NPLs.

SHARE CAPITAL FROM 2009 TO 2013

r 80%

40%

(RSD 000) 50.000.000
40.000.000 1 - J_ | -
30.000.000 4 ‘ [t ‘ /
L age
20.000.000 / -=}
e 0,
0 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 0%
® CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES 4.798.190 4.798.190 8.108.646 8.108.646
PREFERRED SHARES 373510 373510 373510 373510 373.510
ORDINARY SHARES 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310 8.709.310
W |SSUE PREMIUM 7.979.714 14.581.543 14.581.543 22.843.084 22.843.084
GROWTH RATES 0% 67% 0% 41% 0%
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 17,062,534 28,462,553 28,462,553

Since 2010, the Bank’s ordinary shares have been
fraded in the Standard Market of the Belgrade
Stock Exchange.

In the past five years, the number of holders of
ordinary (voting) shares increased.

At the end of 2013, the Bank’s ordinary shares
were held by 1,186 shareholders, preferred shares
were held by 636 shareholders, while convertible
preferred shares were held by 5 shareholders.

40,034,550 40,034,550

STRUCTURE OF SHARE CAPITAL AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2013

1%

ORDINARY SHARES
W PREFERRED SHARES
B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES
B /SSUE PREMIUM
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2.6. FINANCIAL RATIOS

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (NET CAPITAL/

1. CREDITRISK + OPERATIONAL RISKS+OPEN FX MIN. 12% 19.02% 21.88% 17.25% 17.14% 14.82%
POSITION)
INVESTMENT IN ENTITIES OUTSIDE THE
2. FINANCIAL SECTOR AND NON-CURRENT ~ MAX. 60% 24.67% 18.38% 27.98% 21.70% 32.47%
ASSETS
3. LARGE EXPOSURE RATIO MAX. 400% 97.78% 107.37% 109.51% 8251%  114.30%
4. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK RATIO MAX. 20% 2.12% 0.82% 1.68% 7.19% 18.12%
5. LIQUIDITY RATIO MIN. 1% 3.45% 2.18% 2.91% 2.45% 2.71%
The Bank meets all statutory performance
parameters, which is a reliable indicator of
improved safety of its operations.
(U%) CAPITAL ADEQUACY
-
25,00 A
21,88 19,02
20,00 A , 17,25
14,82
H =
10,00 1 12,00 12,00 12,00
5,00 -
0,00 T T r
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

mmmm— CAPITAL ADEQUACY

In 2013, the NBS made certain amendments to the
following decisions within its powers in the field of
bank supervision: the Decision on Capital
Adequacy of Banks, the Decision on Bank Risk
Management and the Decision on Classification of
Balance Sheet Assets and Off-Balance Sheet
Items.

In accordance with the regulatory requirements, the
Bank conducted an internal capital adequacy
assessment, in which it evaluated all risks to which

STATUTORY (12%)

it is or may be exposed in its operations and
calculated internal capital requirements for material
risks and available internal capital.

The process of internal capital adequacy
assessment is an ongoing one; it is included in day-
to-day decision making and is an integral part of
the risk management system.

The rate of interest and fee collection in 2013 was
90.8%, or 94.5% excluding subsidised interest rate

(RSD 000) OPERATING CASH FLOW
8.000.000 + 6.824.563
6.136.179
6.000.000 - 4.973.331
3.784.821
4.000.000 -
2.571.082
2.000.000 -
0 T T
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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2.7. BALANCE SHEET FOR 2013

2.7.1. Bank’s Assets as at 31 December 2013

BALANCE SHEET ITEM

ASSETS
1. Cash and cash equivalents
2. Callable deposits and loans
3. Interest, fees and sales receivables
4. Loans and advances to customers

4.1. Corporate

42. Retail

4.3. Banks and financial organisations

5. Securities (other than own)
6. Equity holdings - interest
7. Other loans and advances
8. Intangible assets
9. Non-current assets and investment properties
10. Non-current assets held for sale
1. Deferred tax assets
12. Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS (1to 12)

2 N 3

(RSD 000)

% SHARE AS

5=3:40100 W 6 |

31 Dec 2013

41,137,794 40,514,180 101.5 1.3
53,395,120 43,053,502 124.0 14.7
2,788,176 1,547,342 180.2 0.8
184,004,121 177,106,865 103.9 50.6
112,261,312 118,860,421 94.4 30.9
61,848,487 55,917,000 110.6 17.0
9,894,322 2,329,444 424.8 2.7
57,001,465 41,347,719 137.9 15.7
6,054,110 5,917,033 102.3 1.7
2,929,218 3,227,896 90.7 0.8
537,445 600,438 89.5 0.1
8,386,224 7,416,846 1131 2.3
71,630 78,763 90.9 0.0

0 4,896 0.0 0.0

7,349,063 3,372,293 2179 20
363,654,366 324,187,773 112.2 100.0

In 2013, the Bank's balance sheet assets increased
by RSD 39,466.6 million, or 12.2%, year-on-year.
Loans to customers increased by RSD 6,897.3
million, or 3.9%. As at 31 December 2013, total
loans to customers amounted to RSD 184,004.1
million, which accounted for 50.6% of total balance
sheet assets.

In 2013, callable loans and deposits saw an
increase of 14.7%, primarily as a result of
increased investment in repo securities issued by
the NBS.

The most significant relative increase in 2013 was
that of loans and advances to banks and other
financial organisations. At year-end, the total
amount of loans and advances to banks was RSD
9,894.3 million. In the circumstances of declining
demand for loans, significant growth was also
achieved in investment in securities, which reached
RSD 15,653.7 million in 2013.
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2.7.2. Bank’s Liabilities as at 31 December 2013

|

11.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

BALANCE SHEET ITEM

4|
LIABILITIES

Transaction and Other deposits 255,597,544 235,520,744
Corporate 42,131,535 40,526,379
Retail 186,766,804 164,532,866
Banks and financial organisations 26,699,205 30,461,500
Borrowing 1,619,990 637,264
Liabilities for securities -

Liabilities for interest and fees 255,888 188,910
Provisions 765,132 2,331,760
Tax liabilities 21,616 21,799
Liabilities from profit 150,124 85,114
Liabilities for assets held for sale and assets from )

discontinued operations

Deferred tax liabilities 10,156

Other liabilities 40,271,698 25,535,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 to 10) 298,692,148 264,321,213
EQUITY

Share capital and issue premium 40,034,550 40,034,550
Reserves from profit 16,635,440 14,785,440
Revaluation reserves 1,791,268 867,774
Unrealised loss from securities available for sale 187,011 7,016
Profit 6,687,971 4,185,812
TOTAL EQUITY (13 to 16) 64,962,218 59,866,560
TOTAL LIABILITIES (11 + 17) 363,654,366 324,187,773
COMMISSION OPERATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE 224,949,026 204,642,280

SHEET ITEMS

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

RSD 000
% SHARE AS
AT 31 DEC 2013
5=34)100 W 6 |
108.5 703
104.0 16
1135 514
876 73
254.2 04
135.5 0.1
328 02
99.2 0.0
176.4 0.0
- 0.0
157.7 1.1
1130 82.1
100.0 110
1125 46
206.4 05
26655 0.1
159.8 18
108.5 179
112.2 100.0
109.9
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In the structure of balance sheet liabilities, deposits
from customers (transaction and other deposits)
amounted to RSD 255,597.5 million, which means
they accounted for 70.3% of total balance sheet
liabilities and saw an increase of RSD 20,076.8
million, or 8.5%.

Transaction deposits at the end of 2013 amounted
to RSD 53217.4 million — up 31.9% or RSD
12,880.6 million year-on-year.

Other deposits increased in 2013 by RSD 7,196.2
million, or 3.7%. At the end of 2013, other deposits

amounted to RSD 202,380.2 million, accounting for
55.7% of total balance sheet liabilities.

This increase in other deposits is attributable
primarily to increased retail FX savings.

Other liabilities included a subordinated loan in the
amount of RSD 5,732.1 million and credit lines in
the amount of RSD 26,713.9. The credit lines were
intended primarily for loans to SMEs to finance
exports, purchase of permanent working assets,
equipment and machinery and other purposes.

(RSD 000) GROWTH OF BALANCE SHEET ASSETS IN THE PERIOD 2009 - 2013

400.000.000 -

320.000.000 -

255.868.309

275.488.718

324.187.773 L 25%
: | L 20%

240.000.000 - OEIET T : :
L 15%

160.000.000 - - % . -
- 10%
80.000.000 - : | : : L sy
0 . . . . 0%

r 30%
363.654.366

2009 2010

2012 2013
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2.8.

RBR
1]

1.1.

1.2.

2.1.

22.

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2013

INCOME STATEMENT ITEM

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

(RSD 000)

INDICES
3:4)*100

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest income
Interest expenses

Interest gains

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Fee and commission gains
Net gain/loss from sale of securities at fair value through the Income Statement

Net gain/loss from sale of held-for-sale securities
Net gain/loss from sale of securities held to maturity
Net gain/loss from sale of equity investments (interest)

Net gain/loss from sale of other loans and advances

Net gain/loss from exchange rate differences and revaluation of assets and
liabilities

Income from dividends and equity investments*

Others operating income

Net gain/loss from indirect loan write-offs and provisions

Costs of salaries, allowances and fringe benefits

Depreciation costs

Operating and other business expenses

RESULT FOR THE PERIOD - PROFIT BEFORE TAX (1 to 14)

Income tax

Gains from generation of deferred tax assets and reduction of deferred tax liabilities

Loss from reduction of deferred tax assets and incurrence of deferred tax liabilities

PROFIT (15 to 18)

22,034,807
-9,094,536

12,940,271

5,493,211
-928,063

4,565,148

16,340

1,738

-227,800
391,724
337,919
-2,866,578
-4,258,109

-792,648
-5,519,630

4,588,375

87,950

4,676,325

20,130,880
-9,220,564

10,910,316

5,334,914
-780,448

4,554,466

776

83,947

95,890
2,251
241,022
-1,444,299
-4,186,346
-752,356
-4,933,005
4,572,662
472,448
32,885
-10,953

4,122,146

109.5

98.6

118.6

103.0

118.9

100.2

2.105.7

-237.6

17.402.2

140.2

198.5

101.7

105.4

111.9

100.3

267.4

113.4

* This position includes dividend income from a subsidiary in the amount of RSD 387.6 million (after withholding tax in the Republic of
Montenegro, net dividend income amounted to RSD 352.7 million)
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(RSD 000)

5.000.000
4.000.000
3.000.000
2.000.000
1.000.000

0

(RSD 000)

15.000.000 A

12.000.000 -

9.000.000 -

6.000.000

3.000.000 -

EARNINGS BEFORE TAX IN THE PERIOD 2009 - 2013
- 4.572.662 4.588.375
3.952.066
2.791.964
2.055.495
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
INTEREST INCOME
—— (RSD 000) FEE INCOME
—
12.940.271 6.000.000 -
10.910.317 5.000.000 - 4.423.399 4.554.466 4.565.148
9.853.367
3.892.459
4.000.000 {3.531.165
7.437.483

6.334.099

3.000.000 -

2.000.000 -

1.000.000 -

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
TRENDS IN BANK'S INTEREST MARGIN FROM 2009 TO 2013
(U %) 8,00
6,00
4,00 : <
. G yeeese
’| ceece & eoo e 01 secoce L '—
2,00 L :
000 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
m—— Average lending interest rate 8,0 6,5 71 71 6,9
Average borrowing interest rate 49 37 37 36 30
eeee@reee Average interest margin 31 2,8 34 36 39

Interest margin saw modest growth despite the
market pressures on the side of loans and
advances (keen competition for limited demand)
and on the side of deposits (marked focusing of
banks on domestic sources of finance). Activities

(U%) COST / INCOME RATIO
-
90,00 ~
80,5

80,00 4 '\74]
70,00 - \370 635
60,00 - " \580
50,00

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

—_—

" CIR = OPEX / net interest and fees

aimed at optimising the sources of finance in terms
of cost, structure and maturity have produced
results and have made interest sustainable in the
medium-term perspective.

In 2013 the Bank continued to actively manage
and control its operating expenses and increase
the efficiency of its operations, which resulted in
a lower Cost-to-Income Ratio (CIR).
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2.9. REALISATION OF BANK’S BUSINESS
PLAN FOR 2013

Under unfavourable operating conditions, in 2013
the Bank took steps to ensure safe operations and
sustainable growth in accordance with its Strategy
and Business Plan. Banking sector performance in
2013 was shaped predominantly by the constant
upward tendency of credit risk, in particular for
loans to corporate clients, coupled with lower
demand for loans. These unfavourable tendencies
were particularly pronounced in the second
semester of 2013. Under such operating
conditions, the Bank placed great emphasis on
permanent monitoring and assessment of the risk
level of its loan portfolio.

Macroeconomic Achieved Pl(}g:f ed
indicators in 2013 5013
GDP growth 2.0% 2.0%
Money market rate 9.50% 10.0%
Inflation rate (CPI) 2.20% 10.1%
RSD/EUR (year-end) 114,6 125,0
Tarcels Achieved  Planned
e in 2013 for2013
Assets growth 12.2% 12.3%
Profit (RSD million) 4,588 5,487
Net interest margin (net
interest income / total 3.7% 3.6%
assets)
ROA 1.3% 1.6%
ROE — on share capital 11.5% 13.7%
ROE — on total equity 7.3% 9.0%
CIR 58.0% 64.0%
NPL 17.5% 13.5%

Assets growth reached the planned level, which
can be attributed primarily to the higher-than-
planned inflow of retail deposits, as well as the
decision of corporate clients not to withdraw a
portion of their deposits despite the absence of the
planned depreciation of RSD. Market share
remained at 12%.

BALANCE SHEET TOTAL IN 2013

(In mil. RSD)
400.000 363.654 353.650

300.000
200.000

100.000

0 — I
ACHIEVED PLANNED

To hedge against credit risk, the Bank implemented
a policy of securing the necessary level of
allowance for impairment to reflect the increased
credit risk, which resulted in expenses for
allowance for impairment which exceeded by far
those planned for 2013 on this basis (RSD 1,499
million RSD or 109.5% higher).

In addition to the marked credit risk, the Bank’s
planned profitability in 2013 was also reduced by
unplanned expenses: the costs of a lawsuit (RSD
340 million) and the allowance for impairment of a
portion of its assets based on an appraisal (RSD
179 million), which is recorded on the Income
Statement as expense. Most of the assets were
valued above their book value and were recorded
on the Balance Sheet under revaluation reserves
(RSD 687 million).

PROFIT BEFORE TAX, INFLATION AND ANNUJAL CHANGE
IN RSD EXCHANGE RATE in 2013

(In RSD m and %)
6.000 5.487 - 10
5.000 4.588

4.000
3.000
2.000

1.000 08
0 | Lo

ACTUAL PLANNED
M PROFIT MW Inflation ™ RSD/EUR Depreciation

PROFITABILITY PARAMETERS IN 2013

13,7
11,5
9,0
7,3
l1 1’3 1,6
__L . __L . _—

ROE - share capital ~ ROE - total equity ROA

18
15

©

S W o

B ACHIEVED PLANNED

PLANNED VS. ACHIEVED COST/INCOME
RATIO IN 2013

(In %)
80
64,0

6 58,0

40

20

0 — I
ACHIEVED PLANNED
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2.9.1. Balance Sheet for 2013

(RSD mil)

PLANNED FOR INDICES
2013 (3:4)100

“ ASSETS POSITION ACHIEVED IN 2013
.+ @ 2 N 3 N 4 N 5 |
ASSETS
1. Cash and cash equivalents 41138
2. Callable deposits and loans 53,395
Receivables from interest, fees, sale, change in fair value of derivatives and
= other receivables 2788
4, Loans and deposits (4.1.+4.2.+4.3.) 184,004
4.1.  Corporate 112,261
42.  Retail 61,848
43.  Banks 9,894
5. Securities (other than own) 57,001
6. Equity investments (interest) 6,054
7. Other loans and advances 2,929
8. Non-current assets and investment properties 8,386
9. Other assets 7,958
10.  TOTAL ASSETS (1to9) 363,654

39,947 103.0
41121 129.8
1,506 185.1
205,908 89.4
133,450 84.1
67,463 91.7
4,995 198.1
43,000 132.6
5,889 102.8
3,927 746
7,390 113.5
4,963 160.3
353,650 102.8

e Investments in repo securities resulted in a deviation from the projected value under Callable Deposits and

Loans due to reduced demand for loans.

e The planned figures for retail loans in EUR were fully achieved, while the amount planned for corporate

loans was diverted to securities.

(RSD mil)
PLANNED FOR INDICES
2013 3:4)*100

no. LIABILITIES POSITION ACHIEVED IN 2013
a9 2 N 3 B 4 N 5 |
LIABILITIES

s Deposits 255,598

1.1.  Corporate 42,132

1.2, Retail 186,767

1.3.  Banks and other financial organisations 26,699
2, Credit lines 26,714
3. Provisions 765
4, Other liabilities 15,616
5. TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 to 4) 298,692
6. Share capital and issue premium 40,035
/. Reserves from profit and retained earnings 24,928
8. TOTAL EQUITY (6+7) 64,962
9. TOTAL LIABILITIES (5+8) 363,654

241,870 105.7
37,864 113
188,332 99.2
15,675 170.3
33,464 79.8
2,321 33.0
13,887 1124
291,542 102.5
40,035 100.0
22,072 112.9
62,107 104.6
353,650 102.8

e Deposits by both corporate and retail clients increased despite the constant decline in interest rates, with a

portion of deposits by other financial organisations remaining unreturned.

e In addition to the deviation from the planned exchange rate, credit lines underperformed also because of

the delayed withdrawal of the IFC credit line in 2013

e Higher-than-planned total equity can also be attributed to the deferred distribution of profit from earlier years

in 2013 in the amount of RSD 2.0 billion.
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2.9.2. Income Statement for 2013

(1]
11,
12,

2.1.
22.

N foal BBy ge2 D

POSITION

Interest income
Interest expenses

Interest gains (1.1.-1.2)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Fee and commission gains (2.1. -2.2.)

Net exchange rate differences and revaluation (currency clause)
Other operating income

Net expense for indirect loan write-offs and provisions

Operating and other business expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

ACHIEVED IN 2013

22,035
9,095
12,940

5,493
928
4,565
-228
748
2,867
10,570

(RSD mil)
INDICES
PLANNED FOR 2013 3-4)100
3 N 4 N 5 |
21,716 1015
9,544 953
12,172 106.3
5,623 977
764 1215
4,859 94.0
450 -50.6
330 226.6
1,368 2095
10,956 965
5,487 836

4,588

of finance despite the fact that the inflow of deposits exceeded the projected level.

regqular fixed costs of card replacement (every three years) and the agreed credit lines.

Higher-than-planned net interest income was the result of higher investment in securities and lower costs

Net interest income fell short of the planned figures primarily due to higher expenses for fees arising from

o Other operating expenses exceeded the planned level as a result of a dividend from a subsidiary.

e Costs of indirect loan write-offs departed from the planned levels partly because of the additional
allowances for impairment made as a result of increased credit risk in 2013
o  Operating and other expenses were below the planned levels as a result of measures put in place to

rationalise and better manage the expenses (CIR was 58.0%, which was better than planned).

e The profit earned in 2013 meets the set target of 83.6% defined in the profitability plan.
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3. CREDIBLE PRESENTATION OF THE BANK’S DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS RESULTS, AND
ESPECIALLY THE FINANCIAL STATE OF THE COMPANY, AS WELL AS THE DATA RELEVANT
FOR THE ASSESSMENT OF THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S ASSETS

3.1. Overview of the company’s development
Detailed overview of the Bank's development was explained in items 2.4.7., 2.4.8., 2.4.9. of the Annual
Report, pages 109 to 114.

3.2. Overview of the company’s business results
Detailed overview of the Bank's business results for 2013 is shown in items 2.6., 2.7., 2.8. of the Annual
Report, pages 121 to 126.

3.3. Financial status of the company
Financial status of the Bank as at 31.12.2013 is shown in the balance-sheet and profit and loss account,
items 2.7. and 2.8. of the Annual Report, pages 122 to 126.

3.4. Information on the data relevant for the assessment of the state of the company’s assets
The Bank's assets, as at 31.12.2013 are shown in detail in notes 29., 30. and 32. on pages 47 to 55 in
the Notes to financial statements.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE ANTICIPATED DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY IN THE UPCOMING
PERIOD, CHANGE IN THE COMPANY’S OPERATING POLICIES AND A DESCRIPTION OF KEY RISKS
AND THREATS THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS ARE EXPOSED TO

4.1. Description of anticipated development of the company in the upcoming period

The General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders held on January 23rd, 2014, adopted the ,Strategy and
Business Plan for the period 2014-2016% thus continuing the practice of the three-year planning of Bank's
development. The Strategy adopted in January this year had as the starting point the document ,Strategy
and Business Plan for the period 2014-2016% and was based on the values from that document with
necessary corrections and adjustments of planned values. When setting the basic strategic goals for the
upcoming period the observation was focused on stable and sustainable operations, primarily through
defending interest rate margin and maintaining the portfolio quality.

For the year 2014 it is planned a slight growth of balance sheet assets of 0.2%, the growth which is based
mainly on the growth of deposits (foreign currency savings) and partially on attracting certain amount of
funds in form of credit lines and Bank's borrowing abroad.

For the business year 2014 it is planned the growth of loans (balance sheet position ,loans and deposits
to customers®) in the amount of RSD 193,656 million, or 2.1%.

Starting from the expected economic environment, market potential, the results achieved in the year
2013, in 2014 a minimum growth of net loan portfolio of corporate clients is planned of 1.8%. The
orientation in corporate lending in the year 2014 will be mainly directed to those sectors which are
supposed to be less affected by the continuing economic crisis, such as: food industry, livestock
feed agriculture, energy sector and alike. During the previous period the segment of small and
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medium enterprises proved to be extremely resilient to adverse macroeconomic business
conditions. The Bank will try to provide in the coming period, as well, a quality support to this
segment of the economy, through the provision of new loans. The plan is that at the end of 2014,
the small and medium enterprises retain the 24% share in loan portfolio.

The permanent objective of the Bank is to increase the number of more financially solvent
customers, retail clients, with greater potential for borrowing. The plan for 2014 is the continued
expansion of the customer base with a projected growth of approximately 10.000 new clients,
primarily from Vojvodina and Belgrade. Despite the negative impact of the economic environment in
2014 the growth is planned of the lending activities of 5.6%. In the coming period the growth is
expected of the housing loans, cash and agricultural RSD loans to retail customers. The growth of
housing loans is planned by 5.1% (EUR 15 million). In the segment of loans other than housing
loans, in 2014 the growth generator will be the cash loans. The growth of these loans is planned as
to equal approximately 12%. In the segment of retail banking operations, besides operations
pertaining to loans and deposits, a particular attention shall be paid to development of payment
card operations and electronic banking. In the previous period the Bank presented to its retail
clients the package of up-to-date services that enable performing a number of operations via
electronic banking, by using Internet and mobile phone, and this will be continued in the future, as
well. With the expected growth of savings of 3.2% in the year 2014, the objective is to maintain the
leading position in terms of retail foreign currency savings.

In the day to day operations, and in the preparation of the business plan for the next three-year period,
maximum attention is dedicated to preserving the quality of the loan portfolio. In spite of unfavorable
macroeconomic business conditions at the end of 2013 the coefficient of non-performing loans was
14.2% (30.09.2013), which is significantly below the average realized at the level of the banking sector
(21.1%). For the end of the year 2014 the coefficient of non-performing loans is planned to equal 18.2%.

Likewise, for the business year 2014 there are no plans with respect to any significant new investments in
fixed assets (non-current assets, intangible assets, and investment property). The plan for the business
year 2014 is to adjust the new investments in fixed assets with the amount of depreciation of the existing
assets.

At the end of 2013, the Bank has invested in the capital of other legal entities, primarily in the capital of
legal entities in which the Bank is the only or the biggest founder, (Komercijalna Banka Budva,
Komercijalna banka Banja Luka and KomBank invest Beograd), the total of RSD 6,054.1 million. The
Business Plan for 2014 does not provide for any significant additional investments in the capital of these
legal entities.

For the business year 2014 the operating profit is planned of RSD 4,713 million, which represents the
increase of 2.2% in comparison to profit realized at the end of 2013. In addition to the indicated amount of
net profit, ROA is planned of 1.3%, while ROE will reach 7.3% with credit loss reserves included, or 11.8%
without credit loss reserves included.

Realization of the above planned objectives in 2014, the Bank will continue to pursue on the principles of
the universal bank, with equal openness for employment of funds both to corporate and retail clients. As
for sector-based distribution of loans, not even in the coming period will the Bank conduct the same
according to the sector, but rather primarily according to the level of risk contained in the loan application.

Its operations in Belgrade Komercijalna banka performs, excluding the Bank's sub-branches, on four
locations, as follows: 14, Svetog Save Street, 42, Svetogorska Street, 24, Makedonska Street and 19,
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Kralja Petra Street. Operating on more than one location is identified as aggravating circumstance in
regular business operations, and thus in order to overcome this problem, the Head Office Location Plan
has been adopted by the Bank's Board of Directors. The negative effects of economic crisis and
aggravated business conditions somewhat slowed down the implementation of this plan.

4.2. Description of changes in the company’s operating policies

During the year 2013 the Bank did not make amendments to the document Business Policy. The
Business Policy of the Bank was adopted by the General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders on January 26th,
2012.

The Business Policy determines the basic principles of operations and defines the tasks performed by the
Bank in order to achieve the business results and priorities as defined by applicable Strategy and Business
Plan of the Bank, and which is based on:

*  Bank's position on the financial market and the gained customers' confidence in the Bank
*  projections of the basic parameters of macroeconomic policy
«  development objectives of the Bank.

The Bank's Business Policy has also been reconciled with the Risk Management Strategy and the Capital
Management Strategy, along with the policies of individual risks' management.

The Bank operates independently, according to market principles, by applying the principles of liquidity,
profitability and safety, while respecting the laws, other regulations and general principles of banking
operations in achieving its objectives in a socially responsible manner, in accordance with the fundamental
values and business ethics.

4.3. Description of key risks and threats the company’s operations are exposed to

’

The Bank has recognized the risk management process as the key element in business operations
management, given that the exposure to risks arises from all the business activities, as an inseparable part
of the banking operations, which is managed through identifying, measuring, mitigating, monitoring,
controlling and reporting, and/or through establishing the risk limits, and also through reporting in
accordance with the strategies and policies.

The Bank has set up a comprehensive and reliable system of risk management which includes strategies,
policies and procedures pertaining to risk management, the appropriate organizational structure, effective
and efficient system of managing all risks to which it is exposed, adequate system of internal controls, the
appropriate information system and adequate internal capital adequacy assessment process.

By its Risk Management Strategy and its Capital Management Strategy the Bank has set the following
objectives within the risk management system: minimizing the adverse effects on financial result and capital,
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while observing the defined frameworks of acceptable risk level, maintaining the required level of capital
adequacy, development of Bank’s activities in accordance with the business opportunities and market
development in order to achieve the competitive advantage.

The credit risk is the possibility for occurrence of the adverse effects on the financial result and the capital of
Bank, due to non-fulfillment of the debtors’ obligations to the Bank. The credit risk is determined by the
creditworthiness of the debtor, regularity in his performance of liabilities to the Bank, as well as the quality of
the collateral.

The acceptable level of the exposure to Bank’s credit risk is in accordance with the defined Risk
Management Strategy and depends on the Bank’s portfolio structure, on the basis of which it is enabled to
limit the negative effects on the financial result and to minimize the capital requirements for credit risk,
delivery/settlement risk and counterparty risk, in order to maintain the capital adequacy at an acceptable
level. The Bank approves the loans to those clients (corporate and retail ones) for which/whom it estimates
to be creditworthy. On the other hand, the Bank does not employ the funds in high-risk investments, such as
investments in highly profitable projects with high risk, in investment funds of high-risk project and alike.

The liquidity risk presents the possibility or the potential for occurrence of unfavorable events that may
adversely affect the financial result and capital of the Bank. The liquidity risk manifests itself in Bank’s
difficulties to settle its due liabilities in the event of insufficient liquidity reserves and the inability to cover the
unexpected outflows and other liabilities.

In its operations the Bank complies with the basic principles of liquidity, achieving a sufficient level of funding
to cover the liabilities incurred in a short time, and/or observes the principle of solvency by forming the
optimum structure of its own and borrowed funding sources and by forming the sufficient level of liquidity
reserves that do not compromise the achieving of the planned return on equity.

Liquidity risk is expressed through inability of the Bank to fulfill its due liabilities. The liquidity risk can arise in
form of funding risk and market liquidity risk. The problem of liquidity in terms of funding sources relates to
liabilities structure, and/or obligations and is expressed through potentially significant share of unstable
sources of funding, short term funding sources or their concentration. On the other hand, the liquidity risk
also manifests itself through deficit of liquidity reserves and through difficult or impossible obtaining of liquid
funds at reasonable market prices.

Interest rate risk is the risk from occurrence of negative effects on the financial result and the capital of the
Bank based on positions from the banking book due to unfavorable changes in interest rates. The exposure
to this type of risk depends on the interest-sensitive assets and liabilities ratio.

Interest rate risk management is aimed to maintain the acceptable level of the exposure to the interest rate
risk in terms of the effects on the financial result and the economic value of equity, by implementing the
adequate policy of re-pricing maturity matching and harmonization of funding sources with the loans by type
of interest rate and maturity.

The Bank is exposed to foreign exchange risk which is manifested by a possibility of occurrence of adverse
effects on the financial result and capital due to changes in inter-currency relationships, changes in value of
national currency against the foreign currencies or due to changes in value of gold and other precious
metals.

In order to minimize the exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Bank diversifies the currency structure of the
portfolio and the currency structure of liabilities, matches the open positions by individual currencies, through
observing the principles of maturity transformation of funds.
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5. ALL KEY BUSINESS EVENTS THAT OCCURRED AFTER THE BUSINESS YEAR FOR WHICH THE
REPORT IS PREPARED

There were two General Meetings of Bank's Shareholders held from 31.12.2013 until 30.04.2014.

* Regular General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders held on 23.01.2014.
Decision on the adoption of the Strateqy and Business Plan of the Bank covering period 2014-
2016 was made at this session.

* Regular General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders held on 17.04.2014.
Decision on the adoption of the Report on Bank's Operation for 2013 was made at this session,
including:

a. DECISION ON ADOPTION OF THE REPORTS ON OPERATION FOR 2013

b. DECISION ON ADOPTION OF BANK'S REGULAR FINANCIAL STATEMANTS FOR 2013,
WITH THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S OPINION

c. DECISION ON DISTRIBUTION OF 2013 PROFIT.

6. ALL KEY TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED ENTITIES

At 31.12.2013 the following entities were related to the Bank:

1. Komercijalna Banka a.d. Budva, Montenegro,

2. Komercijalna Banka a.d Banja Luka, Bosnia and Herzegovina,

3. Kombank Invest a.d. Beograd and

4. Four entities (Lasta doo, Vi$ trade doo, Desk doo, Menta doo) and number of physical persons, according
to the provisions of the Article 2 of the Law on Bank defining the concept of ,persons related to the bank".

Total exposure to persons related to the Bank, as at 31.12.2013, amounted RSD 662,128 thousands,
which, compared to the capital totalling RSD 34,019,228 thousands resulted to 1.95% (maximum value of
fotal loans to persons related to the Bank, as defined by the Law on Banks, shall not exceed 20% of the
capital).

Highest portion of exposure to persons related to the Bank, as at 31.12.2013, the amount of RSD 634.565
thousands or 1.86% of the Bank's capital relates to the loans granted to individuals related to the Bank.

According to the Article 37 of the Law on Banks, the Bank did not approve loans to persons related to the
Bank under more favourable conditions than those of loans granted to persons unrelated to the Bank, i.e.
persons who are not Bank employees.
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7. COMPANY'S ACTIVITIES IN RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Banks are specific institutions and in their ordinary course of business the research and development
activities have a much different form than those applied by the companies.

The Bank conducts regular surveys of financial markets, analyzes the financial needs of its customers and
engages itself in researching the level of satisfaction of the users of financial services.

The above researches the Bank most often does not perform independently, but for the purpose of
conducting these studies it employs specialized agencies for public opinion research.

We are particularly pleased with the fact that over an extended period of time the Bank has been in the top
of the banking system by a brand identity and the quality of the services offered.

In the segment pertaining to development of new products and services the Bank endeavors, based on the
information and conclusions obtained through the activities of market research and the customers' needs,
to develop and market the modified existing products, or entirely new products and services.

It is as a result of the activities undertaken in the field of research and development that the Bank over the
last period offered the new types of deposits and loans, and developed a range of services in the segment
of electronic banking.

8. COMPANY’S OWN SHARES

Reason for acquisition of own shares: -
Number of acquired own shares: -
Percentage of acquired own shares: -

Nominal value of own shares: -

Names of the persons from whom the shares have been

acquired:

Amount paid for the acquisition of own shares, or an -
indication that they have been acquired without charge:
Total number of own shares: -
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9. STATEMENT FROM COMPETENT PERSONS

Svetog Save 14, 11000 Beograd

Tel: +381 11 30 80 100

) KOMER(”ALNA BANKA ) Fax: +381 11 344 13 35

Maticni broj: 07737068

e PIB: SR 100001931
PDV broj: 134968641

Sifra delatnosti: 6419

Agencija za privredne registre: 10156/2005
Broj racuna: 908-20501-70

SWIFT: KOBBRSBG

E-mail: posta@kombank.com
www_kombank.com

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD
Svetog Save 14

11000 Beograd

No. 7485/14

14.04.2014.

Pursuant to Article 368 of the Company Law (RS Official Gazette No 36/2011 and 99/2011), Komercijalna banka
AD Beograd issues the following

STATEMENT

In its operation Komercijalna banka AD Beograd, Svetog Save 14 (hereinafter: the Bank), applies the Corporate
Governance Code of the Serbian Chamber of Commerce, adopted by the Assembly of the Serbian Chamber of
Commerce and published in RS Official Gazette No. 99/2012. Text of the Corporate Governance Code is
publicly available on the website of the Serbian Chamber of Commerce www.pks.rs — chamber services,
corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code has established the principles of corporate practice that are adhered to by the
persons responsible for the Bank’s corporate governance. The aim of the Code is to introduce good business
practice of corporate governance and equal influence of all stakeholders (current and potential shareholders,
employees, clients, the Bank’s bodies, the Government, etc.). The final aim is to ensure the Bank’s sustainable
and long-term development.

Corporate governance rules are implemented through the Bank’s internal documents and there are no

deviations in their implementation.

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

Deputy President of the Executive Board Pr

man Santovac

ident of the Executive Board

UPISAN KAPITAL: 13.881.010.000,00 RSD, 3.310.456.000,00 RSD; UPLACEN KAPITAL: 13.881.010.000,00 RSD na dan 20.1.2010., 3.310.456.000,00 RSD na dan 30.10.2012.

At
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Svetog Save' 14, 11000 Beograd
&, FOMERCUALNA BANKA | R ETN
AD Beograd B SA 100001931

PDV broj: 134968641

Sifra delatnosti: 6419

Agencija za privredne registre: 10156/2005
Broj racuna: 908-20501-70

SWIFT: KOBBRSBG

E-mail: posta@kombank.com
www.kombank.com

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD
Svetog Save 14

No 2044/14

22/04/2014

11000 Beograd

Pursuant to Article 50 of the Law on Capital Market (RS Official Gazette No. 31/2011) Komercijalna banka AD
Beograd issues the following

STATEMENT

I hereby state that, according to my best knowledge, the annual financial statements have been prepared using
the appropriate international financial reporting standards and provide truthful and objective information about
the assets, liabilities, financial position and operations, profits and losses, cash flows and changes in equity of
the public company.

KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

Director of the Accounting Division  Executive Director for Finance and Accounting

Snezana PejCic 4

(e

UPISAN KAPITAL: 13.881.010.000,00 RSD, 3.310.456.000,00 RSD; UPLACEN KAPITAL: 13.881.010.000,00 RSD na dan 20.1.2010., 3.310.456.000,00 RSD na dan 30.10.2012.

e
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
No. 5060/1

Belgrade 17.04.2014

Pursuant to Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd (revised text), at its

regular session, held on 17.04.2014, the General Meeting of Shareholders of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd
passed the following

DECISION
ON ADOPTION OF THE REPORT ON OPERATIONS OF KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

FOR 2013

The Report on Operations of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd for 2013 is hereby adopted, in the wording that
forms an integral part of this decision.

CHAIR OF
THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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& [KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
No. 5060/2
Belgrade 17.04.2014

Pursuant to Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd (revised text), at its
regular session, held on 17.04.2014, the General Meeting of Shareholders of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd
passed the following

DECISION
ON ADOPTION OF THE REGULAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

FOR 2013

The following financial statements of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd for 2013 are hereby adopted, together
with the report and the opinion of the Bank’s external auditor (DELOITTE doo Beograd):

Income statement for the period 01.01.2013 - 31.12.2013,

Balance sheet as of 31.12.2013,

Cash flow statement for the period 01.01.2013 - 31.12.2013,
Statement of changes in equity for the period 01.01.2013 - 31.12.2013,
Statistical annex for 2013 and

. Notes to financial statements for 2013,

the text that forms an integral part of this decision.

ook wh =

5

CHAIR OF
THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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& KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGRAD

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
No. 5060/3
Belgrade 17.04.2014

Pursuant to Article 14 of the Articles of Association of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd (revised text), at its
regular session, held on 17.04.2014, the General Meeting of Shareholders of Komercijalna banka AD Beograd

passed the following
DECISION
ON DISTRIBUTION OF A PORTION OF PROFIT FROM 2013

I
Realized profitin 2013 and accumulated retained earnings from previous years are distributed in the following
manner:

Retained accumulated
ITEM (in RSD) Currentprofitin 2013 earnings from TOTAL PROFIT
previous years
——
| PROFIT FOR DISTRIBUTION |
M. PROFIT 4,676,324,930.98  2,011,645,801.69 6,687,970,732.67

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION:
Dividends for convertible preferred shares (ISIN:

2.1. RSKOBBE48352, CFI: EFNXFR) for 2013 at the rate of 7.00% 567,605,220.00 - 567,605,220.00
p.a.
Dividends for preferred shares (ISIN: RSKOBBE 19692, CFI:

2.2. EPNXAR) for 2013 at the average rate of interest in deposits for 37,014,841.00 - 37,014,841.00

terms longer than 12 months: 9.91% p.a.

Dividend Date for w hich the List of Shareholders is made is 31 Dec.
2013, in accordance with Article 13b of the Bank's Memorandum of
Association

Profit-sharing bonus for the management and employ ees of the

2.3. Bank, in accordance with the decision of the Compensation 7,774,895.14 7,774,895.14
Committee
"
2. TOTAL DISTRIBUTED PROFIT (2.1. + 2.2. +2.3) 612,394,956.14 0.00 612,394,956.14
3. RETAINED EARNINGS (1-2) 4,063,929,974.84  2,011,645,801.69  6,075,575,776.53

The Executive Board of the Bank is hereby authorized to pass a decision on the amount of profit-sharing bonus
(profit-based salary) payable to the Bank’s employees as prescribed by the decision of the Compensation
Committee, within the amount stated in ltem 2.3 and in accordance with the decision of the Compensation
Committee and the Bank’s internal documents.

The Executive Board is hereby authorized to settle the Bank’s potential profit tax liabilities for 2013 from the
portion of retained earnings (ltem 3), in case of a change in tax regulations which determine the profit tax liability
for 2013 in the Republic of Serbia.

Il
The Executive Board of the Bank shall oversee the implementation of this decision.

CHAIR OF
THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Sanja Jevtovi¢
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KOMERCIJALNA BANKA AD BEOGB D
Deputy President of the Executive Board  Presid | of the Bxecutive Board
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BELGRADE, APRIL 2014

NOTE:

Decision on adoption of the audit report, Decision on adoption of the report on business operations,
Decision on adoption of the annual financial statements and Decision on distribution of profit were
adopted on 17.04.2014 by the General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders. Decision on adoption of
consolidated financial statements and Decision on adoption of the report on the audit of the
consolidated financial statements will be adopted at the General Meeting of Bank's Shareholders, which
is expected to be held by the end of May of this year.
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